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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following summary highlights selected information from this prospectus and may not contain ail
the information that is important to you. To learn more about the offering and our business, you should

read the entire prospectus including our financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus.

CHEMATCH.COM, INC.

Our Business

CheMatch.com is a leading business-to-business Internet-based marketplace for purchasers and seliers
of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products. Our marketplace is centered around a real-time,
interactive trading exchange, where our members bid, offer and negotiate online for the purchase and sale
of products 24 hours a day, seven days 2 week. Members of our secure, neutral exchange trade products
anonymously, utilizing real-time pricing and other market information provided through our exchange.
Members are pre-qualified by us and pre-selected by each other before trading on our exchange. Qur
members include more than 125 of the world's leading chemical companies and other leading purchasers

and sellers of commedity chermicals, plastics and fuel products including traders, distributors, brokers,
manufacturers and other end users.

Our trading exchange, located at www.chematch.com, was the first and is one of the largest online
exchanges serving the chemical industry. Over $125 million in transactions have been traded on our
exchange since February 1998, and over $29 million in transactions were traded on our exchange in the
quarter ended December 31, 1999. In the fourth quarter of 1999, we averaged more than 35,000 metric
tons of daily product bids and offers and the average transaction value of completed trades exceeded

$500,000. We generate revenues on our trading exchange from commissions typically paid by each party to
a completed transaction.

Qur strategic investors include Bayer AG, Computer Sciences Corporation, E.I. duPont de Nemours
and Company, General Electric Company, Millennium Holdings Inc., Mueklstein Holding Corporation,
Stolt-Nielsen Transportation Group Ltd., TownsendTarnell, Inc. and William Heinemann Inc., a subsidiary
of Reed Elsevier plc. We have entered into strategic alliances with Bayer, CSC, duPont, General Electric
and Muehlstein to build our membership, to increase the trading volume on our exchange and to generally
enhance our trading exchange. In addition, we have strategic relationships with Stolt-Nielsen to facilitate
logistics, with DeWitt & Company, Incorporated and Reed Elsevier to provide information services, and
with eCredit.com and TownsendTarnell to provide credit and other services.

We maintain an extensive information resource center, located at www.petrochern.net, that provides
over 5,000 users access to industry news, forums, reference materials and more than 100 offerings from a
number of highly respected chemical industry sources. We generate revenues through our information
resource center from subscription and other user fees. Users may subscribe to market updates featuring
chemical industry news, pricing information and related statistics, over 40 product-specific consulting
reports containing summaries of marketing and pricing trends, and over 20 newsletters that detail market
trends in the chemical industry. In addition, the CheMatch trading screen integrates relevant news, trends,

" commentaries and analyses from our information resource center.

Qur Market Opportunity

The Internet has emerged as a global communications medium enabling businesses worldwide to
cemmunicate, share information and transact business electronically. Businesses are increasingly using the
Internet to streamline complex processes, lower costs and improve efficiency by reducing traditional
business communication barriers of time, geography and number of participants. Forrester Research
predicts that business-to-business electronic commerce, or e-commerce, in the United States will grow
from $109 billion in 1999 to over $1.3 trillion in 2003.
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The global chemical industry, which is comprised of three principal s¢gments — commodities,
specialties and life sciences — is a $1.6 trillion annual market. The commodity chemicals — including
basic industrial chemicals, petrochemicals and agrichemicals — and plastics market is the fargest segment
of the global chemical industry, representing in excess of $700 billion of products purchased and sold
worldwide each year. Fuel products, an additional market segment served by our exchange, represents over
$100 billion of products purchased and sold worldwide annually. The petrochemical industry is projected
by Forrester Research to be the third largest segment of the Internst economy in the United States by
2003, growing from $23 billion in 2000 to $178 billion in 2003.

The traditional marketplace for commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products is characterized by a
high degree of fragmentation, a lack of real-time market information, geographic insularity and relatively
iliquid markets. The process of initiating, negotiating and completing a transaction is time consuning and
subjects the parties to market risk related to price fluctuations. Communications between industry parties
occur primarily by telephone and facsimile and require significant paper documentation, These market
limitations create the need for a more efficient, information-based, business-to-business online solution.

The CheMatch Solution
Our Internet-based marketplace has the following key features:

* Real-Time, Interactive Exchange. Our members bid, offer and negotiate online for the purchase
and sale of commedity chemicals, plastics and fuel products in reai-time 24 hours a day, seven days
a week based on current market information.

* Market Intelligence. We provide our members with real-time pricing and other relevant market
information, including news, trends, commentaries and analyses, which enables them to trade on a
more fully-informed basis, :

* Global Reach. Our trading exchange is designed to facilitate a global marketplace that transcends
time zones and established personal networks, providing our members with expanded market reach,

* Qualified Traders and Products. We screen our members before they are cleared to join and
participate on our trading exchange, and all products traded on our exchange are required to meet
defined specifications. T :

* Pre-Selection of Trading Partners. Prior to their participatior on our exchange, our members pre-
select the other members from whom they will purchase and to whom they will sell products and
set the credit terms for those selected members,

* Anonymity. After pre-selecting the parties with whom they will trade, our members bid, offer and
negotiate online on an anonymous basis with respect to other exchange members. Only upon
matching of a trade is the identity of each party revealed and then only to the other party to the
transaction.

* Increased Liguidity and Velocity, We expect the efficiencies associated with our marketplace to
improve liquidity and increase trading volume within our target market, enabling our members to
better manage their capacity utilization and inventory.

* Reduced Cost Structure. Qur trading exchange allows our members to reduce the expense and
streamline the processes of procurement, sales and marketing, administration and logistics.

* Reliability and Confirmation. Our members’ ability to pre-select the parties with whom they will
trade and our system’s ontine documentation and confirmation procedures bring greater certainty to
the trading process.




The CheMatch Strategy

Our objective is to expand upon our position as a leading Internet-based solution for purchasers and
scllers of commeodity chemieals, plastics and fuel products. We intend to achieve this objective by
implementing the following strategies:

increase the adoption of our trading exchange through our focused sales and marketing efforts to
promote liquidity within the market for commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products;

expand the number of products eligible for trading on our exchange and about which we offer
market information;

enhance functionality by integrating various personalized services, offering back office integration
capabilities, providing improved interactive content and introducing online auction and tender
features;

implement recent strategic relationships to facilitate logistics and offer credit services, and enter into
additional strategic relationships to provide financial risk management products;

leverage our management’s chemical industry expertise to increase the adoption of our marketplace;
maintain the integ'rit}'; of our marketplace through our third-party neutral approach;
expand our international operations; and

maintain our technological leadership.

CheMatch.com

CheMatch.com, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware on June 21, 1999 as PetroChemNet Holdings, Inc.
We acquired PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. through a series of corporate transactions shortly
after we were incorporated, On November 29, 1999, we changed our name to CheMatch.com, Inc. We
refer to the consolidated company in this prospectus as CheMatch.,

Our principal executive offices are located at 2900 North Loop West, Suvite 1120, Houston, Texas
770592 and our telephone number is (713) 681-6600. We also maintain domestic offices in San Ramon,
California and Stamford, Connecticut and- international offices in Manchester, England, Singapore and
Tokyo, Japan. Qur web sites are located at www.chemaich.com and www.petrochern.net. The information
contained on our web sites is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus.




THE OFFERING

Common stock offered ............ ... ... ... .. ... shares
Common stock to be outstanding after this offering .. .. shares
Useof proceeds .............. ... . e, For working capital, general corporate purposes

and payments to management and current and
former employees. See “Use of Proceeds.”

Proposed Nasdaq National Market symbol ........... CHEM

Unless otherwise indicated, the information in this prospectus:
* is based upon 5,234,482 shares of common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2000;

* assumes the net exercise of all convertible preferred stock warrants immediately prior to the
consummation of this offering;

* assumes the conversion of all outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock into shares of
common stock immediately prior to the consummation of this offering;

* assumes the net exercise of 482,571 common stock warrants that would otherwise expire upon the
consummation of this offering into 428,845 shares of common stock;

» does not assume the issuance of 397,440 shares of common stock upon exercise of outstanding
warrants at a weighted average exercise price of $3.33 per share that will remain outstanding upon
consummation of this offering;

* does not assume the issuance of 4,482,556 shares of common stock upon exercise of outstanding
options under our stock option plans at a weighted average exercise price of $7.0%;

* does not assume the issuance of 490,698 options available for grant under our stock option plans;
and

* does not assume the exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option to purchase additional
shares.




SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents summary unaudited consolidated financial data for our business. The pro
forma statement of operations data for the year ended December 31, 1999 combine the historical
statements of operations of CheMatch, PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. as if the acquisition of
PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc., which occurred on June 21, 1999, had been completed on
January 1, 1999. You should read the following summary unaudited consolidated financial data together
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our
consolidated financial statements and refated notes included elsewhere in this prospectus,

Pro Forma
Year Ended
December 31, 1999
(Unaudited)

(In thousands,
except share and

per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Pata:
RV MU . . .ot i it e e 3 373
Operating [088. . . . L e e (9,740)
Nl 088 . vttt e e e e e e e (9,518)
Net loss available te common stockholders ... ... ... .. ... . i i, 3 (39,023)
Net loss per share, basicand diluted. . ... ... . . o § (12.89)
Pro forma net loss per share adjusted for the assumed net exercise of all convertible

preferred stock warrants, the conversion of all convertible preferred stock and the net

exercise of 482,571 common stock warrants into 428,845 shares of common stock,

basic and diluted . ... ... i e e (1.17)
Shares used to compute net loss per share, basicand difuted ........................ 3,026,581
Shares used to compute pro forma net loss per share adjusted for the assumed net

exercise of all convertible preferred stock warrants, the conversion of all convertible

preferred stock and the net exercise of 482,571 common stock warrants into

428,845 shares of common stock, basic and diluted ........ . . ., 8,123,497

The following table presents summary consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 1999. The
unaudited pro forma balance sheet assumes the net exercise of all outstanding warrants for the purchase of
convertible preferred stock and the conversion of all convertible preferred stock into shares of common
stock and includes the effect of the net exercise of 428,571 common stock warrants into 482,845 shares of
common stock. The pro forma as adjusted information reflects the sale of shares at a price of §
and our proposed use of the estimated net proceeds. The unaudited pro forma balance sheet does not
include the effect of the issuance of 929,523 shares of common stock to certain strategic investors during
February 2000.

As of December 31, 1999

Pro Forma
Actual Pro Forma As Adjusted
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents ... . .. ... .. . i, $30,170 $30,170 $
Working capital ... ... o 28,148 28,148

= T3 < 40,768 40,768

Totat convertible preferred stock ... ... ... .. ... .. L. 66,951 —_

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) ............. ... ..cu. .o .... (29,323) 37,628




RISK FACTORS

Before you invest in our common stock, you should understand the high degree of risk involved. You
should consider carefully the Jollowing risks and other information in this prospectus, Including our
combined financial statements and related notes, before you decide to purchase shares of our common
stock. The following risks and uncertainties are not the only ones we face. If any of the Sollowing risks
actually occur, our business, financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected. As a
result, the trading price of our common stock could deciine and you may lose part or aj] of your
investment.

Risks RELATED To OUR BusINEss

Our limited operating history makes an evaluation of our busimess and our prospects difficult,

Our predecessor company has operated since January 1997. We were incorporated in connection with
a series of corporate transactions in June 1999 and have a limited operating history, Prior to investing in

specific risks and difficulties include;

* we depend substantially on an Internet-based trading exchange that has been present in the market
for a limited time and may not be successful;

* we depend substantially on comnmissions generated from purchases and sales of commodity
chemicals, plastics and fuel products on our trading exchange and we may be unable to significantly
increase revenues from these commissions or generate revenues from other sources;

* we may be unable to significantly increase and maintain industry adoption and use of our Internet-
based solution for purchasing and selling commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products;

* we may be unable to develop and enhance the CheMatch.com brand;

* we may be unable to maintain existing or establish new relationships with purchasers and sellers of
commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products;

* we may be unable to adapt to rapidly changing technologies and developing markets;

* we may be unable to effeétivciy manage our rapidly expanding operations and the increasing use of
our trading exchange and related services; and

* we may be unable to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel, particularly people who
understand our trading exchange and the industries and products represented on it.

We have generated only immaterial revenues to date. Due to our limited operating kistory, we believe
that period-to-period comparisons of our revenues and results of operations are not meaningful. As a result,
you should not rely on our revenues or results of operations for any prior period as an indication of our
future performance or prospects. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.”

We have a history of losses and expect future losses.

We have had substantial losses since our inception. We currently expect our losses to increase
in the future, and we cannot assure you that we will ever achieve or sustain profitability. From June 21,
1999 through December 31, 1899, we incurred a net foss of $8.3 million. The extent of future losses wil]
depend, in part, on the amount of growth in our revenue, which will depend primarily upon commissions
gencrated from the increased adoption of our trading exchange by companies in the chemical industry. The
extent of these losses will also depend, in part, on the amount of growth in our operating expenses, which
we plan to increase. If our revenues grow more slowly than we anticipate, or our operating expenses
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increase without a corresponding increase in our revenues, of we fail to keep operating expense jevels
down, the imbalance between revenues and operating expenses will negatively affect our business, revenues,
results of operations and financial condition.

Our business model is unproven and may not be successful.

Cur business-to-business Internet-based model is based on the establishment of our trading exchange
as a viable alternative to the traditional methods of transacting business for purchasers and sellers of
commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products. This business model is new and net proven. We cannot
be certain that our business model will be successful or that we can achieve or sustain revenue growth or
generate any profits. We must develop and market our trading exchange and achieve broad market
acceptance by the chemical industry for our business model to succeed. We cannot be certain that a
mazket for business-to-business commerce on the Internet generaily, or our marketplace in particular, will
emerge, grow or be sustainable. For example, industry participants may not adopt an Internet-based
solution because of their comfort with traditional purchasing and selling habits and long-term relationships,
the costs and resources required to switch trading metheds, the need for products not offered on our
trading exchange, security and privacy concerns, or general reticence about technology or the Internet.

We may not be able to atiract a critical mass of purchasers and sellers.

Acceptance of our business model depends primarily on our ability to attract a critical mass of
purchasers and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products to our trading exchange. Our
current and prospective members must perceive value in our marketplace which, in large part, depends
upon the breadth of the products available for trading on our exchange and the services we provide. A key
component of our strategy is creating a network effect, where the value to purchasers and sellers increases
as the number of members to our marketplace increases. If we are unable to increase the number of
purchasers and sellers in our marketplace by drawing new members, we will not be able to benefit from
this network effect. As a result, the overall value of our Internet-based solution would be harmed, which
would negatively affect our business, revenues, results of operations and financial condition.

Our sales cycle is long and uncertain and may net result in revenues.

A significant amount of time may elapse from the time we make initial contact with a company we
have targeted as a potential member of our marketplace and the time that company executes a
membership agreement enabling it to trade on our exchange. Further, the membership agreement does not
obligate our members to trade on our exchange and its execution may not result in future revenues.
Because we offer a new method of trading commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products, we must
educate our current and potential members on the use and berefits of our marketplace. We need to spend
a significant amount of time with multiple decision makers in a prospective member’s organization to selt
our marketplace. If we are unable to attract new members willing to adopt our marketplace for trading
commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products and purchase the services we offer, then our business will
be adversely affected.

Our future revenues depend on our ability to increase transaction velume on our trading exchange.

If the transaction volume on our trading exchange does not grow, it is unlikely that we will ever
achieve or maintain profitability. We depend heavily on commissions generated from purchases and sales
of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products on our trading exchange. From our inception through
February 15, 2000, 34 of our members completed a trade on our trading exchange. These members have
completed 219 transactions. Our business model calls for a substantial portion of our revenues in the futurc
to be based upon the number of transactions completed on our trading exchange. Our inability to increasc
the number of transactions completed on our trading exchange will negatively affect our business,
revenues, results of operations and financial condition.
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We have provided some of our members with incentives fo trade on our exchange that may have the effect
of temporartly increasing the level of activity on our trading exchange without corresponding revenues.

We have entered into agreements with some of our members to encourage the adoption and use of
our trading exchange. We have provided these members with trading concessions and other incentives to
transact business on our frading exchange. In the near term, these concessions and incentives may
temporarily increase the level of activity on our trading exchange without generating a corresponding
increase in revenue. Additionally, these companies may discontinue their support or use of our trading
exchange when these agreements expire or are terminated.

A significant portion of our revenues are currently generated from a relatively small number of members.

In fiscal 1999, three of our members accounted for more than 38% of our trading exchange revenues
and, in the three montbs ended December 31, 1999, five of our members accounted for more than 62% of
our trading exchange revenues. We may continue to derive a significant portion of our revenues from a
relatively smali number of members. The loss of any of these members may adversely affect our business,
results of operations or financial condition. :

A majority of the transaction volume of trades on our exchange involved a single product.

In fiscal 1999, approximately 6%% of the physical transaction volume of trades on our exchange
involved benzene. In the three months ended December 31, 1999, approximately 59% of the physical
transaction volume of trades involved benzene. We may continue to derive a significant portion of our
revenues from trades involving benzene. If a diversity of commeodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products
are not traded on our exchange, our business may not be successful.

We may not be able to compete successfully.

The market for Internet-based, business-to-business comrmerce solutions is extremely competitive. Qur
competitors include Ariba, Inc., Autobase Information Systems Inc. (efuel.com), ChemConnect, Inc.,
Commerce One, Inc., Commerx, Inc. (PlasticsNet.com), e-Chemicals Inc., fob.com, FreeMarkets, Inc.,
PurchasePro.com., Inc., VerticalNet, Inc. and their respective affiliates. We may also face competition
from large, established chemical companies. We expect competition to intensify as our current online
competitors expand their product offerings. There are relatively low barriers to entry in our market, and we
expect additional competition from emerging or established companies to develop. We cannot assure you
that we will be able te compete successfully against current or future competitors, or that competitive
pressures we face will not harm our business, operating results or financial condition.

Qur competitors may be able to negotiate alliances with strategic partners on more favorable terms
than we are able to negotiate. Some of our members have and others may in the future invest in our
competitors and discontinue their use or support of our marketplace. Qur competitors may develop
superior solutions that achieve greater market acceptance than our marketplace, Further, some of these
competitors have long operating histories in the chemical industry, greater name recognition, an established
network of potential users and significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do,
These potential competitors would be able to undertake more extensive marketing campaigns for their
Internet-based solution and adopt more aggressive pricing policies in attracting potential users of their
solution. For these reasons, our ability to compete effectively against these larger enterprises is uncertain.

If we are unable to respond to rapid technological changes associated with Internet-based selutions, we
may los¢ members fo our competitors.

The market for our trading exchange is likely to be characterized by rapid technological advances in
the hardware and software markets and changes in our members’ and the market's requirements. As a
result, our future success depends wpon our ability to enhance our marketplace through technological
advances and where necessary to adapt our trading exchange to our members’ and the market’s specific
needs. If we are not able to maintain a reliable, scalable technology platform that can rapidly incorporate
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technological advances and that meets the nceds of our members and the market, we may lose members
to our competitors who are able to provide a technologically advanced solution that meets the needs of
purchasers and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products.

If we are not able to determine or design the features and functionality that companies require or prefer,
we may not be able to attract members and may lose current members to competitors.

Qur success depends upon our ability to accurately determine the features and functionality that our
members require or prefer in a business-to-business Internet-based marketplace. We may lack the ability
to successfully design and implement these features and functionality. We have designed our marketplace
based upon internal design efforts and feedback from a relatively limited number of members. We cannot
be certain, however, that the features and functionatity we offer through our marketplace, or those that we
may offer in future, will satisfy the requirements or preferences of our current or target members. If we are
unable to determine or design the features and functionality that members require or prefer in a business-
to-business Internet-based marketplace, we may not be able to attract members and may lose current
members to our competitors who are able to provide those features and functionality.

Our members may abandon our marketplace if we experience hardware or software failures,

A significant disruption in our trading exchange could seriously undermine our members’ confidence
in our business. Our members hold us to 2 high standard of reliability and performance. We have
experienced brief service interruptions on our trading exchange. These interruptions undermine curent and
prospective members’ confidence in the reliability of our marketplace. Operating a successful online
marketplace requires the successful technical operation of an entire chain of software, hardware and
telecommunications equipment. A failure of any element in this chain may partiaily or completely disrupt
transactions on our exchange and access to our information resource center. We may have members
operating outside North America who use older or inferior technologies, whichk may not operate properly.
In addition, our hardware and software systems are vulnerable to interruption from power failures,
telecommunications outages, network service outages and disruptions, natural disasters, and vandalism and
other misconduct. If we experience hardware or software failures, our members may abandon our
marketplace.

If we do not adequately maintain our members’ confidential information, our reputation could be harmed
and we could incur legal liability. ’

Any breach of security relating to our members’ confidential information could result in legal liability
for us and a reduction in use of cur trading exchange by our members, which could materially harm our
business. Our personnel receive highly confidential information from our members that is stored in our files
and on our computer systems. For example, we receive sensitive pricing and other information that could
be valuable to our members’ competitors if misappropriated. We enter into standard non-disclosure
agreements with all of our members.

Our security procedures may fail to adequately protect information that we are obligated to keep
confidential. We may be unable to successfully adopt effective systems for maintaining confidential
information. The risk of disclosing confidential information may grow as we add more members to our
trading exchange. If we fail to adequately maintain our members’ confidential information, some of our
members could end their business relationships with us and we could be subject o legal liability. This
would adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Qur new management team may not operate effectively or successfully implement our business plan.

We have only recently assembled our management team and instituted a management control
structure. Almost all of our executive officers have joined our management team since June 1999, We
cannot guarantee that our new management team will be able to operate effectively or implement
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successfully our business model. Qur new management team’s ability to manage our growth depends upon
many factors, including its ability to:

* maintain appropriate procedures, policies and systems to ensure that our marketplace operates in
accordance with our member’s expectations;

* satisfy our need for additional financing on reasonable terms; and

* manage the costs associated with expanding our infrastructure, including our marketplace, personnel
and facilities.

If management cannot successfully execute our strategic initiatives, our business may not be
successful.

The loss of key personnel would negatively impact our business,

Our expansion and development will be largely dependent upon the continued services of the following
members of our new management team: Carl McCutcheon, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer, Lawrance McAfee, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Fred Cook, our
Senior Vice President and General Manager - North America and the founder of our trading exchange,
and our other senior executives. The loss of the services of Mr. McCutcheon, Mr. McAfee or Mr. Cook
for any reason could have a material adverse effect on our business.

In addition, Mr. McCutcheon and Mr. McAfee will receive a specified portion of the proceeds from
this offering pursuant to a management incentive agreement. Pursuant to this agreement,
Mr. McCutcheon, Mr. McAfee and other current members of our management may receive a large cash
payment shortly after this offering. The total payment, up to a maximum of $9 million to members of
current management, will be based upon the average daily closing price of our common stock for the
90 day period immediately following the consummation of this offering and the number of shares of
common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis on the 90th day following the consummation of this
offering. If we are required to make the maximum payment under this agreement, Mr. McCutcheon and
Mr. McAfee will receive $3 million and $2.25 million, respectively. The receipt of these amounts by
Mr. McCutcheon, Mr. McAfee or other current members of our management following this offering may
hinder cur ability to retain them.

Our future success depends on our ability to attract, develop and retain qualified personnel.

Our future success depends in large part on our ability to hire, train and retain qualified employees.
Any inability to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees could hinder the growth
of our business. Skilled personnel are in short supply, and this shortage is likely to continue for some time.
As a result, competition for these people is intense, and the industry turnover rate for them is high.
Consequently, we may have difficulty hiring our desired numbers of qualified employees. Moreover, even if
we are able to expand our employee base, the resources required to attract and retain employees may
adversely affect our operating margins by increasing expenses associated with our employees,

If we fail to manage our business effectively, our revennes and results of operations may not meet
member and investor expectations,

We have rapidly expanded our operations and expect to continue to do so. This growth has placed,
and is expected to continue to place, a significant demand on our sales, marketing, managerial, operational,
financial and other resources. If we cannot manage our growth effectively, it is likely that our revenues and
results of operations will not meet investor cxpectations. From June 21, 1999 through February 15, 2000,
we grew from 13 to 56 employees. We expect to hire a number of new employees to support our business,
Our current information systems, procedures and controls may not be adequate to support our operations
which would hinder our ability to exploit the market for trading commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel
products over the Internet.

10



We may not be able to integrate successfully businesses or technologies that we may acquire in the
future.

We may acquire businesses, technologies, services or products that we believe are strategic to or
complement our business-to-business Internet-based business model. We do not currently bave any
understandings, commitments or agreements with respect to any acquisition, nor are we currently pursuing
any acquisition. We may not be able to identify, negotiate or finance any future acquisition successfully.
Even if we do succeed in acquiring a business, technology, service or product, we have no experience in
integrating an acquisition into our business. The process of integration may produce unforeseen operating
difficulties and expenditures and may absorb significant attention of our management that would otherwise
be available for the ongoing development of our business. Moreover, we may not achieve any of the
benefits that we might anticipate from a future acquisition. If we make future acquisitions, we may issue
shares of stock that dilute other stockholders, incur debt, assume contingent liabilities or create additional
expenses related to amortizing goodwill and other intangible assets, any of which might harm our financial
results and cause the price of our stock to decline. Any financing that we might need for future
acquisitions may only be available to us on terms that restrict our business or that impose on us costs that
reduce our net income.

Our international operations will be expensive and may not succeed.

We have limited experence in marketing, selling and supporting our marketplace in foreign countries.
The acquisition and development of those skills may be more difficuit or take longer than we anticipate,
especially due to language barriers and the fact that the Internet infrastructure in foreign countries may be
less developed than the Internet infrastructure in the United States. To date, we have not generated
significant revenues from international members. We currently maintain international offices in
Manchester, England, Singapore and Tokye, Japan, We intend to expand our international operations by
opening additional international offices and hiring additional international management, sales, marketing
and support personnel.

We may be unable to successfully market, sell, and support our marketplace internationally. If we are
unable to expand our international operations successfully and in a timely manner, our business could be
seriously harmed. We will need to devote significant management and financial resources to our
international expansion. In particular, we will have to attract and retain management, sales, marketing and
support personnel for our international offices. Competition for personnel experienced in these areas is
intense, and we may be unable to attract and retain qualified staff,

Our international operations are subject to a variety of risks that could harm our financial condition and
operating results.

Our intermational operations are subject to a variety of additional risks that coyld seriously harm our
financial condition and operating results. These risks include the following:

. the establishment of a market for Internet-based trading of commodity chemicals and other
products internationatly;

» global economic events;

«+ fluctuations in foreign currencies;

. unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

+ longer payment cycles and problems coliecting accounts receivable;

« reduced protection for inteliectual property and proprietary rights in some countries; and

« seasonal fuctuations in business activity in some international regions.
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We may not be able to continue to facilitate swap transactions under the Commodity Exchange Act.

We facilitate trading in financial derivatives known as swap agreements, in which the parties exchange
cash payments with reference to changes in the price of a commodity or another agreed benchmark. The
Commodity Exchange Act requires that trading in many instruments regulated by the U.S. Commodity
Futures Trading Commission, or CFTC, must be confined to CFTC-regulated “contract markets.”
However, swap agreements that meet the CFTC's exemption standards may be offered and entered into
without using a designated contract market. While these exemption standards are not free from ambiguity,
we believe that our swap program complies with these standards. In particular, we believe that the
participants on our exchange meet the criteria of “eligible swap participants” as defined by the CFTC.
Further, after matching offered terms on our exchange, participants must enter into bilateral swap
agreements offline in order to create legally binding swap transactions. If the CFTC were to challenge our
treatment of these transactions or take other actions that make the exemption unavailable to us, or if
Congress were to amend the Commodity Exchange Act in an adverse manner, our ability to offer a swap
program could be impaired or foreclosed, and past transactions could become subject to rescission, possibly
resulting in claims against us and the counterparties to those transactions. The occurrence of any of these
events would adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We could incur liability as a result of our arranging for the transportation of prodncts purchased and
sold on our trading exchange.

As an additional service for our members, we plan in the future to assist in arranging for the
transportation of the commodity chemicals, plastics and other products purchased and sold on our trading
exchange. While we will not take title to these products, we intend to provide one or more hyperlinks from
our trading exchange web site to web sites operated by one or more transporters of products purchased and
sold on our trading exchange. We believe our contractual arrangements with these transporters provide us
with full indemnification against any claims made against us. By arranging for transportation of these
products, however, we could become subject to claims for environmental cleanup costs, preperty damages
or personal injuries in connection with a release or spill of these products while they are in tramsit. Any
such claim may result in considerable expense to us and divert our management’s atiention from our
business and, in the event that our contractual rights are not upheld ir court, may subject us to significant
liability.

We may become subject to liability for information displayed on our web sites that requires us to defend
against legal claims. :

An array of information Tesources are available on our web sites to our exchange members and users
of our information resources. We may be subject to-claims for defamation, libel, copyright or trademark
infringement or based on other theories relating to the information we publish on our web sites. These
types of claims have been brought, sometimes successfully, against online services as well as other print
publications in the past. We could also be subject to claims based upon the content that ts accessible from
our web sites through links to other web sites. Qur insurance may not adequately protect us against these
claims. Any costs incurred as a result of these claims could negatively affect our business, revenues, resuits
of operations and financial conditicn.

We may incur significant costs to defend or establish our intellectual property and proprietary rights.

We cannot guarantee that the steps we have taken or will take to protect our proprietary rights will be
adequate to deter misappropriation of our intellectual property. In addition, we may not be able to detect
unauthorized use of our intellectual property and take appropriate steps to enforce our rights. If third
parties infringe or misappropriate our trade sccrets, copyrights, trademarks or other proprietary information,
our business could be seriously harmed. In addition, although we believe that our proprietary tights do not
infringe the intellectual property rights of others, other parties may assert infringement claims against us or
claim that we have violated their intellectual property rights. Infringement claims, even if not true, could
result in significant legal and other costs and may be a distraction to management. In addition, protection
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of intellectual property in many foreign countrics is weaker and less reliable than in the Urited States, so

if our business expands into foreign countries, risks associated with protecting our inteliectual property will
increase.

Undetected Year 2000 compliance issues could still harm our business.

Qur business may suffer as a result of defects refating to Year 2000 compliance issues that have not
yet been detected. The hardware and software systems that are central to our marketplace are vulnerable
to interruption from power failures, telecommunications outages, and network service outages. Our trading
exchange and information resource center could fail to function properly in the event that third party
service providers we rely upon encounter Year 2000 problems. If this happens, it could result in liability to
us or adversely affect our business, revenues, results of operations and financial condition.

RiskS RELATED TO INTERNET-BASED BUSINESSES

Qur success depends on the continued adoption of the Internet as a means for commerce.

Qur future success depends heavily on the continued adoption of the Internet as 2 means for
commerce, The widespread acceptance and adoption of the Internet for conducting busiress is likely only
in the event that the Internet provides businesses with- preater efficiencies and other advantages. If
commerce on the Internet does not coatinue to grow, or grows more slowly than expected, our growth
would decline and our business would be seriously harmed. Businesses may reject the Internet as a viable
commercial medium for a number of reasons, including:

+ potentially inadequate network infrastmeture;
» delay in the development of Internet enabling technologies and performance improvements;

* delay in the development or adoption of new standards and protocols required to handle increased
levels of Internet activity;

+ delay in the development of security and authentication technology necessary to effect secure
transmission of confidential information;

+ change in, or insufficient availability of, telecommunications services to support the Internet; and
+ failure of companics to meet their customers’ expectations in delivering goods and services over the

Intemnet.

Increasing government regulation could affect our business.

We are subject to laws and regulations directly applicable to general business as well as e-commerce.
State, federal and foreign governments may adopt new and cumbersome laws and regulations relating to
e-commerce. Any such legislation or regulation could dampen the growth of the Internet and decrease its
acceptance as a communications and commercial medium. If such a decline occurs, companies may decide
in the future not to use our services as an electronic business channel. This decrease in the demand for our
services would seriously harm our business and operating results,

Any new laws and regulations may govern or restrict any of the following issues:
+ user privacy;

+ the pricing and taxation of goods and services offered over the Internet;

« the content of web sites;

« consumer protection; and

= the characteristics and quality of products and services offered over the Internet.
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Sccurity risks and concerns may deter the nse of the Internet for conducting commerce,

Concern about the security of the transmission of confidential information over public networks is a
significant barrier to e-commerce and communication. Advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries
in the field of cryptography or other events or developments could result in compromises or breackes of
Internet security systems that protect proprietary information. If any well-publicized compromises of
security were to occur, they could substantially reduce the use of the Internet for commerce and
cornmunications.

Anyone who circumvents our security measures could misappropsiate proprietary information or cause
interruptions in our services or operations. Our activities involve the storage and transmission of proprietary
information, such as confidential buyer and supplier information. The Internet is a public network, and
data is sent over this network from many sources. In the past, computer viruses have been distributed and
have rapidly spread over the Internet. Computer viruses could be introduced into our systems or those of
our members, which could disrupt our trading exchange technology or make it inaccessible to our
members. We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against the
threat of, or to alleviate problems caused by, security breaches and the introduction of computer viruses,
Our security measures may be inadequate to prevent security breaches or combat the introduction of
computer viruses, either of which may result in loss of data, increased operating costs, litigation and
possible liability.

Risks RELATED TO THIS OFFERING AND THE SECURITIES MARKETS

Qur stock price may be volatile because our shares have not been publicly traded previously.

Prior to this offering, you could not buy or sell our common stock publicly. Accordingly, we cannot
assure you that an active public trading market for our stock will develop or be sustained after this
offering. The market price after this offering may vary significantly from the initial offering price in
response to any of the following factors, some of which are beyend our control:

» changes in financial estimates or investment recommendations by securities analysts relating to our
stock;

+ changes in market valuations of other e-commerce marketplaces, software and service providers or
other electronic businesses;

« announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisttions, strategic partnerships,
joint ventures or capital commitments;

+ loss of significant members;
= additicns or departures of key personnel; and

+ fluctuvations in the stock market price and volume of traded shares generally, especially fluctuations
in the traditionally volatile technology and Internet sectors.

Our stock will likely be subject to substantial price and volume fluctuations that may prevent you from
reselling your shares at a profit.

The securities markets have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations, and the market
prices of the securities of technology and Internet companies have been especially volatile. This market
volatility, as well as general economic, market or political conditions, could reduce the market price of our
common stock in spite of our operating performance. In addition, our operating results could be below the
expectations of public market analysts and investors, and in response the market price of our commor
stock could decrease significantly. Investors may be unable to resell their shares of our common stock at or
above the offering price. In the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of
their stock have been the object of securities class action litigation. If we were the object of securities class
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action litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s attention and
Tesources.

We have broad discretion in how we use the proceeds of this offering, and we may not use the proceeds
effectively.

QOur management could spend the proceeds from this offering in ways with which our stockholders
may not agree. Qur primary purpose in conducting this offering is to create a public market for our
common stock. As of the date of this prospectus, we plan to use the proceeds from this offering for
working capital and other corporate purposes as described under “Use of Proceeds” elsewhere in this -
prospectus. We may also use the proceeds in future strategic acquisitions but do not at present have any
acquisitions planned. Untit we need to use the proceeds of this offering, we plan to invest the net proceeds
in short-term, investment grade, interest-bearing securities. We cannot predict that the proceeds from this
offering will be invested to yield a favorable return.

Qur officers and directors and affiliated persons influence our business and hold a substantial portion of
our stock and could reject mergers or other business combinations that you may believe are desirable,

We anticipate that our executive officers, directors and individuals or entities affiliated with our
executive officers and directors will beneficially own approximately % of our outstanding common
stock as a group following the consummation of this offering. Acting together, these stockholders would be
able to significantly influence matters that our stockholders vote upon, including the election of directors
and mergers or other business combinations. '

We may need to raise additional capital, which may not be arailable.

We expect that the net proceeds from this offering and our existing cask balances will be sufficient to
meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs excluding acquisitions for at least two years. After
that, we may need to raise additional funds, and we cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain
additional financing on favorable terms or at all. If we need additional capital and cannot raise it on
acceptable terms, we may not be able to:

« open new offices;

+ create additional market-specific business units;

+ enhance our infrastructure and leveragable assets;

» hire, train and retain employees;

» respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated requirements; or
+ pursue acquisition opportunities.

Qur failure to do any of these things could seriously harm our financial condition. Further, any
additional capital raised through the sale of equity may dilute your ownership percentage in us.

We have various mechanisms in place to discourage takeover attempts, which may reduce or eliminate
vour ability to sell your shares for a premium in a change of control transaction.

Yarious provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of CheMatch that a stockholder may consider favorable. These provisions include:

+ authorizing the issuance of “blank check™ preferred stock that could be issued by our board of
directors to increase the number of outstanding shares and thwart a takeover attempt;

» prohibiting cumulative voting in the election of directors, which would otherwise aliow less than a
majority of stockholders to elect director candidates;
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» requiring super-majority voting to effect certain amendments 10 our certificate of incorporation and
bylaws;

« limiting who may call special meetings of stockholders;

« prohibiting stockholder actien by written consent, whick requires all actions to be taken at a
meeting of the stockholders; and

+ establishing advance notice requirements for nominations of candidates for election to the board of
directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may inhibit potential acquisition bids.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may inhibit potential acquisition bids for our
company, Upon completion of this offering, we will be subject ta the antitakeover provisions of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, which regulate corporate acquisitions. Delaware law will prevent us
from engaging, under certain circumstances, in 2 “business combination” with any “interested stockholder”
for three years following the date that the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder unless
our board of directors or a supermajority of our uninterested stockholders agree. For purposes of Delaware
law, a “business combination” in¢ludes a merger or consalidation involving us and the interested
stockholder and the sale of more than 10% of cur assets. In general, Delaware law defines an “interested
stockholder” as any holder beneficially owning 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of a
corporation and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by the holder. Under
Delaware law, a corporaticn may opt out of the foregoing antitakeover provisions. We do not intend to opt
out of the antitakeover provisions of Delaware Law,

Purchasers in this offering will incur immediate and substantial dilution.

The initial public offering price of cur common stock will be substantially higher than the book value
per share of our outstanding commen stock. As a result, if we were liquidated for book value immediately
following this offering, each stockholder purchasing in this offering would receive less than the price they
paid for their common stock.

Shares becoming available for sale could affect our stock price and dilute your ownership in us.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of common stock after this offering, or the perception that
such sales could occur, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock and could impair our
ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities. Immediately after this offering,
affiliates and holders of restricted securities, as defined in Rule 144 of the Securities Act, will own

shares, representing approximately % of the outstanding shares of common stock. A decision by
such persons to sell shares of common stock could adversely affect the trading price of the common stock,
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements under “Prospectus Summary,” “Risk Factors,” *Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” “Business™ and elsewhere in this
prospectus constitute forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking statements on our
current expectations, which are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions. They
include statements relating to:

= future revenues, expenses and profitability;
o the development and growth of the business-to-business commerce over the Internet;

+ the perceived benefits to purchasers and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products
associated with an online marketplace;

+ the market liquidity and costs efficiencies associated with an online trading solution for purchasers
and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products;

» our ability to successfully execute our business model and our business strategy;

« our ability to identify trends within the chemical industry and to offer products and services that
meet the changing needs of our members and the market; and

« trends in government regulation.

You can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” *“should,” “could,”
“expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” *predicts,” “potential” or “continue”
or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions.
Actual events or results may differ materally from those suggested by these forward-locking statements. In
evaluating these statements, you should carefully consider the risks outlined under “Risk Factors.”

We are under no duty to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this
prospectus to conform such statements to actual results and do not intend to do so.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds from the sale of the shares of common stock offered by us
will be approximately $ miilion, at our assumed initial public offering price of § per share, and
after deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses. If the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, we estimate that the net proceeds will be
approximately $ million, after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and
unreimbursed offering expenses.

The primary purposes of this offering are to obtain additional equity capital, create a public market
for the common stock, facilitate future access to public markets and increase our visibility in the
marketplace. We expect to use the net proceeds from this offering to expand our sales and marketing
efforts, enhance our technology, add to our online marketplace and for working capital and general
corporate purposes. We also may use a portion of the net proceeds of this offering to acquire or invest in
complementary businesses or tecknologies, although we presently have ne plans, commitments or
agrecments respecting any acquisitions or investments. Pending these uses, the net proceeds of this offering
will be invested in short-term, investment grade, interest-bearing securities.

Additionally, pursuant to a management incentive agreement a portion of the proceeds from this
offering will be paid to current and former members of our management team and to current employees,
up to a maximum of $9 million to current officers and employees, and a maximum of $6 million to two of
our former executives. The portion of the net proceeds payable to these individuals will be two percent of
the average daily closing price of our commeon stock for the 90 day period immediately following the
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consummation of this offering, multiplied by the number of shares of commen stock outstanding on a fully
diluted basis on the 90th day immediately following the consummation of this offering.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock since our inception, and de not
anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Instead, we currently expect to
retain our earnings, if any, to finance our business and to use for general corporate purposes. Our board of
directors has the authority to declare and pay dividends en the common stock, in its discretion, as long as
there are funds legally available to do so.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following tabic sets forth our capitalization as of December 31, 1999. The pro ferma information
reflects the assumed net exercise of all outstanding warrants for the purchase of convertible preferred stock
and the conversion of all shares of convertible preferred stock into 11,083,111 shares of common stock and
includes the effect of the net exercise of 482,571 common stock warrants into 428,845 shares of common
stock. The pro forma as adjusted information reflects the receipt of $ million of estimated net
proceeds from the sale by us of shares of common stock in this offering at an assumed initial public
offering price of $ per share, after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and commissions
and estimated unreimbursed offering expenses, This table should be read in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the
financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this prospectus.

As of December 31, 1999

Pro Fonma
Pro Forma  As Adjusted
Actual (Uraudited) (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share data)
Cash and cash equivalents ..........coiiiii i nraninnn.n. $ 30,170 % 30,170 %

Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock:

Series A convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value,

3,742 200 shares authorized; 2,138,400 shares issued and

outstanding, actual; no shares issued and outstanding, pro

[ 763 v R R 51748 § — b3
Series B convertible preferred stock, $.0F par value,

3,556,350 shares autherized; 2,032,200 shares issued and

outstanding, actual; no shares issued and outstanding, pro

{0 ' - 16,809 —
Series C convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value,

6,130,547 shares authorized; 3,503,169 shares issued and

outstanding, actual; no shares issued and outstanding, pro

 {e) g+ - KA 32,654 —

Stockholders’ equity (deficit):

Common stock, $.01 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized;
4,304,959 shares issued and outstanding, actual;
15,816,915 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma

Additional paid-in capital

........... 43 158
.................................... 11,416 78,252

Notes receivable from employees .. .. oovv v iiinineiininvnn (822) (322)
Deferred stock compensation .. ...t iiiiii i, (2,130) (2,130)
Accumulated deficit ... i (37,830) (37,830)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) .. ... ... ... ... ... cv... (29,323) 37,628
Total capitaliZation . . ........ueneeeeennn .. P $ 37628 $ 37628

The foregoing table excludes 397,440 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding
warrants that will remain outstanding upen consurnmation of this offering. The pro forma data in the
foregeing table also excludes the effect of the issuance of 929,523 shares of common stock to certain
strategic investors during February 2000.
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DILUTION

The pro forma net tangible book value of our common stock as of February 16, 1999, was
$ million or approximately $ per share. Pro forma net tangible book value per share represents
the amount of our stockholders’ equity less intangible assets, divided by shares of
outstanding common stock, after giving effect to the net excrcise of all outstanding warrants for the
purchase of convertible preferred stock, the conversion of all shares of convertible preferred stock into
shares of common stock and the net exercise of 482,571 commeon stock warrants into 428,845 shares of
common stock, :

Pro forma net tangible book value dilution per share to new investors represents the difference
between the amount per share paid by purchasers of common stock in this offering and the pro forma net
tangible book value per share of common stock immediately after completion of this offering, After giving
effect to the sale by us of shares of common stock in this offering at an assumed initial
offering price of $ per share and after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated offering expenses and the application of the estimated net proceeds from this
offering, our pro forma net tangible book value as of February 16, would have been § , O
3 per share. This represents an immediate increase in net tangible book value of $ per share to
existing stockholders and an immediate dilution in net tangible book value of $ per share to
purchasers of common stock in this offering. The following table illustrates the per share dilution:

Assumed initial public offering price pershare ........ ... ... i ... 3
Pro forma net tangible book value per share as of February 16............. $
Increase per share attributable to new investors. . ...........ovvevunen...

Pro forma net tangible book value per share after this offering ...............

Dilution per share t0 new Investors ... ... .ottt i eraeernenns $

The following table illustrates on a pro forma basis as of February 16, the difference between the
number of shares of common stock puerchased from us, the total consideration paid to us and the average
price paid by existing stockholders and by the new investors purchasing shares of common stock in this
offering, before deduction of estimated discounts and commission and estimated offering expenses payable
by us:

Shares Purchased Total Consideration Average Price
_ Number - Percent Amount Percent Per Share
Existing stockholders ............ . % % % $
Newinvestors .......oovvvenn... .
Total ..o, % % % $

The foregoing table excludes 4,482,556 shares of common stock to be issued upon the exercise of
options outstanding under our stock option plans as of February 16 at a weighted average price of
$7.09 per share and 397,440 shares of common stock which will be issuable upon exercise of common
stock warrants at a weighted average price of $3.33 per share. If these outstanding options and warrants
are exercised, new investors will be further diluted.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations data for the year ended December 31, 1999, combine
the historical statements of operations of CheMatch, PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. as if the acquisition of
PetroChemNet, Inc., and CheMatch, Inc., which occurred on June 21, 1999, had been completed on January 1, 1999.
The total cost of the acquisitions was approximately $5.2 million and has been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. The unaudited pro forma statement of operations and the accompanying notes should be read
in conjunction with the historical financial statements and the related notes of CheMatch, PetroChemNet, Inc. and
CheMatch, Inc. and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

The pro forma adjustments reflecting the consummation of the acquisitions are based on the purchase method of
accounting, available financial information and the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Depreciation and amortization expense has been adjusted to reflect the amortization of goodwill related to the excess
of purchase price over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as if the acquisitions had occurred on
January 1, 1999,

The unaudited pro forma financial data for the year ended December 31, 1999 excludes the effect of the issuance
of 929,523 shares of common stock to certain strategic investors during February 2000.

The unaudited pro forma financial data for the year ended December 31, 1999, does not purport to represent
what the actual results of the combined businesses would have been if the acquisitions of PetroChemNet, Inc. and

CheMatch, Inc. had occurred on January 1, 1999, nor does this information purport to project the results for any
future peried.

CheMatch.com, Inc.
PetroChemNet, Inc.  CheMateh, loc, June 21, 1999

January 1, 1999 Janoary 1, 1999 (Irception) Pro Forma
Through Threugh Throcgh Pro Forma Year Ended

Junc 20, 1999 June 20, 1999 December 31, 1999 Adjustments December 31, 1999
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited)

(In thousands, except skare and per share data)
Statement of Operations Diata:

Revenues ........ ... .. ... § 1t $ 80 3 i82 $— 3 3
Costs and expenses:

Technology costs . ............... 149 20 2,302 —_ 2,471

Selling and marketing ............ 70 — 2,381 — 2,451

General and administrative . ....... 657 48 3,536 _ 4,241

Stock-based compensation ........ S0 — 93 — 143

Depreciation and amortization . ... . 82 23 431 271 807

Total costs and expenses. ... 1,008 5 8743 2 _1o,i13

Operating loss ..............0.v... (897) (11) (8,561) (271) {9,740)

Interest income {expense) ........ ()] _ (&) 236 = 22
MNetloss.....ooiiinininiinnna.. {903} {19) (8,325 (271) (9,518}
Accretion of redeemable convertible

preferred stock to redemption

value ... — — {29,505} — (29,5035)
Net loss available to common i - :

stockholders .. .................. $ (903} $(19} $(37,830) $(271) $(39,023)
Net loss per share, basic

anddiluted ......... .. ..., $ (12.89)

Pro forma net loss per share adjusted

for the assumed net exercise of all

convertible preferred stock warrants,

the conversion of all convertible

preferred stock and the net exercise

of 482,571 common stock warrants

into 428,845 shares of common

stock, basic and diluted........... (1.17)
Shares used to compute net loss per

comrmon share;

Basic and diluted . ............... 1,026,581
Shares used to compute pro forma net

loss per share adjusted for the

assumed net exercise of all

convertible prefemed stock warrants,

the conversion of all convertible

preferred stock and the net exercise

of 482,571 common stock warrants

into 428,845 shares of common

stock, basic and diluted . .......... 8,123,497

21



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the selected consolidated financial data set forth below along with “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and with our consolidated financial statements and
related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The pro forma share amounts reflect the assumed exercise of all
outstanding warrants for the purchase of convertible preferred stock, the conversion of 21l convertible preferred stock
inte common stock and the net exercise of 482,571 warrants to purchase common stock into 428,845 shares of
common stock. The statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1998, and for the period
from January 1, 1999 through June 20, 1999, and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 1997 and 1998 and
June 20, 1999, have been derived from the audited financial statements and notes appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus for our predecessor, PetroChemNet, Inc. The consolidated statement of operations data for the period from
June 2i, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31,
1999, have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and notes appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus. The selected unaudited pro forma financial data present data for CheMatch, adjusted for the effects of the
acquisitions of PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. as if the{‘ had been completed on January 1, 1999. See the
unaudited pro forma statements of operations data included elsewhere in this prospectus. The historical results are not
necessarily indicative of the operating results to be expected in the future,

Jupe 21,
Tred Compary (In 195:? ) Pro F
Year Eoded Janwary 1, Throvgh Year Euded
December 31, 1959, Through | Decombes 31,  Desember oL,
1997 1998 June 20, 1999 1999 1959
{Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share {In thousands, except share
and per share data) and per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues .. ... i it c i $ 84l § 698 ] 111 5 182 $ 373
Costs and expenses: )
Technology COSIS ..oty iiiriiaanenann.. a0 631 149 2,302 2471
Selling and marketing ................ 222 176 70 2,381 2,451
General and administrative 246 588 657 3,536 4,241
Stock-based compensation 239 1,577 50 93 143
Depreciation and amortization ..................... 144 161 82 431 807
Total costs and expenses .....oovvvvnnenn.... 1,752 3,233 1,008 8,743 10,113
Ot e S, el (2,535) (897) (8,561) {9,740)
Interest income (€Xpense) .....ovvniviiiiniiiiinnnns {16} (14) {6) 236 222
Net 1oss . e e (927} (2,549} (503) {8.325) (9,518}
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock to
redemption value .. ..o .ol i — — — {29,505) {29,505)
Net loss available to common stockholders ............ (927)  § (2,549) 5 {903) ${37,830) $(39,023)
Net lass per share, basic and diluted ... ... e $(177.65)  $(440.09)  $(132.72) $ (11.61) $ (12.89)
Pro forma aet loss per share adjusted for the assumed
cxercise of all convertible preferred stock warrants, the
conversion of outstanding converiible preferred stock
and the net exercise of 482,571 common stock warrants
into 428,845 shares of common stock, basic and diluted {1.17)
Shares used to compute net loss per share, basic and
diluted ..., e 5218 5,792 6,804 3,258,966 3,026,581
Shares used to compute pro forma net loss per share
adjusted for the assumed exercise of all convertible
preferred stock warrants, the conversion of outstanding
convertible preferred stock and the pet excrcise of .
482,571 commen stock warrants into 428,845 shares of
common stock, basic and diluted . _.._.............. 8,123,497
Predecessor Conmpany
As of As of
December 31, Jume 20, As of Pecember 31, 1999
1997 1998 1999 Actual Pro Forma
{Unaudited)
) {In thousands) (In thousaads)
Caonsolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ..............c..ccvuen.... $ 210 5 2 3 49 $ 30,170 $ 30,170
Working capital (deficit) ..............oviininin.... (262) (691} {1,087} 28,148 28,148
Total aS5elS . ... vit v e 818 377 498 40,768 40,768
Total convertible preferred stock ..................... — — — 66,951 —
Total stockholders' equity (deficit) ................... 138 (432) (695} {29,323) 37,628

The foregoing table excludes 397,440 shares of comnion stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding warrants,
which will remain outstanding upon consummation of this offering. The pro forma data in _thc foregoing table also
excludes the effect of the issuance of 929,523 shares of common stock to certain strategic investors during
February 2000.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data,” “Summary
Financial Data™ and our financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.
This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Qur actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including, but not limited 1o, those set forth under “Risk Factors”
and elsewhere in this prospectus,

OVERVIEW

CheMatch is a leading business-to-business Internet-based marketplace for purchasers and sellers of
commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products. Our marketplace is centered around a real-time,
interactive trading exchange, where our members bid, offer and negotiate online for the purchase and sale
of products 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Members of our secure, neutral exchange trade products
anonymously, utilizing real-time pricing and other market information provided through our exchange.
Members are pre-qualified by us and pre-selected by each other before trading on our exchange. Qur
members include more than 125 of the world’s leading chemical companies and other leading purchasers
and sellers of commedity. chemicals, plastics and fue! preducts, including traders, distributors, brokers,
manufacturers and other end users.

We incorporated in Delaware on June 21, 1999 as PetroChemNet Holdings, Inc. On November 29,
1999, we changed cur name to CheMatch.com, Inc. As a result of a series of corporate transactions that
occurred on June 21, 1999, we acquired PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. These transactions were
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed of $5.8 million was allocated to goodwill and will be amortized over
a ten-year peried.

CheMatch generates revenues from commissions typically paid by each party to a transaction on our
exchange. CheMatch also generates revenues from subseription fees related to our Internet-based
information resources. Commissions are based on the volume of chemicals traded on the exchange and
recognized as reverue in the period the transaction is completed. Revenue from subscription fees is
recognized ratably over the term of the subscription, which is normally one year. Commissions payable by
members on our trading exchange are currently calculated based on a formula of a fraction of cents per
gallon or pound or metric ton equivalent of product traded. Typically, the commission is payable by both
parties to a transaction. Additionally, as we continue to expand the products offered on our system and add
new members, we expect to have the flexibility to charge commissions based on weight or volume on a
product-by-product basis or by member. Since our commission structure is currently based on the weight
or volume of products traded, the commissions we receive are not directly affected by fluctuations in the
market prices of products traded over our exchange.

Our costs and expenses consist primarily of (i) salaries and wages for sales and marketing, technology
and administrative personnel (ii) marketing and advertising costs to promote our interactive trading
exchange and information resource to the petrochemical industry and (iii} technology costs to maintain
and enhance our systems. We intend to continuze to increase these costs to expand our business.

We have entered into strategic relationships with several companies, including Bayer AG, Computer
Sciences Corporation, E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, General Electric Company and Muehlstein
Holding Corporation to build our membership, to increase the trading volume on our exchange and to
generally enhance our trading exchange. In addition, we have strategic relationships with Stolt-Nielsen
Transportation Group Ltd. to facilitate logistics, with DeWitt & Company, Incorporated and William
Heinemann, Inc., a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier ple to provide information services, and with eCredit.com
and TownsendTarnell, Inc. to provide credit and other services. We helieve these strategic relationships
will help establish CheMatch as the leading Internet-based exchange for the chemical industry. We have

23



provided several of our members with trading concessions and other incentives to transact business on our
trading exchange. In the near term, these concessions and incentives may temporarily increase the level of
activity on our trading exchange without a corresponding increase in revenue.

CaeMAaTcH.CcOM, INC.

Period June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999
Results of Operations

Revenues

Revenues for the period June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999 were $0.2 million,
which consisted of $0.1 million of revenues generated from commissions on trades completed on our
trading exchange and $0.1 million of subscriptions sold on our information resources web site.

Costs and Expenses

Technology Costs. Technology costs totaled $2.3 million for the period June 21, 1999 (inception)
through December 31, 1999. These costs consisted of expenses to maintain and upgrade our web sites.

Selling and Marketing. Selling and marketing costs totaled $2.4 million for the period June 21, 1999
(inception) through December 31, 1999. These costs consisted of expenses for direct advertising and costs
related to the formation and expansion of our sales and marketing department.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses totaled $3.5 million for the perod
June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999 and consisted primarily of costs for executive and
administrative staff,

Stock-based Compensation. During the period June 21, 1999 (inception} through December 31,
1999, we recorded $2.2 million of deferred stock compensation expense in connection with certain stock
options granted to employees. We are amortizing deferred stock compensation expense over the vesting
periods of the related options, which is typically four years. For the period June 21, 1999 (inception)
through December 31, 1999 we recorded stock-based compensation expense of $0.1 million related to
deferred stock compensation. We estimate annual stock-based compensation expense will be approximately
$0.6 million related to previously granted stock options.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $0.4 million for the
period June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999 and consisted primarily of $0.3 million
goodwill amortization related to the merger with PetroChemNet, Inc. and the acquisition of CheMatch,
Inc. The remaining expenses consisted of depreciation and amortization of computer software, equipment
and furniture and fixtures.

Interest Income

Interest income for the period June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999 totaled
$0.2 million as a result of cash and cash equivalents being invested during the peried.

Lignidity and Capital Resonrces

Since inception, we have financed operations primarily from the sale of convertible preferred stock
and the issuance of common stock. As of December 31, 1999, CheMatch had $30.2 million in cash and
cash equivalents and $28.1 millien in working capital.

Since inception, we have incurred significant negative cash flow from operations. For the period
June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999, cash used in operating activities was $5.5 million.
Cash used in operating activities was principally for marketing and development of our trading exchange,
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development of a sales force and cstablishment of administrative and technology staff to support our
growth. We expect to continue to incur negative cash flows in the future.

Cash used in investing activities during the period June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31,
1999 was $2.6 million. Cash used in investing activities consisted of $1.6 million in capital expenditures
related to the purchase and development of software and equipment related to upgrading cur system and
opening of offices to support our growth.

Cash provided by financing activities during the period June 21, 1999 (inception) through
December 31, 1999 was $38.3 million. This amount consisted primarily of the proceeds from the sale of
convertible preferred stock and issuance of commeon stock. A summary of these transactions is as follows:

« On June 21, 1999, we sold 2,138,400 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants
te purchase 1,603,800 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock for approximately $5 million.

« On September 27, 1999, we sold 2,032,200 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and
warrants to purchase 1,524,150 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock for approximately
$5 million,

« On QOctober 6, 1999, we sold 191,080 shares of common stock for approximately $1 million to
Computer Sciences Corporation in conjunctien with our entering into a strategic alliance.

« On November 24, 1999, we issued 636,943 shares of common stock for $6,369 to E.I. duPont
de Nemours and Company in conjunction with our entering into a strategic alliance, pursuant to
which duPont agreed to provide future goods and services with a value estimated by the Company
of approximately $3.3 million. Additionally, duPont purchased 891,716 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 668,787 shares of Series C Convertible
Preferred Stock for approximately $7 million.

+ On November 24, 1999, we sold an additional 2,611,453 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred
Stock and warrants to purchase 1,958,591 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock for
approximately $20.5 million.

Additionally, following December 31, 1999, we have issued a total of 929,523 shares of common
stock to various strategic investors. A summary of these transactions is as follows:

+ On February 5, 2000, we sold 204,291 shares of our common stock to Muehlstein Holding
Corporation for approximately $1 million and a promissory note in aggregate principal amount of
approximately $1 million. The promissory note, which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per
year, is payable in eight consecutive quarterly installments, commencing April 1, 2000.

« On February 11, 2000, we sold 153,218 shares of our common stock to William Heinemann, Inc., a
subsidiary of Reed Elsevier pic, for approximately $1.5 mitlion.

« On February 14, 2000, we sold 306,435 shares of our common stock to General Electric Company
for $3,064 and a promissory note in aggregate principal amount of approximately $2 million in
conjunction with our entering into a strategic alliance, pursuvant to which General Electric agreed to
provide future services with a value estimated by the Company of approximately $1 million. The
promissory note, which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per year, is payable on or before
December 31, 2001.

+ On February i4, 2000, we sold 204,291 shares of our common stock to Bayer AG for approximately
$2 million.

« On February 16, 2000, we sold 61,288 shares of our common stock to TownsendTarnell, Inc. for
$613 and a promissory note in aggregate principal amount of approximately $0.6 million. The
promissory note, which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per year, is payable in twelve
consecutive monthly installments, commencing February 1, 2000.

Pursuant to a management incentive agreement, a portion of the proceeds from this offering will be
paid to current and former members of our management team and to current employees. The portion of
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the net proceeds payable to these individuals will be two percent of the average daily closing price of our
common stock for the 90 day period immediately following the consummation of this offering, multiplied
by the number of shares of common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis on the 90th day

immediately following the consummation of this offering. The maximum amount payable under the
management incentive agreement is $15 miliion.

We have generated only immaterial revenues to date and our ability to generate significant revenues is
uncertain. We have incurred significant losses since our inception on June 21, 1999. We currently expect
our losses to increase in the future and we cannot assure that we will ever achieve or sustain profitability.

We expect to experience significant growth in our costs and expenses, particularly technology
development and sales and marketing expenses, for the foreseeable future in order to execute our business
plan. As a result, we anticipate that such costs and expenses, as well as planned capital expenditures, will
constitute a material use of our cash resources. In addition, we may utilize cash resources to fund
acquisitions or investments in complementary businesses, technologies or product lines. We believe that
our current cash balance and the net proceeds from the sale of the common stock in this offering will be
sufficient to meet our working capital and operating resource expenditure requirements for at least the next
two years. Thereafter, we may find it necessary to obtain additional equity or debt financing. We may also
be required to raise additional financing before such time to finance acquisitions or operations. In the event
additional financing is required, we may not be able to raise it on acceptable terms or at all.

Year 2000

Our business may suffer as a result of defects relating to Year 2000 compliance issues that have not
yet been detected. The hardware and software systems that are central to our marketplace are vulnerable
to interruptien from power failures, telecommunications outages, and network service outages. Our trading
exchange and information resource center could fail to function properly in the event that third party
service providers we rely upon encounter Year 2000 problems.

PETROCHEMNNET, INC.
Years Ended December 31, 1997 and 1998
Results of Operations

The following table sets forth statcmcnt of operatlons data for each of the comparative periods
indicated:

For the Year Fnded
December 31,
1997 1998
(In thousands)
L . O $ 841 § 658
Costs and expenses:
Techmology costs .. ... . e 501 631
Selling and marketing . ... .. ... it e, 222 176
General and administrative .. ....... ... ... i, 246 688
Stock-based compensation . . ... ... 239 1,577
Depreciation and amortization. ........... .ot i i 144 161
Total costs and exXpenses .........coei i, 1,752 3,233
OPeratng 108S ..ottt it e e e e e (911)  (2,535)
Inferest eXpense . . oottt e (16) (14)
] g oL T 0927 3(2,549)




Revenues

Revenues decreased $0.1 million, or 17%, from $0.8 million in 1997 to $0.7 million in 1998. This
decrease was due to lower third-party web site development service revenue partially offset by higher
subscription revenues. Subscription revenues increased $0.1 million from $0.1 million in 1997 to
$0.2 million in 1998 due to increased activity on PetroChemNet’s information resource network.
PetroChemNet previously provided web site development service activities for third parties, which was
suspended in 1998. Web site development service revenue decreased accordingly by $0.3 million from
30.8 million in 1997 to $0.5 million in 1998.

Costs and Expenses

Technology Costs. Technology costs decreased $0.3 million, or 30%, from $0.9 million in 1997 to
$0.6 million in 1998. The decrease was due to lower costs related to web site development service activities
for third parties, which was suspended in 1998,

Selling and Marketing. Selling and marketing expenses decreased $46,000, or 21%, from $0.2 miliion
in 1997 to $0.2 million in 1998. The decrease was due to lower costs related to web site development
service activities partially offset by higher expenses related to increased subscription activity in 1998 on our
information resource network,

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses increased $0.5 million, or 180%,
from $0.2 million in 1997 to $0.7 million in 1998. The increase was primarily due to higher labor-related
costs and consulting costs related to expanding PetroChemNet’s information resource network,

Stock-based Compensarion. Stock-based compensation expenses increased $1.4 million from
$0.2 million in 1997 to $1.6 million in 1998, The $1.4 million increase in compensation expense was due 1o
PetroChemNet granting a greater amount of stock options to employees and consultants during 1998.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $0.1 million, or
12%, from $0.1 million in 1997 to $0.2 million in 1998. The increase was due to higher depreciation
expense on equipment and software purchased in 1997 and 1998,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash used in operating activities was $0.2 million and $0.5 million in 1997 and 1998, respectively.
Net cash flows from operating activities in each period reflect increasing net losses offset by non-cash
compensation charges related to stock options granted to employees,

Net cash used in investing activities was $0.4 million and $20,000 in 1997 and 1998, respectively.
Cash used 1 investing activities primarily reflects capital expenditures for the purchase of property and
equipment. Additionally, in 1997, capital expenditures included the acquisition of a customer list for
$0.3 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $0.8 million and $0.4 million in 1997 and 1998,
respectively. Cash provided by financing activities consisted primarily of proceeds from issuance of
common stock, capital contributions and debt.
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CHEMATCH, INC.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth statement of operations data for each of the comparative periods
indicated;
March 10, 1997

(Inception) Three Months
Through Year Ended Ended

December 31, December 31, _March 31,

1997 1998 1998 1999

{Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Revenues .........oo.viiiiiiiiiii.... et § — I 84 $£13 %33
Costs and expenses:

Technology costs .......ovviiiii i, 1 30 7 2
General and administrative. ... ......co.viinnrinenn., 107 104 28 45
Depreciation and amortization . ... .. ... .vivvanennn.. 2 41 10 11
Total costs and expenses................... e 110 175 45 58
OPeratiig 1085 - ..o i v e nir e ir et e (110) (91) {(32) (2%
B A e 11 T (5) (18) (4) (4)
Loss before income taxes ...t iiiiiiai., (115} (109) (36) (29
Benefit of income taxes........ ...t 30 — — —
Net 1088, . oo e e e $ (85) $0109) $(36) $(29)

Three months ended March 31, 1998 and March 31, 1999
Revenues
Revenues increased $20,000, or 154%, from $13,000 for the three months ended March 31, 1998, to

$33,000 for the three months ended March 31, 1999. The increase was due to increased trading activity
during the 1999 period as a result of trading on the exchange commencing in February 1998,

Costs and Expenses

General and Administrative. . General and administrative costs increased $17,000, or 61%, from
$28,000 for the three months ended March 3§, 1998! to $45,000 for the three months ended March 31,
1999. The increase was primarily due to higher costs associated with increased activity on the exchange,

March 10, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 1997 and year ended December 31, 1998

Revenues

Revenues increased $84,000 from $0 for the period March 10, 1997 (inception) through
December 31, 1997, to $84,000 for 1998. The increase was due to increased trading in 1998 as a result of
trading on the exchange, which commenced in February 1998,

Costs and Expenses

Technology Costs. Technology costs increased $29,000 from $1,000 for the period March 10, 1997
(inception} through December 31, 1997 to $30,000 for 1998. The increase was due to higher costs in 1998
1o operate the exchange, which commenced operations in February 1998,

General and Administrative. General and administrative costs decreased $3,000, or 3%, from
$0.1 million for the period March 10, 1997 (inception} through December 31, 1997, to $0.1 million for
1998. These costs in 1998 remained consistent with the period March 10, 1997 (inception) through
December 31, 1997,
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Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $39,000 from
$2,000 for the period March 10, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 1997, to $41,000 for 1998 due to

the full year impact of depreciation of trading exchange development costs, which commenced operations
in February 1998.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $13,000 from $5,000 for the period March 10, 1997 (inception} through
December 31, 1997 to $18,000 in 1998 due to higher cutstanding balances on advances from DeWitt &
Company, Inc.

Liquidity and Capita! Resources

The net cashk used in operating activities was $24,000 and $29,000 for 1998 and the three months
ended March 31, 1999, respectively. Net cash used in operations for each period reflects net losses offset
by nen-cash charges for depreciation. Additionally, cash receipts of $49,000 related to deferred revenue
that will be recognized in future periods favorably impacted 1998. The three months ended March 31,
1999 was negatively impacted by $21,000 of deferred revenue that was recognized during the period with
the corresponding payment being received in a prier period.

Net cash used in investing activitics was $15,000 and $0 for 1998 and the three months ended
March 31, 1999, respectively. Cash used in investing activities reflects purchases of software and
equipment to support the trading system.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $58,000 and $9,000 for 1998 and the three months
ended March 31, 1999. Cash provided by financing activities reflects advances received from DeWitt,
partially offset by payments made to DeWitt.
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BUSINESS

This prospectus contains forward-lfooking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual
results may differ materially from those indicated in such forward-looking statements including the risk
Jactors beginning on page 6.

Overview

CheMatch.com is a leading business-to-business Internet-based marketplace for purchasers and sellers
of commodity chemicals, plastics‘and fuel products. Our marketplace is centered around a real-time,
interactive trading exchange, where our members bid, offer and negotiate online for the purchase and sale
of products 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Members of our secure, neutral exchange trade products
anonymously, utilizing real-time pricing and other market information provided through our exchange.
Members are pre-qualified by us and pre-selected by each other before trading on our exchange. Our
members include more than 125 of the world’s leading chemical companies and other leading purchasers
and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products, including traders, distributors, brokers,
manufacturers and other end users.

Qur trading exchange, located at www.chernatch.com, was the first and is one of the largest online
exchanges serving the chemical industry, Over $123 million in {ransactions have been traded on our
exchange since February 1998, and over $29 million in transactions were traded on our exchange in the
quarter ended December 31,1999. In the fourth quarter of 1999, we averaged more than 35,000 metric
tons of daily product bids and offers and the average transaction value of completed trades exceeded
$500,000. We generate revenues on our trading exchange from commissions typically paid by each party to
a completed transaction,

Our strategic investors include Bayer AG, Computer Sciences Corperation, E.I. duPont de Nemours
and Company, General Electric Company, Millennium Holdings Inc., Muehlstein Holding Corporation,
Stolt-Nielsen Transportatien Group Lid., TownsendTarnell, Inc. and William Heinemann Inc., a subsidiary
of Reed Elsevier plc. We have entered into strategic alliances with Bayer, CSC, duPont, General Electric
and Muehlstein to build our membership, to increase the trading volume on our exchange and to generally
enhance our trading exchange. In addition, we have strategic relationships with Stolt-Nielsen to facilitate
logistics, with DeWitt & Company, Incorporated and Reed Elsevier to provide information services, and
with eCredit.com and TownsendTarnell to provide credit and other services.

We maintain an extensive information resource center, located at www.petrochem.net, providing over
5,000 users access to industry news, forums, reference materials and more than 100 offerings from a
number of the chemical industry’s most respected sources. We generate revenues through our information
resource center from subscription and other user fees. Users may subscribe to market updates featuring
chemical industry news, pricing information and related statistics, over 40 product specific consulting
reports containing summaries of marketing and pricing trends and over 20 newsletters that detail market
trends in the chemical industry. In addition, the CheMatch trading screen integrates relevant news, trends,
commentaries and analyses from our information resource center.

Our principal executive offices are located in Houston, Texas. We also maintain domestic offices in
San Ramon, California and Stamford, Connecticut and international offices in Manchester, England,
Singapere and Tokyo, Japan.

Industry Background

Growth of Business-to-Business e-Commerce

The Internet has emerged as a global communications medinm enabling businesses worldwide to
communicate, share information and transact business electronically. As the use of the Internet has grown,
businesses have increasingly recognized the ability of the Internet to streamline complex processes, lower
costs and improve efficiency through the significant reduction of the traditional business communication
barriers of time, geography and number of participants. Forrester Research predicts that business-to-
business e-commerce in the United States will grow from $109 billion in 1999 to over $1.3 trillion in 2003.
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The acceptance of the Internet as a communications platform for transacting business has led to the
development of web sites designed to provide users access to clectronic marketplaces and aggregated
information. The creation of an information based, electronic marketplace within a highly fragmented
industry offers substantial potential benefits, including:

= a global interactive marketplace;

+ improved market liquidity;

 real-time market information;

+ access to aggregated data as well as interactive content; and

+ a more efficient, less labor and paper intensive transaction model.

The Chemical Industry: an Opportunity for an Internet-Based Solution

The commodity, specialty and life sciences chemical industry is 2 $1.6 trillion annual global market.
The commodity chemicals — including basic industrial chemicals, petrochemicals and agrichemicals — and
plastics market is the largest segment of the global chemical industry, representing more than $700 billion
of products purchased and sold worldwide annually. Fuel products, an additional market segment served by
the CheMatch exchange, represents approximately $100 billion of products puschased and sold annually
worldwide. Forrester Research estimates that by 2003, the petrochemical industry is projected to be the

third largest segment of the Internet economy in the United States, growing from $4.7 billion in 1998 to in
excess of $178 billion in 2003,

The traditional marketplace for commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products is characterized by
the following:

* Fragmented Market. The industry is highly fragmented, with a large number of industry
participants who traditionally trade with a select number of parties with whom they have pre-
existing relationships.

* Lack of Real-Time Market Information. Purchasers and sellers in the traditional marketplace
generally discover pricing and other market trends through third party reports that are based on
telephone surveys and may contain outdated or inaccurate information.

* Geographic Insularity. Trading between companies within the chemical industry's traditional
marketplace generally occurs between businesses in the same geographic region due to various
constraints, including time zone limitations and established personal networks.

* Price Volatility and Cyclicality. The industry is subject to significant price fluctuations based on
changes in oil and other feedstock costs, changes in supply and demand for different products.

* Lack of Market Liquidity. A substantial majority of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel
products are purchased and sold under contracts, These contracts, which vary in duration but are
often one year or longer, enable companies to satisfy their volumetric requirements for a given
product over a specified period of time. The balance of trading occurs on the spot market, where
companies can purchase or sell products based on current market prices. Traditionally, the spot
market for these products has been relatively illiquid, volatile and unreliable. As a result, purchasers
and sellers have been reluctant to rely on the spot market to satisfy their requirements.

* Low Trading Velocity. Velocity reflects the number of times 2 product changes hands from
production, through the supply chain, to ultimate end use. The velocity of trading in the chemical
industry’s traditional marketplace as estimated by management is approximately 1.8 times. This low
velocity is attributable, at least in part, to the chemical industry’s traditional reliance on the
contract market.

* Highly Networked. Unlike most industries, companies within the chemical industry are highly
networked, simultaneously being competitors, customers, suppliers and product development
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partners. Multiple transactions with numerous industry participants on a regelar basis make
increased standardization and integration of enterprise resource planning systems an important
objective to facilitate reduced processing costs.

Limitations of Traditional Purchasing and Selling Methods in the Chemical Industry

We believe the traditional way of purchasing and selling commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel
products is inefficient. The process of initiating, negotiating and completing a transaction is time
consuming and subjects the parties to market risk related to price fluctuations. Within this traditional
marketplace, real-time market information is limited and purchasers and sellers typically transact business
locally or regionally. Communications between industry parties occur primarily by telephone and facsimile
and require significant paper documentation. In order to complete a transaction in the traditional
marketplace for purchasing and selling commodity chemicals, Plastics and fuel products, purchasers and

sellers generally have to;
* identify their purchase or sale requirements;
* contact five to ten traders, brokers, customers, producers or other industry participants;
* negotiate with two or more parties;
« finalize a trade with one or more parties;
* confirm the transaction;

* submit and complete paperwork necessary to document the transaction:

» determine the method of shipping and surveying the product that is the subject of the
transaction; and

+ monitor the shipping, certification and delivery process.

The CheMatch Solution

We offer a secure, neutral marketplace for purchasers and sellers of commedity chemicals, plastics
and fuel products which is designed to reduce the inefficiencies associated with the traditional methods of
purchasing and selling these products. Our Internet-based marketplace has the following key features:

* Real-Time, Interactive Exchange. Our members bid, offer and negotiate online for the purchase
and sale of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products in real-time 24 hours a day, seven days
a week utilizing current market information, reducing the timing and information inefficiencies
associated with the chemical industry’s traditional transaction process.

* Market Intelligence. Through our trading exchange, we provide our members with real-time pricing
and other market information, including news, trends, comnmentaries and analyses about the
products eligible for trading on our exchange. Additionally, we offer users of our information
Fesource center a wide variety of information related to the petroleum and chemical industries. The
content we provide enables our members to transact on a more fully-informed basis.

* Global Reach. Unlike the geographical and temporal limitations presented by the chemical
industry’s traditional marketplace, our trading exchange is designed to facilitate a global
marketplace that transcends time zones and established personal netwarks. This plobal network will
provide purchasers and sellers with expanded market reach.
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* Qualified Traders and Products. We screen our members based on their financial capabilities,
market reputation and other criteria before they are cleared to join and participate on our trading
exchange. All of the products traded on our exchange are required to meet defined specifications,
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purchase and sell large quantities of products discreetly, thereby minimizing the potential effect on
the larger market.

* Increased Liquidity and Velocity. We expect the efficiencies associated with our marketplace to
improve liquidity within the market for commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products, enabling
our members to improve their capacity utilization and inventory management. If these efficiencies
arc achieved, we believe that the velocity of trading within the chemical industry will increase,
further enkancing liguidity in the marketplace.

* Reduced Cost Structure, The comprehensive solution presented by our trading exchange will allow
our members to reduce the expense and process steps associated with procurement, sales and
marketing, administration and logistics for the products Tepresented on our trading exchange,
Furthermore, we intend to enable our exchange to be integrated with our members’ enterprise
resource planning systems.

* Reliability and Confirmation. Our members’ ability to pre-select the parties with whom they will
trade ard our system’s online documentation and confirmation procedures bring greater certainty to
the trading process which we believe will lead to the increased adoption of our ¢xchange.

The CheMatch Strategy

Qur objective is to expand upon our position as a leading Internet-based solution for purchasers and
sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products. Our strategy to achieve this objective includes
the following key elements:

communicate to the remainder of our target companies the benefits of our marketplace to encourage the
industry’s migration to and our members’ use of our Internet-based trading solution. We believe the
adoption of our exchange will improve liquidity within the market for commodity chemicals, plastics and
fuel products,

Expand Product Offerings. We intend to continue to expand the products eligible for trading on our
exchange and about which we provide information based on evaluations of the market and input from our
members. We will continue to focus on high volume commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products. As
of February 15, 2000, we permitted bids and offers on 17 products on our trading exchange and provided
information on over 50 products on our information IeSoUrce center,
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Enhance Functionality and Services. Many of the features and functionalities of our exchange were
added based on feedback generated from our members. We intend to continue to enhance the content and
functionality of our marketplace by:

* Integrating various interactive services, including broadcast and personal messaging via e-mail,
pagers and other portable devices, specialized bulletin boards and other interactive features;

« offering our members a suite of integrated products to link commercial transactions on our trading
exchange with our members' back office operations;

+ providing enhanced pricing analytics, information feeds and other interactive content; and

= introducing additional functionality, including on-line auction and tender features designed to
provide purchasers and sellers greater market reach and to provide a market for branded products
that are not actively traded.

Expand our Marketplace through Strategic Relationships. Through strategic relationships, including
those we have entered into with Stolt-Nielser, DeWitt, Reed Elsevier, eCredit.com and TownsendTarnel;,
we intend to expand and enhance our marketplace by:

» facilitating logistics for products offered and sold on our trading exchange, including transportation
with online tracking, inspection and surveying, terminalling and storage and related services;

+ expanding our information service offerings;

» offering our members a full complement of credit services; and

* providing financial risk management services, including a forward market and unregulated financial
derivatives.

Leverage Chemical Industry Expertise. In implementing our strategy, we intend to leverage the
collective knowledge and expestise of our management team, which includes more than 30 employees with
10 or more years of experience in the chemical industry. They provide strategic guidance, offer expertise in
commodities, finance, sales, marketing and information technology and have significant industry contacts.

In order to capitalize on this expertise, we have located our headquarters in Houston, Texas, a hub for the
chemical industry.

Maintain Integrity of Trading Exchange. We intend to maintain the third-party neutral approach of
our trading exchange to maximize the adoption of our marketplace by all purchasers and sellers of
commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products, including traders, distributors, brokers, manufacturers and
other end users. We believe that our neutral approach will ensure that these market participants have
access to an efficient and liquid marketplace with unbiased product offerings and pricing and market
information. As we enhance the features and functionality of our exchange, we intend to continue to
ensure this third-party neutrality.

Expand Internationally. We believe that the international scope of the Internet, the global presence
of leading chemical companies and the worldwide demand for commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel
products present opportunities to expand our international operations. We plan to leverage our technology
platform and our sales and marketing personnel to take advantage of this international opportunity.

Maintain Technological Leadership. We will continue 1o utilize proven, leading-edge technologies
that will allow us to expand and enbance our technology platform to improve the scalability, reliability and
flexibility necessary to meet the requirements of our members and the market.

CheMatch Trading Process

Initiation and Selection. Our trading exchange is a user-friendly, comprehensive solution for industry
participants. After executing a membership agreement, new members to the exchange are provided with a
unique user name and password. Our members are reguired to input their user name and password each
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time they access our trading exchange. Individual users have either active (eligible to trade) or passive
(view only) accounts. On their first visit to our trading exchange, new active members are presented with
a list of all other member companies. From this list, they decide to which companies they are willing to
offer credit. By refusing to offer another member credit, the active member is either refusing to sell to that
specific company or requiring that the company provide a letter of credit if and when a sale is made.
Using this same lst, new members also decide whether or not they will purchase from each member and
whether or not they will provide a letter of credit if required. Each time members access the trading
exchange, they may review and revise their selected List of trading parties by including previously excluded
parties or new members or excluding previously agreed upon trading parties.

Review of Bids and Offers. Once the new active member has completed this pre-selection process,
the member is eligible to enter the trading exchange where the identity of all parties remains anonymous
throughout the trading process. Within the trading exchange, members can view and submit current bids
and offers as well as view current market information related to the product or products they desire to
trade. All bids and offers are categorized by product. Each bid or offer centains sufficient information to
enable a member to decide whether to purchase or sell, including the type of transaction, the name of the
product and its specifications, applicable freight terms, quantity, price and delivery terms.

Negotiation and Confirmation. After locating a bid or offer of interest, an active member can point
and click to select that posting and will be taken to a secure negotiation screen where the member may
accept the offer as posted or enter into one-on-one private, confidential counter negotiations with the other
party. If the parties desire to negotiate specific terms, they can send each other information online,
outlining proposed changes to the posted terms. Transactiens on cur trading exchange are not self-
executing, even if the parties reach agreement on all terms. An accepting party must point and click on a
confirmation button to confirm that the offered terms have been matched.

After the offered terms are matched, the identity of each party to the transaction is revealed to the
other party to the transaction but not te other members of our trading exchange. At the same time, the
terms of the matched trade are instantanecusly removed from the active screen of the trading exchange
and appear on a matched transaction screen for the market to view. Concurrent with this transfer from the
active screen to the matched transaction screen, CheMatch sends to each party to the transaction a
summary of the negotiations and principal terms of the agreed upon transaction. At this point, the parties
to the transaction must confirm and complete the transaction offline, and may arrange, if necessary, for
financial settlement, logistics and other details necessary o complete the trade. From here, members can
return to the trading exchange to view the market offerings.

Our Members

Our target members are the world’s 250 leading chemical companies and other leading purchasers and
sellers of commedity chemicals, plastics and fuel preducts. As of February 15, 2000, we had more than
125 members on our exchange. The membership agreement is generally a standard form contract that sets
forth the terms and conditions upon which a member may access our trading exchange. The standard
membership agreement has an initial term of twelve months and is automatically renewed for successive
twelve month periods unless either party provides written notice of termination thirty days prior to the
expiration of the applicable twelve month term. The agreement may be terminated by either party for
other specified reasons. The membership agreement is non-exclusive and does not obligate our members to
trade on our exchange.
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The following is a list of entities that had executed membership agreements as of February 15, 2000:

Aectra S.A,

AllChem Industries, Inc.

ALPAC Marketing

Ameripol Synpol Corporation
Ashland Chemical

B F Goodrich Kalama, Inc.

BASF A.G. Europe

Bamberger Polymers, Inc.

Bayer A G

Bayer Corporation (US)
Beaumont Methanot

BP Amoco Chemicals

BP Chemicals Trading Ltd.
Celanese Ltd.

Chemcentral

Chemical Trading, S. L.

Chevron Chemical — Geneva
Chevron Chemical LLC (U.S.)
Chevron Chemical — Singapore
Clark Refining & Marketing, Inc.
Coastal Catalyst & Chemical Company
Deltech Corporation o

Dow Europe § A

Dow Hydrocarbons & Resources
DSM

Duravin Chemicals

E. I. duPont de Nemours and Company
Eastman Chemical Company

EC Erdoelchemie

Enron Europe

Enron Petrochemicals Co.

Epsilon Products Company
Equistar Chemicals LP
ExxonMobil Chemical
Fenoquimia S.A.

Fernz Specialty Chemicals

FMC Corporation

Gadiv Petrochemical Industries Ltd. _
Gantrade Corporation

General Electric Company
Georgia Guif Corporation

Grupo Idesa _

Gujarat Alkalies and Chemicals Limited
H. Muehlstein & Co., Inc.

Hedco Pakistan

Helm AG

Herdillia Chemicals Limited
Hunstman Petrochemical Corp.
Hyundai Corporation

Infineum USA LP

InterChem 2000, Ltd. (Europe)
InterChem Americas

JLM Chemicals Asia PTE Ltd
JLM Industries Holland BY

JLM International (US)

Koch Chemical International (US)
Koch Refining Intl. (Europe)
Koch Refining Intl, (Singapore}
Kolmar Petrochemicals Americas, Loc.
Landmark Chemicals (Far East) Pte Ltd.
Landmark Chemicals S A

LG International Corp.

Lyondell Chemical Company
Lyondell-Citgo Refining L.P.

M. Holland Company

Magnum Solvent, Inc,

Marathon Ashland Petroleum LLC
Marubeni America Corporation
Methanex Methanol Co.

Midiand Petrochemical Ltd.
Millennium Inorganic Chemicals
Millennium Petrochemicals, Inc.
Multichem, Inc.

Neste Oxo AB

Neste Resins

Noble Americas Corp.
Occidental Chentical Corporation
Oceana Petrochemicals AG
Osterman & Company, Inc.
Peninsula Trading

Performance Polymers

Petrochem UK Ltd.
Phenolchemie Asia Pte Ltd.
Phenolchemie GmbH & Co. KG
Phenolchemie, Inc (US)

Phillips Chemical Company
Plaza Group

PPG Industries, Inc.

Proppet Reichhold Rhodia-ster S/A
Rapid Industrial Plastics Co., Inc.
Reichhold

Rhodia-Ster S/A

Sam Hyun Co., Ltd. Agent for Oceana
Samsung America, Inc.

Samsung Corporation (Korea)
Shell Chemical

Sheli Chemicals Ltd. (Europe)
Siam Chemicals Trading Co., Ltd.
Sinochem Tianjim Imp & Exp Shezhen Corp.
SK Corporation {Korea)

SK Global Americas, Inc.

SK Global Co., Ltd. (Korea)
Southern Chemical Corp

SPP Agaprint

Sterling Chemicals, Inc.

Stylette

Sudamericana de Fibras SA

Sun Company, Inc.

Talichem § A

Tauber Petrochemicals

Texas Petrochemicals Corporation
Thornton and Company, Inc.
Trademark Plastics Corporation
Tradepaints

Trammochem (US)
Trammochem A. G,

Tricon Energy, Ltd.

Trump Chemical Corp.

Tuntex Petrochemical

U-Jin Chemical Co.

Ultramar Diamond Shamrock
Union Carbide Corporation



VY A-Singapore Pte Ltd Voest-Alpine Inicrtrading USA

Valero Marketing & Supply Westway Terminal Company, Inc.
Veba Oel A. G. Wilsonart

Venro Chemical Corporation Windsor Chemicals, Inc.

Vinmar International, Ltd. Winsway (Group) Enterprise Lid.

Voest Alpine A. G.

Some of our members are affiliated with each other. These affiliated entities are precluded from
trading with each other on our exchange. As of February 15, 2000, 34 of our members had completed one
or more transactions on our exchange. During the quarter ended December 31, 1999, four of our members
accounted for 14%, 13%, 10% and 9% of the transactions on our ¢xchange as measured by metric tons
traded.

Products Offered

The following commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products are presently eligible to be traded on
our exchange. We have indicated the approximate market size as of April 1999 and typical end uses
associated with these products.

Products Market Size Typical End Uses
(In billions)

Commodity Chemicals

Benzene ...... ... i, $8.3 fibers, paints, plastics
Mixed Xylenes...................... 5.1 fibers, plasticizers, solvents
Toluene.......oovviiiieenna. 33 gasoline blending, resins, solvents
Acetone ... it e 1.4 pharmaceuticals, resins, solvents
CUmene ...ttt 3.5 resins, solvents
Ortho Xylene . .............in ., L1 plasticizers
Ethylbenzene ....................... 11.5 plastics, synthetic rubber
Cyclohexane .. ..............c.ovvn... 2.0 nylon fiber
Paraxyleme ......... ... . ... ... ...... 7.2 fibers
Phenol......... ... .o it 4.5 fibers, resins
Styrene Monomer ................... 14.4 fiberglass, plastics, resins, synthetic rubber
Fuels
Methanol .................. [ 6.0 antifreeze, MTBE
MTBE ... ...t 52 gasoline blending, oxygenate
Plastics - :
Polyethylene.............cooiiina... 34.8 injection molding, film, rigid containers
Polypropylene....................... 21.9 film, injection molding
Polystyrene .. ...oovvvvenin ... 12.7 packaging and shipping materials
PolyVinyl Chloride .................. 18.2 doors, packaging, pipes, windows

We expect to add various orgaric and inorganic chemicals, plastics, vinyls and fuel products to our
trading exchange during 2000. Benzene accounted for approximately 69% of the physical trading volume
on our exchange in fiscal 1999 and approximately 59% in the quarter ended December 31, 1999. Benzene,
which was the first product available on our exchange, was one of eight products eligible for trading for all
of fiscal year 1999.
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Information Resources

In addition to the relevant product and market information our members view while trading products
on our exchange, we offer users of our information resource center access to an extensive collection of
industry related information. The providers and types of information we offer include;

Platt’s Market Reports
Platt's Petrochemical Alert
Platt’s Petrochemical Report
Platt’s Petrochemical Specifications

Motor Fuels Information
State and Federal Resources

OPIS Energy Group

OPIS News Alerts

OPIS Gas Liquids

QPIS Jet Fuel

QOPIS West Coast

OPIS Refinery Feedstocks

Motor Fuels Data OPIS Rack Prices

News Forums OPIS Center
TECNON Consulting CPI Consulting Associates, Inc.

23 Market Newsletters in\/g:ih & Methodol
44 Product Specific Reports PP 08y

. Competitive Analysis
Investment and Stratt:,gy Appraisals Chemical Industry Analysis
Global Market Overviews . X ]
Financial Analysis
Litigation Support
Product Analysis

Strategic Relationships

We bave entered ifito a number of strategic relationships to, among other things, build our
membership, increase the trading volume on our exchange and enhance our trading exchange generally.
We have also contracted with third parties to provide credit services and to facilitate logistics for our
members. We believe these strategic relationships will help establish CheMatch as the leading Internet-
based exchange for the chemical industry.

Bayer AG

Bayer AG is a subsidiary of Bayer Group, an international, research-based company with major
businesses in life sciences, polymers, and specialty chemicals. Bayer has agreed to use our trading
exchange as its preferred platform for ¢-commerce trading of the products offered on our trading exchange
through December 31, 2001. In connection with Bayer's cash payment of approximately $2 million for our
common stock, we have credited Bayer's trading account in the same amount against which any
commissions generated by Bayer as a result of any trades on our exchange will be debited.

Computer Sciences Corporation

Computer Sciences Corporation is a leading international provider of information technology services
to commercial and government markets. CSC has agreed to market our trading exchange and information
resource center to companies we have targeted as prospective members in exchange for commissions
refated to these efforts. CSC has a right of first negotiation to provide consulting services required by us,
including strategic consulting, marketing, new product development, system development management,
international pursuits, Jogistics, letters of credit and credit enhancement. During the term of our strategic
relationship, we have also agreed that CSC will be our preferred information technelogy systems integrator
50 long as CSC’s rates are competitive and its technology and performance are reasonably acceptable to us
and we will be CSC'’s preferred exchange for trading commodity products. CSC has also agreed not to
compete with us during the term of our strategic relationship and for a period of one year after termination
of the strategic relationship. The strategic relationship may be terminated by either party upon 30 days’
written notice.
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DeWitt & Company, Incorporated

DeWitt & Company, Incorporated is an international consulting and information provider serving the
petrochemical industry. We have agreed that DeWitt will provide chemical industry trading analytics for
our trading exchange, and we have granted to DeWitt a right to a preferred display on our trading screen
for products and services offered by DeWitt. We have also agreed to share development and other costs,
and to share fees generated from the sale of some of DeWitt’s products and services offered on our trading
exchange. We have the right to terminate the Alliance Agreement at any time upon the payment to
DeWitt of $500,000. DeWitt may terminate the Agreement upon one year's prior notice and the payment
of $60,000. '

E.I duPont de Nemours and Company

E.I duPont de Nemours and Company is a global science company focused on chemical and
materials sciences and biological sciences. DuPont has agreed to work with us to add an agreed upon list
of parties to our trading exchange in exchange for commissions related to these efforts. Dupont has agreed
to use our trading exchange exclusively through November 11, 2000 for trading bulk chemicals and
polymers and refined cil products over the Internet and use reasonable efforts to trade an increasing
amount of spot purchases on our ¢xchange for a four year period from January 1, 200i. DuPont has
agreed through November 11, 2000 to provide us at no cost with a full time employee with relevant
market knowledge to work on increasing the volume of trading on our exchange. DuPont has also agreed
for the same period not to invest in companies that provide an on-line neutral marketplace with product
offerings that significantly overlap with those available on our trading exchange. DuPont has also provided
us with a $2 million credit towards the purchase of its products and services. This credit will exist until
December 1, 2002 and may be applied to market development, advertising, safety, health, environmental,
logistics and other products and services that we mutually agree upon.

eCredit.com

eCredit.com is a leader in the market for real-time credit, financing and related services for
e-businesses. We have contracted with eCredit.com to provide online business verification services.
eCredit.com’s Global Financing Network™ will enable us to offer real-time, online corporate verification of
potential business partners. The Global Financing Network provides web-enabled access to Dun &
Bradstreet and Experian information sources, Qur trading exchange is designed to provide our members
the opportunity to transact with other parties with whom they do not have pre-existing relationships. We
are working with e¢Credit.com to provide additional services from the Global Financing Network that
would enable our members to make credit and financing decisions that can be processed in real time.
These capabilities will allow our members to transact with new business partners with greater confidence.

General Electric Company

General Electric is a diversified services, technology and manufactunng corporation whose products
include plastics. General Electric has agreed to use our trading exchange on a preferred, good faith basis
for its e-commerce purchasing, trading or auctioning of any bulk commodity petrochemicals offered on our
exchange through December 31, 2001, In addition, General Electric has agreed to use reasonable business
efforts to assist us in developing viable e-commerce trading activity in specified contract-dominated
markets where General Electric is a significant buyer. General Electric has also agreed to promote our
trading exchange to a specified number of agreed upon potential members of cur trading exchange. We
have agreed to negotiate in good faith with General Electric regarding its ability to act as a supplier of
credit insurance to be used by us in the future and have provided General Electric the right to match any
third party offers relating to comparable services. Without the other party’s written consent, we and
General Electric have agreed not to solicit cach other’s employees through December 31, 2002
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Muchlstein Holding Corporation

Muehlstein Holding Corporation is a subsidiary of H. Muchlstein & Co. Inc., an international
marketer and reseller of plastic and rubber polymers. Muehlstein has agreed to use good faith efforts to
use our trading exchange on an exclusive basis through December 31, 2001 for any chemicals and plastics
that it buys, sells, trades, auctions or otherwise transfers using e-commerce to the extent those products are
traded on our exchange. Nevertheless, Muchlstein may, acting in good faith, use other platforms where
suppliers require the use of those platforms. We have agreed to credit Muehlstein's trading account on a
dollar-for-doliar basis in the amount of payments made under the promissory note executed by Muehlstein
in comnection with its purchase of our common stock, against which any commissions generated by
Muchlstein through May 1, 2002 will be debited.

Stolt-Nielsen Transportation Group Ltd.

Stolt-Nielsen Transportation Group Ltd., a subsidiary of Stolt-Nielsen S.A., is the world’s leading
provider of transportation services for bulk chemicals, edible oils, acids and other specialty liquids, We
have executed a strategic alliance agreement with Stolt-Nielsen’s affiliate, Optimum Logistics Ltd,,
commonly known as ChemLink.com, an Internet-based logistics operating system. We intend to integrate
the ChemLink System into our trading exchange to permit our members to procure transportation and
other logistic services for bulk chemicals from a variety of service providers, as well as manage and
monitor shipments through all phases of the supply chain. The services that we expect to be offered
through the ChemLink system include firm freight fixtures and rate indications for liquid chemical
products, shipping and customs brokering, freight forwarding, cargo inspection and surveying, terminaling
and storage and inventory management and tracking services and related documentation. The alliance has
a term of three years, which may be extended if agreed upon criteria are met. CheMatch and ChemLink
have agreed to pay each other fees equal to 20 percent of commission revenue carned by either CheMatch
or ChemLink from customers of the other company up to $5 million per year. The parties have also
agreed to assist each other in establishing commercial relationships with certain target companies in
exchange for 20 percent of the gross revenues earned and received by the other party, ChemLink has
agreed to offer CheMatch the option to invest at least $1 million in a private offering of securities of
Optimum involving an aggregate amount of at least $5 million.

TownsendTarnell, Inc.

TownsendTamell, Inc. is a global consulting firm that specializes in plastics and chemical market
reports, end market analysis databases for the automotive materials, pipe and construction industries, and
benchmarking studies. 1t provides industry-focused, confidential business information reports, credit,
marketing and sales lead generation services to qualifying suppliers in the plastics and chemical industry.
In connection with TownsendTarmell’s purchase of our common stock, we have entered into 2 consulting
agreement with TownsendTamell. During the first six months of the consulting agreement, Town-
sendTamell’s perscnnel are required to use their best reasonable efforts to promote the use of our trading
exchange by potential buyers of thermoplastic resins in North America and Europe. TownsendTamell’s
efforts will be directed towards approximately 800 entities identified by us as potential users of our trading
exchange and related services. Additionally, TownsendTarnell will provide us with varous credit services.
Under the consulting agreement, we have agreed to pay TownsendTarnell $70,000 per month for nine
consecutive months, commencing February 1, 2000. The consulting agreement is cancelable by mutual
consent or upon six months notice,

Additionally, TownsendTarnell has agreed to provide us with 2 business plan relating to the creation
and development of TownsendTamell.com. Assuming the business plan is acceptable to us, we have agreed
to extend TownsendTarnell a $500,000 line of credit. TownsendTarmell has offered us an option to invest
$1 million in any private offering of securitics relating to TownsendTarnell.com involving an aggregate
amount of at least $3 million,
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William Heinemann Inc.

William Heinemann is a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier plc, an international publisher and information
provider with three primary business scgments: scicntific, professional and business-to-business. Reed’s
publications include Chemical News & Intelligence, Asian Chemical News, European Chemical News and
Chemical Insight. We have agreed to purchase information content, advertising and other promotional
material and services from William Heinemann or a designee of William Heinemann in amounts totaling
at least $500,000 between January 1, 2000 and January 1, 2002. The products and services we have agreed
to purchase will be priced from time to time as we mutually agree. We will integrate information provided
by Reed into our information resource center.

Sales, Marketing and Support

We market and sell our products and services through a direct sales force that has initially targeted
the world’s 250 largest chemical companies and other leading purchasers and sellers of commodity
chemicals, plastics and fuel products. Our sales process leverages our management expertise and is made
through a muiti-tiered approach of:

» solicitations made by our senior executives;
» direct sales by industry specialists;
+ proactive customer support representatives; and

. traditional presentations and participation at industry conferences and trade events.

Our senior executives and other industry specialists are an important part of the sales process due to
their significant experience in the chemical industry and personal contacts within their given area of
expertise. Our sales process is highly personal and interactive, targeting executive officers and key decision
makers within a prospective organization. To encourage trading on our exchange, we often notify individual
traders within companies who are active purchasers or sellers of products that are the subject of an
outstanding offer or bid on our exchange. Our industry specialists will also notify these individuals when
significant trades are completed on our exchange that involve the products frequently traded by those
individuals.

Our customer service representatives complement our direct sales force. Each new member is
assigned a customer service representative who is responsible for ensuring that the new member has
received proper training and is. fully adept at transacting business on our exchange. In addition, these
representatives serve as day-to-day contacts for general and administrative inquiries that our members may
make and are responsible for building and maintaining relationships with our members. With the recent
openings of our international offices in Manchester, England, Singapore and Tokyo, Japan, we have
commenced the deployment and execution of direct sales and customer service representatives
internationally to accommodate the specific needs of international markets. With the opening of these new
locations, we had 32 sales and marketing employees and consultants as of February 15, 2000, with
27 individuals based domestically and five based internationally.

Our marketing efforts have focused exclusively on establishing our marketplace as the preferred online
site for trading commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products. To increase critical mass and name
awareness, we utilize industry publication advertising, public relations, direct mail campaigns, and
presentations at industry trade shows and conferences. We also utilize electronic communications and
information on our web sites to market our trading exchange.

Qur Technology

We have developed our Intemet-based solution utilizing proprietary programs and, where appropriate,
commercially available, licensed technologics. The technology platform currently underlying our trading
exchange was developed using a Microsoft architecture, including active server pages, running on an
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Internet information server and a SQL server database. We are continually adding features and
functionality to our existing platform to mect the requirements of our members, the market and our
expanding business model.

In 2000, we intend to transition a number of functions from our existing platform to a new system
architecture which is being designed by Computer Sciences Corporation. This new architecture should
altow us to quickly add functions and features to support our rapidly evolving business goals and directives.
We have planned enhancements to our technology platform that will enable our members to, among other
things:

+ participate in new exchange functions, including auctions;

- personalize information available on our exchange and information resource center based on their
user profile; and

« receive broadcast and individual messages via e-mail, pagers or other similar devices reparding
trading activity on the exchange.

When implemented, we expect our new architecture to be characterized by the following key features:

Scalability. Qur architecture will be scalable, enabling us to accommodate our expanding business
model as well as adding new members. This scalability should permit us to quickly add members, products
and services to our exchange and increase trading volume without incurring significant infrastructure costs.

Speed and Capacity. Our new system will be designed to support hundreds of trades per day, with
sub-second response times for critical transactions. We are developing our new system architecture to
support more than 7,000 registered traders and to have enough initial capacity to support ten to fifteen
transactions per second. With the appropriate hardware upgrades the transaction throughput can be scaled
up to 50 times this level. We expect to provide logged-in users of our exchange a refreshed screen every
30 seconds.

Reliability and Availability. We expect our new system architecture 1o be hosted by a first tier web
hosting provider who will provide most key infrastructure services, including Internet connectivity,
hardware and software support and performmance monitoring. We intend to execute service level agreements
to provide support 24 hours a day, seven days a week and ensure the operational availability our members
require.

Security. Our new system architecture will be designed to include many security features, including
member passwords, user profiling and system administration logs. Multiple layers of security, including
secure sockets layer technology, protect our application and data. Our application uses up to 128-bit
standard encryption technology, along with monitored firewalls and other restrictions and physical or
electronic separations to prevent harm to the application and data.

Proprietary Rights

We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright and patent law, trade secret pretection license and
confidentiality and non-competition agreements with our employees, members and business allies to protect
our proprietary rights in products, services, know-how and information. We have filed a U.S. patent
application for certain of our business methods and procedures used in our exchange. We have received
federal trademark registrations for CHEMATCH ONLINE (with stylized design), CM (with stylized
design) and PETROCHEM.NET (with stylized design). Our means of protecting our proprietary rights in
the United States or abroad may not be adequate and competitors may independently develop similar
technology. We cannot be certain that our services will not infringe patents or other intellectual property
rights that may relate to our services although we are not aware of any such infringement. Like other
technology and Internet-based businesses, we face the risk that we will be unable to protect all of our
intellectual property and other proprictary rights, and the risk that we will be found to have infringed the
proprietary rights of others.
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Competition

The market for business-to-business commerce on the Internet is new and rapidly evolving, and
competition exists and is expected to increase significantly in the future. Barriers to entry are relatively
insubstantial. We believe that the success of companies seeking to create an Intecmet-based solution for
trading commodity chemicals and other products and providing related services will depend on the
following factors:

« the adoption of the solution by a significant number of users;
« the quality and reliability of the solution;
- the breadth and depth of product and service offerings; and

« the ease of use and convenience of the solution.

We presently face competition from a number of companies offering or planning to offer Internet-
based trading solutions to the chemical or related industries. These competitors include Ariba, Inc.,
AutoBase Information Systems Inc. (efuel.com), ChemConnect, Inc., Commerce One, Inc.,

Commerx, Inc. (PlasticsNet.com), e-Chemicals Inc., fob.com, FreeMarkets, Inc., PurchasePro.com, Inc.,
VerticalNet, Inc. and their respective affiliates. We face additional competition from large, established
chemical companies and others who offer Internet-based alternatives to the traditional methods of
purchasing and selling commodity chemicals and other products we currently offer or intend to offer in the
future. Some of these companies have longer operating histortes, greater name recognition, an established
network of potential users and significantly greater financial, technical and marketing rescurces than we do.
These potential competitors may be able to undertake more extensive marketing campaigns for their
Internet-based solution and adopt more aggressive pricing policies in attracting potential users of their
solution. For these reasons, our ability to compete effectively against these enterprises is uncertain. Any of
these alternative solutions may gain greater market acceptance than our marketplace.

Government Regulation

As with many Internet-based businesses, we operate in an environment of tremendous uncertainty as
to potential government regulation. We believe that we are not currently subject to direct regulation
applicable to online commerce, other than regulations applicable to businesses generally. However, the
Internet has rapidly emerged as a commerce medium, and governmental agencies have not yet been able
to adapt existing regulations to its use. Future laws, Tegulations and court decisions may affect the Internet
or other online services, covering issues such as user pricing, user privacy, freedom of expression, access
charges, taxation, content and quality of products and services, advertising, intellectual property rights and
information security. In addition, because our services are offered worldwide, and we facilitate sales of
goods to clients worldwide, foreign jurisdictions may claim that we are required to comply with their laws.
Any future regulation may have a negative impact on our business.

Because we are an Internet company, it is unclear in which jurisdictions we are actually conducting
business. Our failure to qualify to do business in a jurisdiction that requires us to do so could subject us to
fines and penalties and could result in our inability to enforce agreements in that jurisdiction.

Numerous states have laws and regulations regarding the conduct of auctions and the liability of
auctioneers. We do not believe that these laws and regulations, which were enacted for consumer
protection many years ago, will apply to the online auction services that we expect o introduce. However,

one or more jurisdictions may attempt to impose these laws and regulations on these operations in the
future.

Several telecommunications carriers are secking to have telecommunications over the Internet
regulated by the Federal Communications Commission in the same manner as other telecommunications
services. Additionally, local telephone carriers have petitioned the Federal Communications Commission to
regulate Internet service providers and online service providers in a manner similar to long distance
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telephonc carriers and to impose access fees on such providers. If either of these petitions arc granted, the
costs of communicating on the Internet could increase substantially. This, in turn, could slow the growth of
use of the Internet. Any such legislation or regulation could materiatly adversely affect cur business.

Commodities Regulation

Through our exchange, we facilitate trading in forward contracts and financial derivatives known as
swap agreements. Forward contracts, which are contracts in physical commeodities for deferred shipment or
delivery, are not subject to the Commedity Exchange Act or to CFTC rules and regulations. Swap
transactions are conducted on our exchange in reliance on the CFITC’s exemption for certain swap
agreements. '

We limit participation in forward contracts on our exchange to companies and persons that are
commercially active in the petrochemicals industry and market and that normally take physical delivery of
the commedity through customary commercial chanaels. Further, transactions are not completed on our
exchange since, after matching offered terms on our exchange, participants must enter into bilateral
purchase and sale agreements offline in order to create legally binding transactions.

We also facilitate trading in swap agreements, in which the parties exchange cash payments with
reference to changes in the price of a commodity or another agreed benchmark. The Commeodity
Exchange Act requires that trading in many instruments regulated by the CFTC must be confined to
designated contract markets. However, swap agreements that meet the CFTC’s exemption standards may
be offered and entered into without using a designated contract market. While these exemption standards
are not free from ambiguity, we believe that our swap program conforms with these standards. In
particular, we believe that the participants on our exchange meet the criteria of “eligible swap
participants” as defined by the CFTC. Further, after matching offered terms on our exchange, participants
must enter into bilateral swap agreements offline in order to create legally binding swap transactions. If the
CFTC were to challenge our treatment of these transactions or take other actions that make the exemption
unavailable to us, or if Congress were to amend the Commodity Exchange Act in an adverse manner, our
ability to offer a swap program could be impaired or foreclosed, and past transactions could become
subject to rescission, possibly resulting in claims against us and the counterparties to those transactions.
The occurrence of any of these events would adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

The Commodity Exchange Act and existing CFTC policies currently provide that, with certain
exceptions, transactions in futures contracts and options thereon must be conducted only on or through a
board of trade that has been designated by the CFTC as a contract market. The qualifications required for
such designation include features that are not found in our exchange, and we are not eligible for contract
market designation. Therefore, we are unable to offer futures contracts or options thereon directly through
our exchange.

Facilities

Qur principal executive offices are located at 2900 North Loop West, Suite 1120, Houston,
Texas 77052. We also maintain domestic offices in San Ramon, California and Stamford, Connecticut and
international offices in Manchester, England, Singapore and Tokyo, Japan. We lease office space in each of
these cities.

Employees

As of February 15, 2000, we had 56 employees. We are not subject to or bound by any labor or
collective bargaining agreements.

Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings.

44



MANAGEMENT

Officers and Directors

The directors, executive officers and other officers of CheMatch, and their respective ages and
positions or responsibility as of February 15, 2000, are as follows:

Name Age Position — Responsibifity

Carl McCutcheon ... ........... 47  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Lawrance McAfee ............. 45  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary
and Director

Fred Cook ...........iiit, 57  Senior Vice President and General Manager — North
America

Jobn Sharum .............. ... 53 Senior Vice President and General Manager — International

Kevin Boyle .......oovvenennns, 45  Vice President — Information Services

Don Churchman ............... 49  Vice President — Polymers

Scott Creasman.......<........ 34 Vice President — Controller and Assistant Secretary

Clifton Cumin ......oovnevevnnn, 45 Vice President — Olefins

Gerard Elias .......coiveennnn, 34 Vice President — Communications and Investor Relations

Michael Ereli. . ......ooovvvnns. 38  Vice President — Technology

Matthew Frye ......... e e 39  Vice President — Sales and Marketing

Roberta Kowalishin ............ 38  Vice President — Technology Ventures

RogerLeedy .......ovvvinnnns, 57  Vice President — Aromatics

Simon Palmer ............. ... 37  Vice President — Aromatics and Chemical Intermediates

Paul Pryzant .......covvnevnnn- 43 Vice President — Co-General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

JmRahe...........o il 59  Vice President — Olefins and Inorganics

Scott Shelton. ......ovvvenennn. 53 Vice President — Co-General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Kevin Wenta .........coivven 36  Vice President — Business Development and e-Strategy

Earl Armstrong .......ovnveennn. 55  Director

Bob Gower.....ooevviininnnn, 62  Director

Janet Hickey .........cvvnenn. 55 Director

James Saviano...... ... 57 Director

David Tabors .. ... .ooviiivnn, 28  Director

Carl MeCutckeon joined CheMatch in June 1999 as President and Chief Executive Officer and was
elected Chairman in January 2000. Prior fo joining CheMatch, Mr. McCutcheon served as senior vice
president of term marketing for Koch Industrial and-Utility Services from June 1997 to December 1998.
Mr. McCutcheon was a vice president for Enron Capital and Trade Resources from February 1995 to
May 1997. From November 1992 to February 1995, Mr. McCutcheon was a vice president for
Agricultural Minerals and Chemicals and its successor company, Terra Industries. He served as vice
president and general manager for Williams Power Company and in various officer and management
positions for various subsidiaries of Williams from December 1979 to October 1992. Prior to his service
with Williams, Mr. McCutcheon was an auditor with Ernst & Young. Mr. McCutcheon received 2 B.S.
B.A. from the University of Tulsa in 1973 and an M.B.A from Harvard in 1976. He is a member of the
AICPA. Mr, McCutcheon also served as a commissioner on the State of Qklahoma Natural Gas Pelicy
Commission from 1994 to 1996.

Lawrance McAfee joined CheMatch in September 1999 as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary and
was appointed Executive Vice President and Director in February 2000. Prior to joining CheMatch,
Mr. McAfee served as executive vice president and chief financial officer, and was a member of the board
of directors of ITEQ, Inc. from March 1993 to September 1999. He served as chief financial officer and a
member of the board of directors for Waste Processor Industries, Inc. from May 1991 to March 1993,
Mr. McAfee was senior vice president and chief financial officer of Stillbrocke Corporation from April
1989 to February 1991 and scrved as chief financial officer and held other financial management positicns
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with US Home Corporation from April 1982 to May 1989. Prior to joining US Home Corporation,
Mr. McAfee held financial management positions with Transco Companies and First Natioral Bank in
Dallas. He received a B.B.A. from the Univessity of Texas at Austin in 1977 and an M.B.A. from
Southern Methodist University in 1978.

Fred Cook joined CheMatch, Inc. in April 1997. He was a founder of CheMatceh, Inc. and led the
software destgn phase, market introduction, and commercial launch of CheMaich, Inc. He is currently
Senicr Vice President and General Manager of North America and is responsible for monitoring and
expanding our exchange. Prior to joining CheMatch, he was a special projects manager for Enron focusing
on new capital investments and joint ventures in the olefins industry from October 1994 to March 1997.
From February 1966 to May 1994, Mr. Cook held a number of sales and marketing positions with the
Dow Chemical Company, including commercial director for the Hydrocarbons and Energy Group and vice
president in charge of monomers. He received a B.S. from Louisiana State University in 1966.

John Skarum joined CheMatch in November 1999 as Vice President -— International and was
appointed Senior Vice President and General Manager — International in January 2000. Prior to joining
CheMatch, Mr. Sharum was a vice president in Chevron Chemical Corporation’s international division
from February 1996 to September 1999. He received B.S. and B.S.E. degrees from the University of
Michigan in 1970 and a M.B.A. from Golden Gate University in 1984,

Kevin Boyle joined CheMatch in July 1999 as Vice President — Information Services. Heis
responsible for building our information resource, developing new aliiances and bringing new product
offerings to our exchange. Prior to joining CheMatch, Mr. Boyle was employed by Koch Chemical
Company from July 1997 through July 1999 where he built the analysis function to guide trading, financial
derivatives and commercial development. Prior to his service with Koch, he was responsible for market
research of polymers and petrochemicals at Occidental Chemical. Mr. Boyle received a B.S. in Chemistry
from the University of Wisconsin at Parkside in 1977 and an M.B.A. from State University of New York
at Buffalo in 1987.

Deon Churchman joined CheMatch in July 1999 as Vice President — Polymers. Prior to joining
CheMatch, Mr. Churchman was a senior vice president and a co-founder of Performance Polymers where
he was employed from May 1989 to July 1998. While at Performance Polymers, he managed raw material
supply relationships and a joint venture with Prochem International, a plastics ard chemical intemational
trading enterprise with commercial relationships in the Pacific Rim, South America, Evrope, Africa, India
and the Middle East. From January 1987 to May 1989, Mr. Churchman was vice president of sales and
marketing with Plastic Distributing Corporation. He was also a director of sales and marketing for
Polycom Huntsman from June 1985 to January 1987 which acquired Georgia Pacific's Polymer Materials
Division where he was business manager of plastics resins from January 1984 to June 1985. He also served
as marketing manager of polypropylene and held various product and sales management positions with
Rexene Polyolefing Co. from April 1977 to January 1984.

Scott Creasman joined CheMatch in September 1999 as Vice President — Contreller. Prior to joining
CheMatch, he served as vice president — controller of Chemical Logistics Corporation from June 1998
through Aprl 1999, From November 1997 through June 1998, Mr. Creasman was employed by
U.S. Legal Support, Inc. as vice president and corporate controller. From October 1996 through August
1997, he served as controller of Brink’s Home Security, Inc. From July 1990 through October 1996,

Mr. Creasman was with Texas Eastern Products Pipeline Company, the operator of a publicly held
petroleum products pipeline company, most recently serving as their controller. He received a B.B.A. from
the University of Texas at Austin in 1987 and is a registered Certified Public Accountant in the state of
Texas.

Clifton Currin joined CheMatch in February 2000 as Vice President — Olefins. Prior to joining
CheMatch, Mr. Currin was a vice president of materials maragement with Equistar Chemicals LP from
May 1998 to November 1999. Previously he served as a vice president of Lyondell Chemical Company
from October 1994 to May 1998. Prior to his service with Lyondell, Mr, Currin was with ARCO. He
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received a B.S. and Masters from Corell University in 1976 and 1977, respectively, and an M.B.A. from
the University of Houston in 1981,

Gerard Elias joined CheMatch in September 1999 as Vice President — Communications and Investor
Relations. Prior to joining CheMatch, Mr. Elias was a director for Burson-Marsteller from August 1995
to August 1999. He received a C.A.M. from City University and the London School of Economics in
1986.

Michael Ereli joined CheMatich in November 1999 and was appointed Vice President — Technology
in January 2000. Prior to joining CheMatch, Mr. Ereli was the Information Technology director for Koch
Energy from February 1998 to October 1999 where he helped transform Koch from an asset-focused
enterprise to a commeodity trading organization. From September 1994 to January 1997, he worked as a
principal in the energy practice of CSC Consulting. Primarily in a business development role, Mr. Ereli
helped a number of energy companies develop e-commerce strategies, implement gas and power trading
systems and initiate business process change. From August 1984 to August 1994, he worked for Andersen
Consulting, ultimately serving as a manager in their global energy practice. Mr. Ereli received a B.A. from
Harvard University in 1984,

Matthew Frye joined CheMatch in July 1999 as Vice President — Sales and Marketing. Prior to
joining CheMatch, Mr. Frye served as vice president of electronic trading systems for Altra Energy
Technologies from January 1996 to March 1999, Prior to launching Altra Energy Technologies, he was
employed by Williams Energy Ventures from May 1993 to December 1995 where he served as a business
unit manager and was responsible for the development of the first real-time, anonymous online commedity
trading system. Mr. Frye also worked as a senior marketing representative and business development
representative for Williams Energy Company from December 1988 to April 1993, and as a senior financial
analyst for Tenneco Oil Company from January 1988 to December 1988. From June 1983 to December
1987, Mr. Frye was an accountant for Samsont Resources. He received a B.S. from Oklahoma State in
1983 and an M.B.A. from the University of Tulsa in 1987.

Roger Leedy joined CheMatch in July 1999 as Vice President — Aromatics. Prior to joining
CheMatch, he was general manager of JLM International’s Houston office from May 1998 to June 1999,
where he specialized in commodity aromatics trading. From March 1989 to April 1998, he directed all
domestic based purchasing activities and new market development for SentraChem International. Prior to
his service with SentraChem International, Mr. Leedy was senior vice president for plastics at CT
Chemicals, Inc. from Aprl 1988 to March 1989. Mr. Leedy received a B.S. from Parsons College in 1964
and a M.S. in Business Administration from Kansas State University in 1968.

Roberta Kowalishin joined CheMatch in February 2000 as Vice President — Technology Ventures.
Prior to joining CheMatch, Ms. Kowalishin was a partner and lead strategist with Computer Sciences
Corporation’s e-business practice from April 1996 to February 2000. While at CSC, she led several
e-business strategy projects in financial services, chemicals, auctions and industrial products markets. From
July 1994 to February 1996, she was a vice president at JP Morgan, leading emerging markets
infrastructure technologies. She also held the position of information technology manager at Agrinm, Inc,
North America’s largest producer of nitrogen fertilizers and a major producer of potash and phosphate
fertilizer, from December 1987 to August 1992. Ms. Kowalishin received an M.S. from the MIT Sloan
School of Management in 1994 and a B.C. from McGill University in 1984,

Simon Palmer joined CheMatch in August 1999 as Vice President — Aromatics and Chemical
Intermediates. Prior to joining CheMatch, Mr. Palmer served as vice president for DeWitt & Compény’s
benzene and derivatives business from December 1996 to August 1999 and was responsible for
management of all consulting services to a global client base that included Exxon, Shell, BASF, Amoco,
GE, ICI plc, Fina and Equistar. Prior to his service with DeWitt & Company, he worked for 1CI plc from
February 1981 to December 1996 in a variety of management positions including product, distribution,
customer service and marketing of films, chemicals and polymers. Mr. Palmer received an honours degree
in Business Studies from the University of London in 1984,
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Paul Pryzant joincd CheMatch in January 2000 as Vice President — Co-General Counsel. Prior to
joining CheMatch, Mr, Pryzant was senior vice president and general counsel of TransCom USA, a
publicly traded consolidator of the heavy duty truck parts industry, from April 1998 to January 2000. Prior
to that, Mr. Pryzant had 17 years of experience with various law firms, with a practice concentration in
corporate/sccurities law and mergers and acquisitions. Most recently, Mr. Pryzant was a shareholder with
Snell & Smith, P.C., Houston, Texas, from December 1994 to March 1998, and a partner with Butler
& Binion, Houston, Texas, from January 1990 to November 1994. He received a B.S. from the University
of Pennsylvania in 1978 and a J.D. from the University of Texas School of Law in 1981,

Jim Rahe joined CheMatch in July 1999 as vice president—Olefins and Unorganics. Prior to joining
CheMatch, he was with the Jones Graduate School of Management at Rice University from June 1994 to
June 1999. He served as vice president of petrochemical sales for Occidental Chemical Corporation from
August 1990 to May 1994. Prior to his service with Occidental Chemical Corporation, he held various
sales and marketing positions at Cain Chemical Company, Imperial Chemical Industries and Morsanto
Company. He received a B.S. from Qklahoma State University in 1963 and an M.B.A. in 1966.

Scott Skelton joined CheMatch in September 1999 as Vice President and General Counsel.
Mi. Shelton held various efficer level positions, including vice president of Koch Gateway Pipeline
Company within Koch Energy, Inc. from September 1997 to April 1999. While with Kock, Mr. Shelton
was involved in marketing financia! derivatives and in structuring natural gas gathering and processing
transactions. From April 1995 to August 1997, he served as vice president of Energy for Terra Industries,
Inc. and was responsible for purchase and delivery of natural gas for fertilizer plants and natural gas
financial hedging operaticns. Previously, he held various management and officer level positions with
Williams, Fina, and Perry Gas and was engaged in the private practice of law. He received a B.A. from
Texas Chrstian University in 1969 and a J.D. from the University of Texas School of Law in 1972.
Mr. Shelton has served as Chairman of the Oklahoma Industrial Energy Consumers and a member of
both the Oklahoma Natural Gas Policy Comumnission and the Oklahoma Joint Legislative Committee for
Electric Restructuring.

Kevin Wenta joined CheMatch in July 1999 as vice president—Business Development and e-Strategy.
Prior to joining CheMatch, Mr. Wenta specialized in e-commerce, business strategy formulation and
channel strategy for the Global Chemicals Practice of Andersen Consulting from March 1996 to
July 1999. Prior to his service with Andersen Consulting, Mr. Wenta was a general management
consultant at Towers Perrin from April 1994 to March 1996, a business plannping analyst for ARCO from
August 1991 to March 1994 and a sales representative for Shell Chemical from February 1987 to
May 1991. Mr. Wenta received a B.S. from the University of Texas at Austin in 1986 and an M.B.A.
from the University of Chicago in 1991.

Earl Armstrong has served as a director of CkeMatch since June 1999. He currently serves as a
principal and managing director at DeWitt & Company, Inc., an international petrochemical business-
consulting group, where he has been employed since March 1989. Prior to joining DeWitt, Mr. Armstrong
held various positions at Exxon Chemical from 1968 to 1987. He received a B.S. from the University of
Virginia in 1968.

Bob Gower has served as a director of CheMatch since February 2000. He currently serves as the
Chairman of Specified Fuels & Chemicals, LLC and manages several other investments. Mr. Gower
served as chief executive officer of Lyondell Petrochemical Company from April 1985 to December 1996,
when he retired. Prior to becoming chief executive officer, he held various positions with Sinclair Oil
Company and Atlantic Richfield before and after the merger of these two companies. He is currently a
director of Kirby Corporation and OmNova Solutiens, Inc. Mr. Gower received a B.A. and M.A. from
Southern Illinois in 1958 and 1960, respectively, and a Ph.D. in organic chemistry from the University of
Minnesota in 1963.

James Saviano has served as a director of CheMatch since February 2000. He currently serves as
Computer Sciences Corporation’s global vice president of ¢-business strategy. Mr, Saviano has held a
variety of positions with CSC since July 1986, including president and chief executive officer of its
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consulting unit. Prior to his service with CSC, he was a co-founder of Computer Partners, a management
consulting and systems integration company, and served as a systems analyst for Keane Associates. He
received a B.S. from the University of Massachusetts in 1964 and has pursued graduate studies in
computer science at Worcester Polytechnic Institute.

Janet Hickey has served as a director of CheMatch since December 1999. She has served as a
general partmer of the Sprout Group, a division of DLJ Capital Corporation, and a divisional senior vice
president of DLJ Capital Corporation since 1985. Ms. Hickey serves on the board of directors of Edison
Schools, Inc. and several private companies. The Sprout Group and DLJ Capital Corporation are affiliated
with Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, an underwriter of this offering.

David Tabors has served as a director of CheMatch since June 1999. He currently serves as a
principal of Battery Ventures where he has been employed since October 1995. Prior to joining Battery
Ventufes, he was an associate with Cambridge Associates from August 1993 to October 1995. Mr. Tabors
received a B.S. from Dartmouth College in 1993.

Board of Directors

Our board of directors currently consists of seven members. Currently, each director is elected for a
period of one year at our annual meeting of stockholders and serves until the next annual meeting or until
his or her successor is duly elected and qualified. There are no family relationships among the directors
and officers of CheMatch.

Board Committees

Our board of directors will have an audit committee and a compensation committee. The audit
committee will consist of Mr., Gower, Ms. Hickey and Mr. Saviano. The audit committee will make
recommendations to the board of directors regarding the selection of independent accountants, wiil review
the results and scope of audit and other services provided by our independent accountants and will review
and evaluate our audit and control functions. The compensation committee will consist of Ms. Hickey and
Mr. Tabors. The compensation committee will administer our stock plans and make decisions concerning
salaries and incentive compensation for our employees.

Director Compensation

Our employee directors do not receive any cash compensation from us for their services as members
of our board of diréctors. We reimburse our non-employee directors for travel and lodging expenses in
connection with their attendance at board and committee meetings. Additionally, our non-employee
directors will be paid $2,500 for each board meeting they attend and $500 for each committec meeting
they attend. In February 2000, we granted two of our non-employee directors, Mr. Gower and
MTr. Saviano, 25,000 options, 50% of which vested on the date of their grant and 50% of which vest ratably
on 2 monthly basis over a two year period. The exercise price for all of these options is $9.79 per share.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of our compensation committee is currently or has been at any time since the
formation of CheMatch, an officer or employee of CheMatch. No member of our compensaticn committee
serves as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or
more executive officers serving as a member of our board of directors or compensation committee.

Indemnification

Prior to the closing of this offering, we intend to enter into indemnification agreements with each of
our directors and executive officers. The form of indemnity agreement provides that we will indemnify our
directors or executive officers to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware faw.
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CheMatch's certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions relating to the limitation of
liability and indemnification of our directors and officers. The certificate of incorporation provides that
directors shall not be personally liable to CheMatch or its stockholders for monetary damages for any
breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability for:

any breach of a director’s duty of loyalty to CheMatch or its stockholders;

acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing vielation
of law;

unlawful paymcnis of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in
Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law; or

any transaction from which the director derives any improper personal benefit.

Qur certificate of incorporation also provides that if the Delaware General Corporation Law is
amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or Limiting the personal liability of directors
after our stockholders approve the certificate of incorporation, then the Hability of our directors shall be
eliminated or limited to the fuliest extent permitted by the amended Delaware General Corporation Law.
The foregoing provisions of our certificate of incorporation are not intended to limit the liability of
directors or officers for any violation of applicable federal securities laws. In addition, as permitted by
Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our certificate of incorporation provides that:

L)

we are required to indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by the
Delaware General Corporation Law,

» we are required to advance all expenses incurred by our directors and officers in connection with

legal proceedings relating to their service as an officer or director to the fullest extent permitted by
the Delaware General Corperation Law, subject to limited exceptions;

« the rights conferred in the certificate of incorperation are not exclusive; and

» we may not retroactively amend the provisions in our certificate of incorporation relating to

indemnity in a way that would adversely affect the rights of our directors or officers.
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Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth informatien with respect to compensation for the ycar ended
December 31, 1999 eamed by our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and our four other most highly
compensated executive officers at the end of fiscal 1999, collectively referred to in this progpectus as the
“named executive officers.”

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Compensation
Awards—

Annual Compensation 1;:;‘:?&;{ All Other

Name and Principal Position Salary Bonus Underlying Options Compensation{5)
Carl McCutcheon(l) ......vvvvvinn-. $130,769 $120,000 918,208 $3.923
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Lawrance McAfee(2)} ............ ... 53,846 60,000 175,789 376
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Director

Fred Cook............. N 80,231 45,000 70,018 2,407
Senior Vice President and General
Manager-North America

John Bohn(3) ...t 114,423 58,500 385,716 1,010

Former Chairman
Karen Morgan(4) ...ooovuviiinen.un. 114,423 58,500 299,316 3,000

Former Executive Officer

(1) Mr. McCutcheon joined CheMatch as President and Chief Executive Officer in June 1999 and was appointed
Chairman in January 2000,

(2) Mr. McAfee joined CheMatch as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in September 199% and was
appointed Executive Vice President and elected to cur board of directors in February 2000.

(3) Mr. Bohn resigned his position as Chairman effective January 26, 2000. For a discussion of Mr. Bohn's severance,
please read “Severance Agreements” below.

(4) Ms. Morgan resigned her position as an executive officer effective January 26, 2000. For a discussion of Ms.
Morgan’s severance, please read “Severance Agreements” below.

(5) Represents matching contributions to the CheMatch.com Employee Savings Plan on behalf of the named
executive officers for 1999,
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Stock Option Grants

The following table sets forth the stock options we granted during the fiscal year ended December 31,
1989, to each of the named executive officers, including the potential realizable value over the ten-year
term of the options, based on assumed rates of stock appreciation of 5% and 10%, compounded annually,
These assumed rates of appreciation comply with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and do not represent our estimate of future stock price. Actual gains, if any, on stock option exercises will
be dependent on the future performance of our common stock. In addition, the deemed value for the date
of grant was determined after the date of grant solely for financial accounting purposes.

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year lf ;tﬁ:;’tﬁle
Individual Grants Yalue at
Percent of Total Assumed
Options Granted Annual Rates
Number of  to Employees of Stock
Securities During the Fiscal Deemed Value P"?e .
Underlying  Year Ended  Exercise  per Share Appreciation
Options  December 31,  Price on Date Expiration for Optior Term
Name Granted 1999 ($/share) of Grant Date 5% 10%
Carl McCutcheon(1) ... 639,159 19.6% $1.34 $1.34 6/21/09 $538,631 $1,364,997
265,849 8.2 1.47 4.58 F145/09 1,592,525 2,767,313
13,200 04 .83 .1 4/30/09 12,911 27,048
Lawrance McAfee . ... .. 159,789 4.9 1.34 1.34 9/20/09 134,657 341,248
16,000 0.5 1.47 4,58 11/5/09 935,845 166,549
Fred Cook............. 57,018 1.7 1.34 1.34 6/21/09 48,050 121,768
13,000 04 1.47 4,58 11/5/09 77,874 135,321
John Bohn. .. ... ....... 266,316 3.2 1.34 1.34 6/21/09 224429 568,748
19,800 0.6 1.47 4.58 11/5/09 118,609 206,105
86,400 27 0.83 1.11 311709 84,506 177,038
13,200 04 0.83 1.11 4/30/09 12,911 27,048
Karen Morgan ......... 266,316 8.2 [.34 1.34 6/21/09 224,429 568,748
6,600 0.2 [.47 4,58 11/5/09 39,536 638,702
6,600 0.2 0.83 1.11 1731709 6,455 13,524
6,600 0.2 0.83 1.11 2728709 6,455 13,524
6,600 0.2 0.83 LI 3731709 6,455 13,524
6,600 0.2 (083 1.11 4/30/09 6,455 13,524

{1} Inciudes 523,778 stock options held for the benefit of Mr. McCutcheon and his family in the name of ADCAP
Investments, L.P., a family limited parinership.

Aggregated Stock Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

The following table sets forth for each of the named executive officers options exercised during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, and the number and value of securities underlying unexercised
options that were held by the named executive officers at December 31, 1999, The numbess in the column
entitled “Value Realized” are equal to the fair market value of the purchased shares on the option exercise
date, less the exercise price paid for those shares. The pumbers in the column entitied “Value of
Unexercised In-the-Money Options at December 31, 1999" are based on the fair market value of our
common stock at December 31, 1999 as determined by our board of directors, $7.85, less the exercise
price payable for such shares. The fair market value of our common stock at December 31, 1999 was
estimated by our board of directors based on an evaluation of our revenues, operating history and
prospects. The initial public offering price is expected to be higher than the estimated fair market value at
December 31, 1999. Consequently, the value of unexercised options could be higher than the numbers
shown in the table if the values were calculated by subtracting the option’s exercise price from the initial
public effering price.
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Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year End Option Values

Numtl:j:rdof !Sccuritims Vallfe of Uinexercised
i -the-M
Ng’;,’;c;or Uuexerligdyglg:tions nOpg:mso:te Y
Acquired on Value at December 31, 1999 December 31, 1999

Name Exercise Realized Yested Uarested Vested Unvested
Carl McCutcheon(1) ........... 319,580  $42,824 598,628 — $3,869,240 $—
Lawrance McAfee ............. - — 175,789 — 1,142,306 —
Fred Cook .. coiviniiiiinans, — — 70,018 —_ 454,127 —_
John BOBD(2) «.vvvrvnrinrnnns 133,158 17,843 341,808 — 2,223,285 —
Karen Morgan{3}.............. 133,158 17,843 321,258 — 1,995,597 —

(1) Mr. McCutcheon exercised 319,580 stock optiens in September 1999 that are subject to repurchase rights by the
Company. The repurchase rights expire with respect to 25% of the option shares in equal quarterly installments
during the one year period following the date of grant. With respect to 75% of the option shares, the repurchase
rights expire in equal monthly installments over the thirty-six month period following the first anniversary of the
date of grant. '

{2) Mr. Bohn exercised 133,158 stock options in October 1999 that are subject to repurchase rights by the Company.
The repurchase rights expire with respect to 25% of the option shares in equal guarterly installments during the
one year period following the date of grant. With respect to 75% of the option shares, the repurchase rights expire
in equal monthly installments over the thirty-six month period following the first anniversary of the date of grant.
Mr. Bohn resigned his position as Chairman effective January 26, 2000. For a discussion of Mr. Bohn's severance,
please read “Severance Agreements” below.

(3) Ms. Morgan exercised 133,158 stock optiens in September 1999 that are subject to vrepurchase rights by the
Company. The repurchase rights expire with respect to 25% of the option shares in equal quarterly installments
during the one year period following the date of grant, With respect to 75% of the option shares, the repurchase
rights expire in equal monthly installments over the thirty-six month period following the first anniversary of the
date of grant. Ms, Morgan resigned her position as an executive officer effective January 26, 2000. For a
discussion of Ms. Morgan’s severance, please read “Severance Agreements” below.

Employment Agreements and Change of Control Arrangements
Employment Agreements

CheMatch has entered into the following employment agreements with its named executive officers:

Officer Term Base Salary FPosition
Carl McCutcheon.......... v May 1999-April 2001 $200,000  Chairman, President and Chief
. Executive Officer
Lawrance McAfee .......... Not specified 200,000  Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Director
Fred Cook...........ccunnn June 1999-May 2001 140,000  Senior Vice President and General

Manager — Northk America

The employment agreements for each of thesc named executive officers provide for a discretionary,
cash bonus to be determined by the compensation committee of the board of directors. In connection with
their execution of these employment agreements, Mr. McCutcheon was granted 639,159 stock options on
June 21, 1999, Mr. McAfee was granted 159,789 stock options on September 20, 1999, and Mr. Cock was
granted 57,018 stock options on June 21, 1999. The option shares granted to each of the named exccutive
officers have a ten-year term and are exercisable immediately but are subject to a repurchase right over a
four year period. CheMatch has the right to repurchase the option shares at the exercise price. This
repurchase right expires in installments over the four-year period as follows:

« with respect to 25% of the option shares, the repurchase right is released in equal quarterly
installments during the one-year period commencing en the date of grant and expiring on the first
anniversary of the date of grant; and
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+ with respect to the remaining 75% of the option shares, the repurchase right is released in equal
monthly installments over the thirty-six month period commencing on the first anniversary of the
date of grant.

The employment agreements for Mr. McCutcheon and Mr. Cook each provide that CheMatch may
terminate their employment relationship for cause. In this event, CheMatch will be required to pay
accrued but unpaid salary and vacation as of the date of termination. No unvested option shares held by
these officers will become vested and all unexercised vested option shares will terminate 30 days following
the date of termination. If the employment relationship of these officers is terminated by CheMatch
without cause prior to a change of control, CheMatck will be obligated to, among other things:

+ pay to the named executive officer a sum equal to the greater of (i} the named executive officer’s
base salary through the end of the officer’s current employment term, or (ii) the annual base salary
in effect immediately prior to termination of the officer's employment;

+ pay accrued but unpaid salary, bonus, vacation and other benefits; and

« cause 50% of all unvested option shares held by the officer on the date of termination to become
vested option shares.

If the employment relationship of Mr. McCutcheon or Mr. Cook is terminated by CheMatch without
cause or is constructively terminated by CheMatch without cause, in either case following a change of
control, CheMatch will be obligated te make the payments described in the first two bullet points above.
Additionally, all of the unvested option shares held by the officer will become vested option shares.

If the employment relationship Mr. McCutcheon or Mr. Cook is terminated by reason of the
resignation, death or disability of any of these officers, all accrued but unpaid salary and other benefits
owing to the officer as of the date of the resignation, death or disahility will be paid by CheMatch.

The employment agreements for Mr. McCutcheon and Mr. Cook automatically renew for a term of
one year, unless CheMatch or the employee provide written notice at least 90 days prior to the expiration
of the prior term.,

Mr. McAfee is an “at will” employee. In the event that CheMatch terminates Mr. McAfee without
cause within the first two years of his employment, Mr. McAfee will be entitled to a severance payment
equal to six months of base salary.

The named executive officers’ employment agreements contain confidentiality obligations that survive
following the termination of their employment relationship (for two years in the case of Mr. McCutcheon
and Mr. Cook) and non-competition and non-selicitation obligations that survive for one year following the
termination of their employment relationship (or six months in the case of Mr. McAfee). Additionally, the
employment agreements of Mr. McCutcheon and Mr. Cook obligate CheMatch to indemnify them in

specified circumstances.

Management Incentive Agreement

We have executed an amended and restated management incentive agreement which obligates us to
make an incentive payment to current and former members of CheMatch’s management team and current
employees in the event of a fundamental change. For purposes of the letter agreement, a “fundamental
change” means: (i) the sale or transfer in one or more related transactions, of equity securities
representing in excess of 50% of the voting power of CheMatch’s capital stock, or all or substantially all of
the assets of the Company, and in both cases based on a valuation of CheMatch of at least
$200 million; or (ii) a public offering of CheMatch’s securities in which the aggregate net proceeds from
such offering to CheMatch are at least $25 million and the price per share paid by the public is at least
$9.87.
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This offering will constitutc a fundamental change under the management incentive agreement, under
which we will be obligated to pay current and former members of our management team and current -
employees a specified portion of the proceeds attributable to the fundamental change. The portion of the
net proceeds of this offering payable to these individuals will be two percent of the average daily closing
price of our common stock for the ninety day period immediately following the consummation of this
offering, multiplied by the number of shares of common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis on the
90th day immediately following the consummation of this offering. The maximum amount payable under
the management incentive agreement is $15 million. Sixty percent of the total amount payable, or a
maximum of $9 million, will be paid to current officers and employees. Carl McCutcheon, cur Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, will receive 20% of the total payment up to a maximum of
$3 million, Lawrance McAfee, our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Director, will
receive 15% of the total payment up to a maximum of $2.25 million, and the remaining 25% up to a
maximum of $3.75 million wili be paid to other current employees in management’s discretion. John Bohn,
our former Chairman, and Karen Morgan, a former executive and the founder of PetroChemNet, will each
receive 20% of the total payment up to 2 maximum of $3 million each.

Additionally, in connection with the amendment of the management incentive agreement, options for
the purchase of common stock of the Company were granted on February 8, 2000, as set forth below:

Number of
Name _ Cptions Exercise Price
Carl MeCUICHEOM .« . oottt t i ees s iireeseaneaonarsanaraanaaans 168,000 $27.28
) D T2 751 1 ¥ A R 168,000 27.28
Karen MOTZam . ..o ottt ittt rae s rarasrrrarrrns 168,000 27128
Lawrance MCALer . ... 1ttt it rnnr e rcaaccananennenanan 126,000 27.28
Other EMPIOYees . ..ottt iiii i iarensnraraneeeenaaeeeaenns 210,600 27.28
1<) -1 AN 840,000

These options are vested, and will expire on February 8, 2005. One-half of these options will become
exercisable on February 8, 2001, and the remaining options wili become exercisable on February 8, 2002.
In all other respects, the options will be issued under the terms and conditions of the Company’s 1999
Stock Plan with the exception that the options will not terminate if the above person’s employment or
other relationship with the Company terminates.

Severance Agreements

John Bohn resigned as Chairman of our board of directors effective January 26, 2000. In connection
with his resignation, Mr. Bohn and CheMatch entered into a Consultant and Release Agreement which
entitles him to receive a total of $218,750 in equal installments over a fifteen month period beginning in
February 2000 for services to be rendered by him as our consultant. There is no minimum number of
hours of service required of Mr. Bohn under the agreement. Mr. Bohn is also entitled to a bonus of
$87,500 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2000 and a benus of §29,167 for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2001. As a result of the agreement, all of Mr. Bohn’s unvested options under our 1997
Stock Plan became vested and all of Mr. Bohn’s options under our 1999 Stock Plan were released from
repurchase rights held by CheMatch. Mr. Bohn was awarded a total of 188,850 options under our 1997
Stock Plan and 286,116 options under ocur 1999 Stock Plan. Mr. Bohn has executed a general release in
favor of CheMatch.

Prior to April 30, 2001, Mr. Bohn has agreed not to ¢ngage in any business, investment or activity
that is contrary to the interests of CheMatch or its affiliates. Additionally, through April 30, 2002,
Mr. Bohn is prohibited from competing with CheMatch or soliciting any person engaged by CheMatch.
He is also required to maintain CheMatch’s confidential information until April 30, 2003.

Mr. Bohn had served as our Chairman from July 1997 uatil his resignation. Prior to joining
CheMatch, Mr. Bohn served as the president of Moody's Investors Service from 1989 to 1996, Mr. Bohn
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served a three-year term as president and chairman of the Export Import Bank of the United States from
1986 to 1989. Prior to his service with the Export Impert Bank, as chairman, he served two years as vice
chairman. Mr. Bohn was special assistant to the Secretary of the Treasury from 1981 to 1984, and served
concurrently as UJ.S. Ambassador and executive director at the Asian Development Baok in Manila from
Sept. 1981 to 1984. Prior to joining the government he spent 13 years in international banking in Asia.

Karen Morgan resigned as Executive Vice President effective January 26, 2000. In connection with
her resignation, Ms. Morgan and CheMatch entered into a Consultant and Release Agreement which
_entitles her to receive a total of $218,750 in equal installments over a fifteen month period beginning in
February 2000 for services 1o be rendered by her as our consultant. There is no minimum number of hours
of service required of Ms. Morgan under the agreement. Ms. Morgan is also entitled to a bonus of $87,500
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2000 and a bonus of $29,167 for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2001. As a result of the agreement, all of Ms. Morgan's unvested options under our 1997
Stock Plan became vested and all of Ms. Morgan’s options under our 1999 Stock Plan were released from
repurchase rights held by CheMatch. Ms. Morgan was awarded a total of 181,500 options under our 1997
Stock Plan and 272,916 options under our 1999 Stock Plan. Ms. Morgan has executed a general release in
favor of CheMatch.

Ms. Morgan has agreed not to engage in any business, investment or activity prior to April 30, 2001
that is contrary to the interests of CheMatch or its affiliates. Additionally, through Aprl 30, 2002,
Ms. Morgan is prohibited from competing with CheMatch or soliciting any person engaged by CheMatch.
She is also required to maintain CheMatch’s confidential information until April 30, 2003.

Ms. Morgan founded T3 Technologies, a web technology company, which later became
PetroChemNet Inc. in 1997. She served as President and Chief Executive Officer of PetroChemNet untit
1998, developing strategic relationships, technology and infrastructure applications. In 1999, she facilitated
the merger of CheMatch Inc. into CheMatch.

Employee Stock Plans
1997 Srock Plan

Qur 1997 Employee, Director and Consultant Stock Option Plan provides for the granting of stock
options to eligible employees, officers, directors, including non-employee directors, and consultants of
CheMatch. Stock options granted under the 1997 Stock Plan may be either “incentive stock options”
within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or nonstatutory
stock options, which are options not intended to qualify as incentive stock options. Incentive stock options
may be granted only to employees of CheMatch and nonstatutory stock options may be granted to
employees, officers, directors and consultants.

As of February 16, 2000, 1,086,150 shares of common stock were issuable upon the exercise of
outstanding options granted under the 1997 Stock Plan at a weighted average exercise price of $1.93, and
with remaining terms ranging from seven to nine years. The 1997 Stock Plan, which was adopted by
PetroChemNet, Inc. and its stockhelders in November 1997, was assumed by us and immediately
terminated in connection with our acquisition of PetroChemNet in June 1999 and no additional options
may be issued thereunder. The 1997 Stock Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of our
board of directors.

In the event of a merger or consolidaticn of CheMatch with or into another corporation or upon the
sale of all or substantially all of CheMatch’s assets, the successor corporation must make appropriate
provision for the cutstanding options by substituting for the shares then subject to the options either
securitics of the successor entity or the consideration payable with respect to the outstanding shares of
common stock in connection with the acquisition. Upon written notice to the optionees, the successor may
require that optionees exercise their options within a specified number of days at the end of which, the
options shall terminate. The successor may also elect to terminate the cutstanding options in exchange for
a cash payment equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares subject to the options over their
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exercise price. In the event of a proposed dissolution or liquidation of CheMatch, each outstanding option
or stock purchase right granted under the 1997 Stock Plan will terminate.

1999 Stock Plan

Our 1999 Stock Plan provides for the granting of stock options, stock awards and stock purchase
rights to eligible employees, officers, directors, including non-employee directors, and consultants of
CheMatch. Stock options granted under the 1999 Stock Plan may be either “incentive stock options™
within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or nonstatutory
stock options, which are options not intended to qualify as incentive stock options. Stock purchase rights
granted under the 1999 Stock Plan allow a recipient to purchase shares of common stock directly from
CheMatch. Incentive stock options may be granted only to employees of CheMatch and nonstatutory stock
options, stock awards and stock purchase rights may be pranted to employees, officers, directors and
consultants.

A maximum of 4,500,000 shares are authorized for issuance under the 1999 Stock Plan. As of
February 16, 2000, 3,396,406 shares of common stock were issuable upon the exercise of cutstanding
options granted under the 1999 Stock Plan at a weighted average exercise price of $8.74. 612,896 shares of
common stock have been issued under this plan, feaving 490,698 authorized shares not subject to
outstanding options. The 1999 Stock Plan was adopted by our Board of Directors in June 1999 and was
approved by our stockholders in June 1999. Unless terminated earlier by our Board of Directors, the 1999
Stock Plan will terminate in June 2009.

The 1999 Stock Plan may be administered by the Board of Directors or a committee appointed by the
Board of Directors to administer the 1999 Stock Plan. The administrator has the authority to grant
options, stock awards and stock purchase rights and to determine the terms of these awards, provided these
grants are not inconsistent with the terms of the 1999 Stock Plan. In no event, however, may an individual
receive option grants for more than 1,000,000 shares under the 1999 Stock Plan in any fiscal year.

Stock options granted under the 1999 Stock Plan may not have a term of more than ten years and

- generally remain exercisable for a period of three months following termination of the optionee’s
employment or consulting relationship with CheMatch, with longer periods applying in the event this
termination occurs as a result of death or disability. The exercise price of all incentive stock options must
be at least equal to the fair market value of the common stock at the time of grant, except in the case of
incentive stock options granted to persons owning stock that represents more than 10% of the total
combined voting power of ail classes of the outstanding capital stock of CheMateh, in which case the
exercise price must equal at least 110% of the fair market value of the common stock at the time of grant.
The exercise price of nonstatutory stock options may be less than the fair market valve of the common
stock at the time of grant, however, the exercise price must be at least 100% of the fair market value if
the option is intended to qualify as performance-based compensation under tax rules. Options granted
under the 1999 Stock Qption Plan are either fully exercisable on the date of grant or will become
exercisable in such instaflments as the administrator may specify. Only $100,000 in incentive stock options
(determined at the time the incentive stock options were granted) may become exercisable by an
employee for the first time in any one calendar year. Incentive stock options granted under the 1999 Stock
Plan are generally not transferable, although the administrator has the discretion to allow transferability of
nonstatutory stock options.

In the event of a merger or consolidation of CheMatch with or into another corporation where the
successor corporation issues its securities to CheMatch stockholders and holders of our common stock
before the event hold, as a group, less than a majority of the voting securities of the survivor or upon the
sale of all or substantially all of CheMatch’s assets, each outstanding option or stock purchase right must
be assumed or an equivalent option or stock purchase right shall be substituted by the successor
corporation. Upon written notice to the optionees, the successor may require that optionees exercise their
options within a specified number of days at the end of which, the options shall terminate. The successor
may also elect to terminate the outstanding options in exchange for a cash payment equal to the excess of
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the fair market value of the shares subject to the options over their exercise price. In the event of a
proposed dissolution or liquidation of CheMatch, each outstanding option or stock purchase right granted
under the 1999 Stock Plan -shall terminate. The administrator has the authority to amend or terminate the
1999 Stock Plan provided that no action that impairs the rights of any holder of an cutstanding option
may be taken without the holders’ consent. In addition, stockholder approval will be obtained for any
amendment to the extent required by applicable law.

In addition to stock options, the administrator may issue stock awards and stock purchase rights under
the 1999 Stock Plan to employees, directors and consultants. The administrator determines the number of

shares, price, term and condition and restrictions related to a grant of stock awards and stock purchase
rights,
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a discussion of transactions between us and our executive officers, directors and
stockbolders owning more than five percent of any class of our voting securities.

Investments in CheMatch

Since our inception, our executive officers, directors and 5% stockholders have invested cash and other
property in CheMatch in exchange for shares of our convertible preferred stock and our common stock.
The following table summarizes the shares of our convertible preferred stock and our commeon stock
acquired from us by our executive officess, directors and 5% stockholders since our inception. See

“Prncipal Stockholders” for a summary of the affiliations of each of the persons and entities described
below.

Convertible

Common Convertible Preferred
Common  Stock Preferred Stock
Stock  Warrants Stock Warrants

5% Stockholders:

Entities Affiliated with Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc.(1) .. —_— — 1,518,463 1,146,490
Battery Ventures Entities{2) ............ .o oL, — — 4,807,540 3,605,655
E.I. duPont de Nemours and Company(3) .................. 636,943 — 891,716 668,787
Directors and Execuative Officers:
Earl Armstrong(4) . ..ot s 154,440 115,830 — —
L o B ). ) 115,830 86,873 — —
Lawrance McAfee(8) ... ... i e — — 8,785 6,589
Carl McCutcheon(7) ... ... ... e, 107,100 —_ 8,785 6,589
John Sharum(6) ....cv.ivirii it et e e — — 8,785 6,589
Fornter Directors and Executive Officers:
John Bohn(8).............. b e e, 272,400 4,500 — —_
Karen Morgan(®) ... .ot iai it riineena e 196,200 3,000 — —

(1} Represents shares of Series C convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase additional shares of Series C
convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $7.85 per share purchased by the Entities Affiliated with
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc. on November 24, [999. One of our directors, Janet Hickey, is affiliated with
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc. Please see “Principal Stockholders” for a description of Ms. Hickey's
affitiation with Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc.

{2) Represents 2,138,400 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase 1,603,800 additional
shares of Series A convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $2.3484 per share purchased by the Battery
Ventures Entities on June 21, 1999 for approximately $5 million; 2,032,200 shares of Seres B convertible .
preferred stock and warrants to purchase 1,524,150 additional shares of Series B convertible preferred stock at an
exercise price of $2.4673 per share purchased by the Battery Ventures Entities on September 27, 1999 for
approximately $5 million; and 636,940 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase
477,705 additional shares of Series C convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $7.85 per share purchased
by the Battery Ventures Entities on November 24, 1999 for a total consideration of approximately $5 million. One
of our directors, R. David Tabors, is affiliated with the Batiery Ventures Entities. Please see “Principal
Stockholders™ for a description of Mr. Tabor’s affiliation with the Battery Ventures Entitics.

(3) Represents shares of common stock purchased by duPont on November 24, 1999 for $6,369 and shares of
Series C convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase additional shares of Series C convertible preferred
stock at an exercise price of $7.85 per share purchased on the same date for approximately $7 million.

(4) Represents shares of common stock and warrants to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$1.336 per share, in each case received by Mr. Armstreng, together with $237.800 in return for his interests in
CheMatch, Inc. in connection with our acquisition of CheMatch, Inc. shortly after our incorporation.

(5) Represents shares of common stock and warrants to purchase shares of commeon stock at an exercise price of
$1.336 per share, in each case received by Mr. Cook, together with $202.000, in return for his interests in
CheMatch, Inc. in connection with our acquisition of CheMatch, Inc. shortly after our incorporation.

59



(6) Represents shares of Series C convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase additional shares of Series C
convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $7.85 per share purchased on November 24, 1999,

(7) Represents shares of common stock received by Mr. McCutcheon in return for his interest in PetroChemNet,
Inc. in connection with our acquisition of PetroChemNet, Inc. shortly after our incorporation; shares of Series C
convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase additional shares of Series C convertible preferred stock at
an exercise price of $7.85 per share purchased on November 24, 1999; and does not include shares obtained upon
the exercise of options granted to Mr. McCutcheon pursuant to the 1999 Stock Option Plan. 53,700 shares of the
commen stock and all of the shares of Series C convertible preferred stock are held in the name of ADCAP
[nvestments, L.P., a family limited partnership for the benefit of Mr. McCutcheon and his family. Additionally,
12,740 shares of the common stock are held in trusts in the name of Mr. McCutcheon’s minor children.

(8) Represents shares of common stock and warrants 1o purchase shares of common stock at an exerctse price of
$3.33 per share, in each case received by Mr. Bohn in retum for his interest in PetroChemNet, Inc. in connection
with our acquisition of PetroChemNet, Inc. shortly after our incorporation.

(9) Represents shares of common stock and warrants to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$3.33 per share, in each case received by Ms. Morgan in retum for her interest in PetroChemNet, Inc. in
connection with our acquisition of PetroChemNet, Inc. shortly after our incorporation.

Each share of our convertible preferred stock is convertible into one share of commeon stock. Each of
the persons named in the table above wilt convert all of their warrants to purchase additional shares of
convertible preferred stock into shares of convertible preferred stock and convert all of their shares of
convertible preferred stock into shares of commeon stock prior to the consummation of this offering.

Diirector and Officer Loans

The following table illustrates the amount of debt of our current and former executive officers and
directors owed to us and outstanding and the rate of interest charged on the debt owed.

Debt Outstanding  Rate of Interest

Carl McCutcheon .......... R, $426,959 5.42%
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

John Bohn ... ..o 177,899 5.54
Former Chairman

Karer Morgan ........ E e e b 177,899 542

Former Executive Officer

In each case, the debt of these individuals was incurred in connection with their exercise of stock
options. Each of these individuals has executed one or more promissory notes in September or October
1999 in respect of their indebtedness secured by the common stock underlying the exercised stock options.
The amount of debt outstanding for each of them represents the entire principal amount of these secured
promissory notes and the largest aggregate amount of debt outstanding for each of these individuals since
our inception. The principal of Mr. McCutcheon's note is payable upon the earlier of three years from the
issuance date, the date Mr. McCutcheon ceases employment with CheMatch, or upon the sale or transfer
of the shares of common stock securing the note, with interest payable on June 30 of each year and at
maturity. The principal of the notes of Mr. Bohn and Ms. Morgan is payable upon the earlier of
January 26, 2001 or the sale or transfer of the shares securing the notes, with interest payable on June 30
of each year and at maturity.

Alliance with DeWitt & Company, Incorporated

We executed an Alliance Agreement on June 21, 1999 with DeWitt & Company, Incorporated
(“DeWitt™), which is 50% owned by Earl H. Armstrong and of which he is the Managing Director. Under
the Alliance Agreement, we have agreed that DeWitt will provide chemical industry trading analytics for
our trading exchange, and we have granted to DeWitt a right to a preferred display on our trading screen
for products and services offered by DeWitt. We have also agreed to share development and other costs,
and to share fees generated from the sale of some of DeWitt's products and services offered on our trading
exchange. We have the right to terminate the Alliance Agrecment at any time upen the ‘payment to
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DeWitt of $500,000. DeWitt may terminate the Agreement upon one year’s prior notice and the payment
of $60,000. During the year ended December 31, 1999, we paid DeWitt approximately $70,836 for services
rendered and for reimbursement of various expenses. In addition, we reimbursed $146,400 to DeWitt for
Jegal fees and expenses incurred in June 1999 in connection with DeWiit’s sale of CheMatch, Inc. to us.

Registration Righis Agreement

We have entered into a registration rights agreement with the Entities Affiliated with Denaldson,
Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc., the Battery Ventures Entities, E.I. duPont de Nemours and Company, Earl
Armstrong, Fred Cook, Lawrance McAfee, Carl McCutcheon, Johr Sharum and other holders of our
common and convertible preferred stock. This registration rights agreement is described under “Description
of Capital Stock — Registration Rights Agreement.”

Indemnification Agreements

We expect to enter into indemnification agreements with our directors and executive officers
containing provisions requiring us to, among other things, indemnify them against liabilities that may arise
by reason of their status or service, other than liabilities arising from willful misconduct of a culpable
nature, and to advance expenses they incur as a result of any proceeding against them as to which they
could be indemnified.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth, as of February 16, 2000, icformation with respect to shares beneficially

owned by:

+ cach person who we know to be the beneficial owner of more thag five percent of our outstanding

shares of common stock;
+ each of the named executive officers;
= each of our directors; and

+ all current directors and executive officers as a group.

We have determined beneficial ownersbhip in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934. Applicable percentage ownership in the following table is based on 19,146,150
shares of common stock outstanding as of February 16, 2000, as adjusted to reflect the conversion of all
outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock and all warrants to purchase shares of common stock and

convertible preferred stock that would otherwise expire upon consumimnation of this offering,

Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each listed stockholder is: ¢/o CheMatch.com, Inc.,

2900 North Loop West, Suite 1120, Houston, Texas 77092. To our knowledge, except as indicated in the
footnotes to this table or pursuant to applicable community property laws, the persons named in the table

have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of common stock indicated.

Shares

5% Stockholders, Named Officers, Directors, Beneficially
and Directors and Executive Officers as a Group Owned
Battery Ventures Entities{(1) ......... ... ... .. ittt 8,413,195

20 Williams Street
Wellesley, MA 02481
Entities Affiliated with Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc.{2)} .... 2,664,953
c/o The Sprout Group
277 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10172
E.L. duPont de Nemours and Company(3) .................... 2,197,446
1007 Market Street, D-9000
Wiimington, DE 19898

Earl Armstrong(4) ........: et U e 270,270
John Bohn(5) ..o e 751,866
Fred Cook(B) ... oiii i ittt 292,703
Bob Gower(7) ..o i 13,040
Janet Hickey(8) ..ottt it i e eiee e 2,664,953
Lawrance McALee .. . i i e it e 191,163
Carl McCutcheon(9) ... i i ittt ce e eas 1,031,002
Karen Morgan(10) .......iiirrirriii it iiriiaarraernannas 689,029
James Saviano(7) ...t e 13,040
David Tabors(11) ..ot i iieiaaenarrnannns 8,413,195
Directors and Executive Officers as a group a total of 12(12)..... 13,161,950

* Less than one percent

Percent Beneficially Owned

Before
Offering

43.9%

13.9%

11.5%

1.4%
3.9%
1.5%

*

13.9%
*
3.2%
3.5%
*
43.9%
04.9%

After
Offering

(1) The entities listed above as Battery Venturcs Entities include Battery Ventures V, L.P_, Battery Investment

Partners V L.L.C. and Battery Ventures Convergence Fund, L.P.

{(2) The entities listed above as Entities Affiliated with Donaldsen, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc., a subsidiary of The
Equitable Life Assurance Society of the United States (the “DLJ Eatities™), include Sprout Capital VIII, L.P,,

Sprout Venture Capital, L.P., DL] ESC II, L.P. and DLJ Capital Corporation. DLJ ESC 11, L.P. is an

Employees’ Securities Corporation as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940. The general partner of
DLJ ESC I1, L.P. is DLJ LBO Plans Management Corporation and the limited partners of DLJ ESC 11, L.P.
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(3)

(4)
&)

(6)
N

(8)

(9}

(10)

(11}

(12)

are current or former employees of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc. and its affiliates. DLJ Capital
Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Inc, Sprout Capital VIII, L.P.is a
Delaware limited partnership of which DLJ Capita! Corporation is the managing general partner. Sprout Venture
Capital, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership of which DLJ Capital Corporation is the managing general
partner. The DLJ Entities will place a sufficient number of their shares in a voting trust so that upon the
consummation of this offering, the DLJ Entities will exercise voting control over less than five percent of the
outstanding shares of common stock. The shares subject to the voting trust are held and voted by an
independent third party, Norwest Bank Indiana, N.A., as voting trustee. DLJ Capital Corporation has the power
to dispose of the shares subject to the voting trust that were formerly held by DLJ Capital Corporation, Sprout
Capital VIII, L.P. and Sprout Venture Capital, L.P. DLJ LBO Plans Management Corporation has the power to
dispose of the shares subject to the voting trust that were formerly held by DLJ ESC 11, L.P. DLJ Capital
Corporation has the power to vote and dispose of the shares held by Sprout Capitat VIII, L.P. that are not
subject to the voting trust.

Pursuant to its strategic ailiance with CheMatch, duPont can eam up to $2.0 million in commissions through
December 31, 2000 from trades by customers it brings to our exchange and who meet specified trading
thresholds. These commissions are payable in shares of common stock valued at their market price at the time
of issuance.

Includes 115,830 shares of common stock tssuable vpon the exercise of warrants exercisable within 60 days.

Includes 346,308 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants and options exercisable within
60 days.

Includes 176,873 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants and options exercisable within
60 days.

Represents shares issuable upon the exercise of director stock options. In each case, 520 of such shares are
exercisable within 60 days.

Ms. Hickey, a director of CheMatch, is a general partner of the Sprout Group, a division of DLJ Capital
Corporation, and a divisional senior vice president of DI.J Capital Corporation. She may be deemed to be a
beneficial owner of these shares, but she disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares,

Includes 8,785 shares of Seres C convertible preferred stock, 6,589 warrants to purchase shares of Sedes C
convertible preferred stock, 360,540 shares of common stock and 523,778 options to purchase shares of common
stock held in the name of ADCAP Investments, L.P., a family limited partnership for the benefit of

Mr. McCutcheon and his family. This total does not include 12,740 shares of common stock held in trusts for
the benefit of Mr. McCutcheon’s minor children, the trustee of which is Mr. McCutcheon’s brother, Richard
MeCutcheon. Mr. McCutcheon disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held in these trusts.

Includes 324,258 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants and options exercisable within
60 days.

Mr. Tabors, a director of CheMatch, is an employee of Battery Ventures ¥V, L.P, and Battery Ventures and a
limited member of Battery Investment Pariners ¥, LL.C., He may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of these
shares, but he disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares.

This group consists of 12 persons. Includes 8,413,195 shares of common stock beneficially owned by Battery
Ventures Entities, see Note (2) above, and 2,664,953 shares of common stock beneficially owned by the

DLJ Entities, see Note (4) above. Mr. Tabors and Ms. Hickey disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares held
by Battery Ventures Entities and the DLJ Entities, respectively.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Immediately following the consummation of this offering, the authorized capital stock of CheMatch
will consist of 50,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share, and 5,000,000 shares of
preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, the rights and preferences of which may be established from time
to time by our board of directors. Upon completion of this offering, there will be outstanding
shares of common stock, no outstanding shares of preferred stock, options to purchase 4,482,556 shares of
commnton stock and outstanding warrants to purchase 397,440 shares of common stock.

The following discussion summarizes the material provisions of our capital stock and the anti-takeover
provisions that will be contained in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws upon consummation of this
offering. This summary is qualified by our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, copies of which have
been filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part and by Delaware law.

Common Stock

As of February 16, 2000, there were 5,234,482 shares of common stock outstanding that were held of
record by more than 50 stockholders. Assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option and
assuming no exercise of outstanding options after February 16, 2000, there will be shares of
common stock outstanding following the sale of shares of common stock to the public contemplated by
this offering and the conversion of our outstanding preferred stock into common stock at a one-to-one
ratio. Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon by the
stockholders. Because holders of common stock do not have cumulative voting rights, the holders of a
majority of the shares of common stock can elect all of the members of the board of directors standing for
election. Subject to preferences of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future, the holders of
common stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by the board of directors. The
common stock is entitled to receive pro rata all of the assets of CheMatch available for distribution to its
stockholders. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the common stock. All
outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and non-assessable.

Preferred Stock

The board of directors has the authority to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or
more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof, incleding dividend rights,
dividend rates, conversion rates, voting rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation
preferences and the number of shares constituting any series or the designation of that series, which may
be superior to those of the common stock, without further vote or action by the stockholders. There will be
no shares of preferred stock cutstanding upon the closing of the offering and we have no present plans to
issue any preferred stock.

One of the effects of undesignated preferred stock may be to enable the board of directors to render
more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a tender offer, proxy contest,
merger or otherwise, and as a result to protect the continuity of our management. The issuance of shares
of the preferred stock by the board of directors as described above may adversely affect the rights of the
helders of common stock. For example, preferred stock issued by us may rank prior to the common stock
as to dividend rights, liquidation preference or both, may have full or limited voting rights and may be
convertible into shares of common stock. Accordingly, the issuance of shares of preferred stock may
discourage bids for the common stock or may otherwise adversely affect the market price of the common
stock.

Options

As of February 16, 2000, opticns to purchase a total of 4,482,556 shares of common stock were
outstanding, and up to 490,698 shares of common stock may be subject to options granted in the future
under our existing stock option plans.
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Warrants

As of February 16, 2000, there were 397,440 warrants outstanding and exercisable to purchase shares
of our common stock at an exercise price of $3.33 per share, assuming the expiration or earlier exercise of
all outstanding warrants to purchase common or preferred stock that expire upon consummation of this
Offering. These warrants expire at various dates between 2002 and 2004,

Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of Qur Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law
Written Consent of Stockholders

Our certificate of incorporation provides that any action by our stockholders must be taken at an
annual or special meeting of stockholders. Special mectings of the stockholders may be called only by the
board of directors. This provision, which requires a vote of at least 50% of the voting power of the
outstanding shares of common stock to be amended, could kave the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or
delaying changes in control.

Advance Notice Procedure for Stockholder Proposals

QOur bylaws establish an advance notice procedure for the nomination of candidates for election as
. directors as well as for stockholder proposals to be considered at annual meetings of stockholders. In
general, notice of intent to nominate a director must be delivered to or mailed and received at our
principal executive offices as follows:

+ With respect to an election to be held at the annual meeting of stockholders, not later than 90 days
nor earlier than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting
of stockholders.

+ With respect to an election to be held at a special meeting of stockholders for the election of
directors, not earlier than 120 days prior to the special meeting nor later than 90 days prior to the
special meeting or 10 days after the first public announcement of the special meeting,

Notice of stockholders’ intent to raise business at an annual meeting generally must be delivered to or
mailed and received at our principal executive offices not later than 90 days nor earlier than 120 days prior
to the anniversary date of the preceding annual meeting of stockholders. These procedures may operate to
limit the ability of stockholders to bring business before a stockholders meeting, including with respect to
the nomination of directors of ‘considering any transaction that could result in a change in control.

Limitation of Liability of Officers and Directors

Our certificate of incerperation provides that no director shall be personally liable to CheMatch or its
stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability as follows:

» for any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to CheMatch or its stockholders

» for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or knowing violation
of laws

for unlawful payment of a dividend or unlawful stock purchase or stock redemption

« for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit

The effect of these provisions is to eliminate the rights of CheMatch and its stockholders, through
stockholders” derivative suits on behalf of CheMatch, to recover monetary damages against a director for

breach of fiduciary duty as a director, including breaches resulting from grossly negligent behavior, except
in the situations described above.
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Delaware Takeover Statute

We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation law which regulates corporate
acquisitions. This law provides that specified persons who, together with affiliates and associates, own, or
within three years did own, 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of a corporation may not engage
in certain business combinations with the corporation for a period of three years after the date on which
the person became an interested stockholder. The law does not include interested stockholders prior to the
time our common stock is authorized for quotation on the Nasdagq National Market. The law defines the
term “‘business combination™ to encompass a wide variety of transactions with or caused by an interested
. stockholder, including mergers, asset sales and other transactions in which the interested stockholder
receives or could receive a benefit on other than a pro rata basis with other stockholders. This provision
has an anti-takeover effect with respect to transactions not approved in advance by our Board of Directors,
including discouraging takeover attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the
shares of our common stock. With approval of our stockholders, we could amend our certificate of
incorporation in the future to avoid the restrictions imposed by this anti-takeover law,

Registration Rights

The holders of 12,988,418 shares of our common stock that will be outstanding after this offering are
entitied to require us to register the sales of their shares under the Securities Act, under the terms of an
Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement between us and the holders of these securities.
Subject to Hmitations specified in this agreement, these registration rights include the following:

= two demand registration rights that holders of the requisite number of shares may exercise no
sooner than 180 days after our initial public offering, which require us to register sales of a holder’s
shares, subject to the discretion of the managing underwriter of the offering to decrease the amount
that holders may register;

= an unlimited number of piggyback registration rights that require us to register sales of a holder’s
shares when we undertake a public offering, subject to the discretion of the managing underwriter
of the offering to decrease the amount that holders may register; and

+ an unlimited number of rights to require us to register sales of shares on Form S-3, a short form of
registration statement permitted to be used by some companies, which holders may exercise if they
request registration of the sale of more than $1 million of common stock following the time we first
qualify for the use of this form of registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We will bear all registration expenses if these registration rights are exercised, other than underwriting
discounts and selling comumissions. These registration rights terminate four years after the completion of
our initial public offering.

TFransfer Agent and Registrar

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for the common stock is Harris Trust and Savings Bank, and its
telephone number is (800) 577-5042.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to this offering, there has been no market for our commeon stock. Future sales of substantial
amounts of our common stock in the public market could adversely affect prevailing market prices. Sales
of substantial amounts of our commor stock in the public market after any restrictions on sale lapse could

adversely affect the prevailing market price of the common stock and impair our ability to raise equity
capital in the future.

Upon completion of the offering, we will have outstanding shares of common stock,

outstanding options to purchase shares of common stock and outstanding warrants to purchase

shares of commeon stock, assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option and no
additional option or warrant grants or exercises after . 2000. Of the shares sold in the
offering, shares will be subject to the Jock-up agreements described below assuming that we sell
all shares reserved under our directed share program to the entities or persons for whom these shares have
been reserved. We expect that the remaining shares, plus any shares issued upon exercise of the
underwriters' over-atlotment option, will be freely tradable without restriction under the Securities Act,
unless purchased by our “affiliates” as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

The remaining shares outstanding and shares subject to outstanding options and
warrants are “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144. Restricted securities may be sold in
the public market only if the sale is registered or if it qualifies for an exemption from registration, such as
under Rule 144, 144(k) or 701 promulgated under the Securities Act, which are summarized below. Sales
of restricted securities in the public market, or the availability of such shares for sale, could adversely
affect the market price of the common stock.

Lock-up Agreements

Our directors, officers, employees and various other stockholders, who together hold substantially all of
our securities, have entered into lock-up agreements in connection with this offering. These lock-up
agreements generally provide that these holders will not offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell or sell any
option or centract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to
purchase, lend or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our common stock
owned by them for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus without the prior written consent
of the representatives of the underwriters of this offering. The lock-up agreements executed by our
employees and directors also cover any shares they may acquire through our directed share program.
However, 25% of the shares of common stock subject to the restrictions described above (other than
shares owned by directors or officers) will be released from these restrictions if the reported last sale price
of the common stock on the Nasdaq National Market is at least twice the initial public offering price for
20 of the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the 90 day period after the date of
this prospectus. These shares will be released on the later to occur of the 90 day period after the date of
this prospectus and the second trading day after the first public release of our quarterly results. An
additional 25% of the shares subject to the restrictions described above will be released from these
restrictions if the reported last sale price of the common stock on the Nasdaq National Market is at least
twice the initial public offering price for 20 of the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading
day of the 135 day period after the date of this prospectus.

Notwithstanding possible easlier eligibility for sale under the provisions of Rules 144, 144(k) and 701,
shares subject to lock-up agreements may not be sold until these agreements expire or are waived by the
representatives of the underwriters of this offering. Assuming that the early release provisions described in
the previous paragraph are not applicable and that the representatives of the underwriters of this offering
do not release any security holders from the lock-up agreements, the following shares will be eligible for
sale in the public market at the following times:

» Beginning on the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part,
of the shares sold in this offering, and additional shares not subject

61



to lock-up agreements and eligible for sale under Rule 144 (k), will be immediately available for
sale in the public market.

= Beginning 90 days after the effective date, an additional shares not subject to lock-up
agreements will be eligible for sale pursnant to Rule 144 and Rule 701.

» Beginning 180 days after the effective date, an additional shares will be eligible for sale
pursuant to Rule 144, Rule 144(k) and Rule 701.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, after the expiration of the lock-up agreements, a
person who has beneficially owned restricted securities for at least one year would be entitled to sell within
any three-month period a2 number of shares that does not exceed the greater of:

« one percent of the number of shares of common stock then cutstanding; and

» the average weekly trading volume of our commor stock during the four calendar weeks preceding
the sale.

Sales under Rule 144 are also subject to requirements with respect to manner of sale, notice and the.
availability of current public information about us.

Rule 144 (k)

Under Rule 144(k}, a person whe is not deemed to have been cur affiliate at any time during the
three months preceding a sale, and wheo has beneficially owned the shares proposed to be sold for at least
two years, may sell these shares without complying with the manner of sale, public information, volume
limitation or notice requirements of Rule 144.

Rule 701

Rule 701, as currently in effect, permits our employees, officers, directors or consultants who
purchased shares pursuant to a written compensatory plan or contract to resell such shares in reliance upon
Rule 144, but without compliance with certain restrictions. Rule 701 provides that affiliates may sell their
Rule 701 shares under Rule 144 ninety days after effectiveness without complying with the holding period
requirement and that non-affiliates may sell such shares in reliance on Rule 144 ninety days after
effectiveness without complying with the holding period, public information, volume limitation or notice
requirements of Rule 144,

We intend to file one or more registration statements on Form S-8 under the Securities Act to
register all shares of common stock subject to outstanding stock options and common stock issued or
issuable under our stock plans. We expect to file the registration statement covering shares offered
pursuant to the 1997 Stock Plan and 1999 Stock Plan within 180 days after the date of this prospectus,
thus permitting the resale of such shares by nonaffiliates in the public market without restriction under the
Securities Act.

In addition, after this offering, the holders of approximately 6,567,861 shares of common stock will be
entitled to rights with respect to registration of such shares under the Securities Act. Registration of such
shares under the Securities Act would resuit in such shares, except for shares purchased by affiliates of
CheMatch, becoming freely tradable without restriction under the Securities Act immediately on the
effectiveness of such registration.
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UNDERWRITING

Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in an underwriting agreement dated
» 2000, the underwriters named below, who are represented by Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Salomon Smith Bamey Inc., SG Cowen Securities
Corporation and DLIdirect Inc., have severally agreed to purchase from us the number of shares of
common stack set forth opposite their names below:

Number of
Shares

Name
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securitics Corporation ..........ovuvivuiin e ennennneann.,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. ... ... . i e e
Salomon Smith Barney Inc.. .. ... e
SG Cowen Securities Corporation

DLJdirect Inc.

...................................................................

....................................................................

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several underwriters to purchase and
accept delivery of the shares of common stock in this offering are subject to approval of certain legal
matters and certain other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to purchase and accept delivery of all
the shares of common stock in this offering, other than those shares covered by the over-allotment option
described below, if any are purchased.

The underwriters initially propese to offer some of the shares of common stock directly to the public
at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus and some of the shares to
dealers at the initial public offering price less a concession not in excess of § per share. The
underwriters may allow, and those dealers may re-allow, a concession not in excess of $ per share on
sales to other dealers. After the initial offering of the shares of common stock to the public, the
representatives may change the public offering price and concessions at any time without notice. The
underwriters do not intend to confirm sales to any accounts over which they exercise discretionary
authority.

The following table shows the underwriting fees to be paid to the underwriters by us in connection
with this offering. This informaticn is presented assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the
underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of our commeon stock.

No Exercise Full Exercise

Per share ...... . ......... B i $ $

We will pay the offering expenses, estimated to be approximately $ miflion, An underwriter has
agreed to reimburse us for certain offering expenses. We will pay to the underwriters underwriting
discounts and comimissions in an amount equal to the initial public offering price per share of common
stock less the amount the underwriters pay te us for each share of common stock sold by us.

DLJdirect Inc., an affiliate of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, is facilitating the
distribution of the shares sold in this offering over the Internet. An electronic prospectus will be available
on the web sites maintained by DLJdirect. Other than the prospectus in electronic format, the information
on these web sites relating to the offering is not part of this prospectus and has not been approved or
endorsed by us or the underwriters, and should not be relied on by prospective investors.

We have granted to the underwriters an option, exercisable for 30 days after the date of this
prospectus, to purchase up to an aggregate of additional shares of common stock at the initial public
offering price less the underwriting discounts and commissions. The underwriters may exercise this option
solely to cover over-allotments, if any, made in connection with this offering. To the extent the
underwriters exercise this option, each underwriter will be obligated, upon satisfaction of certain conditions,
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to purchase a number of additional shares approximately proportionate to that underwriter’s initial
purchase commitments.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabitities, including liabilities under the
Securities Act, or to contribute to payments that the underwriters may be required to make for these
liabilities. We and our executive officers, directors, employees and various other stockholders, who together
hoid substantially all of our securities have agreed for a 180 day lock-up period not to, without the prior
written consent of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation:

= offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell or sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or
contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend or otherwise transfer or dispose
of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our corrmon stock or any securities convertible into or
exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock; or

* enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers all or a portion of the economic
consequences associated with the ownership of any common stock, whether any such transaction
described above is to be settled by delivery of common stock or other securities, in cash, or
otherwise.

However, we may:
» grant stock options pursuant to our 1999 Stock Plan; and

= issue shares of our commeon stock upon the exercise of our options, warrants or rights or the
conversion of currently outstanding securities on the date of the underwriting agreement.

In addition, during the lock-up period, we have agreed not to file any registration statement relating
to, and each of our executive officers, directors, employees and various other stockholders, who together
kold substantially all of our securities have agreed not to make any demand for, or exercise any right
relating to, the registration of any shares of common stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable
or exchangeable for cornmon stock without the prior written consent of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation.

However, 25% of the shares of common stock subject to the restrictions described above (other than
shares owned by directors or officers) will be released from these restrictions if the reported last sale price
of the common stock on the Nasdaq National Market is at least twice the initial public offering price for
20 of the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the 90 day period after the date of
this prospectus. These shares will be released on the later to occur of the 90 day period after the date of
this prospectus and the second trading day after the first public release of our quarierly results.

An additional 25% of the shares subject to the restrictions described above will be released from these
restrictions if the reported last sale price of the common stock on the Nasdaq National Market is at least
twice the initial public offering price for 20 of the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading
day of the 135 day period after the date of this prospectus.

Prior to this offering, no public market has existed for cur common stock. We will negotiate the initial
public offering price for cur common stock offered by this prospectus with the representatives of the
underwriters, but the negotiated price may not reflect the market price for our common stock after this
offering. The factors considered in determining the initial public offering price include:

» the history of and prospects for the industry in which we compete;
* our past and present operations;
= our historical results of operations;

+ our prospects for future earnings;
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+ the recent market prices of securities of generally comparable companies; and

» the general conditions of the securities market at the time of this offering.

We intend to apply for quotation of our cormmen stock on the Nasdaq National Market under the
symbol “CHEM.” Other than in the United States, no action has been taken by us or the underwriters
that would permit a public offering of the shares of common stock included in this offering in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. The shares included in this offering may not be
offered or sold, directly or indirectly, nor may this prospectus or any other offering material or
advertisement in connection with the offer and sale of these shares be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with the applicable rufes and
regulations of that jurisdiction. Persons who receive this prospectus are advised to inform themselves about
and to observe any restrictions relating to this offering and the distribution of this prospectus. This
prospectus is not an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any shares of our common stock in any
jurisdiction where that would not be permitted or legal.

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain
or otherwise affect the price of our common stock. Specifically, the underwriters may over-allot this
offering, creating a syndicate short position. The underwriters may bid for and purchase shares of our
common stock in the open market to cover syndicate short positions or to stabilize the price of our
common stock. In addition, the underwriting syndicate may reclaim selling concessions from syndicate
members and selected dealers if they repurchase previously distributed commeon stock in syndicate covering
transactions, in stabilizing transactions or otherwise, or if Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities
Corporation receives a report which indicates that the clients of such syndicate members have “fipped"”
our common stock. These activities may stabilize or maintain the market price of cur common stock above
independent market levels. The underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and may end
any of these activities at any time.

At our request, the underwriters have reserved for sale, at the initial public offering price, up to five
percent of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus for sale to our officers, directors,
employees and their family members and to business associates of CheMatch, including clients,
consultants and other friends. These persons must commit to purchase these reserved shares after the
registration statement has become effective but before the open of business on the following business day,
The number of shares available for sale to the general public will be reduced to the extent these persons
purchase the resesved shares. Any reserved shares nof purchased by those persons will be offered to the
general public on the same basis as the other shares offered hereby,

DLIJ Capital Corporation, BLY ESC II, L.P., Sprout Capitat VIII, L.P. and Sprout Venture

Capital, L.P., coliectively referred to as the “DLJ Entities,” are affiliates of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation, one of the underwriters. As described under “Principal Stockholders,” the DLJ
Entities beneficially own an aggregate of 2,664,953 shares of cur common stock, which represent more
than 10% of our cutstanding common stock. The DLJ Entities will place a sufficient nember of their
shares in a voting trust so that upon the closing of this offering, the DLJ Entities will exercise voting
control aver less than five percent of our outstanding common stock. The shares subject to the voting trust
will be held and voted by an independent third party, Norwest Bank Indiana, N.A., as voting trustee.

Because the DLJ Entities affiliated with Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation
beneficially own more than 10% of our outstanding common stock, this offering is being conducted in
accordance with Rule 2720 of the Conduct Rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.,
which provides that the public offering price of an equity security be no higher than that recommended by
a “qualified independent underwritcr” meeting certain standards. In accordance with this requirement,
Salomon Smith Barney will assume the responsibilities of acting as qualified independent underwriter and
will recommend a price in compliance with the requirements of Rule 2720.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the issuance of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus will be passed
on for us by Vinson & Elldns L.L.P., Houston, Texas. Certain legal matters relating to the common stock

offered by this prospectus will be passed on for the underwriters by Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P., Houston,
Texas.

EXPERTS

The financial statements included in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement have
been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, as indicated in their reports with

respect thereto, and are included berein in reliance upon the authority of said firm as experts in giving said
reports.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Effective October 26, 1999, Arthur Andersen LLP was engaged as our independent auditors and
replaced other auditors who were dismissed as our independent accountants on the same date. The
decision to change auditors was approved by our Board of Directors on October 26, 1999. On December 9,
1999, our former auditors issued a report on PetroChemNet, Inc. for the two years ended December 31,
1998. The report of our former auditors did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion nor
was it qualified or modified as to any uncertainty, andit scope or accounting principle. In connection with
the audit for two years ended December 31, 1998, there were no disagreements with our former auditors
on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or
procedure, which disagreements if not resolved to the satisfaction of our former auditors, would have
caused them to make reference thereto in their report on the financial statements for such period. Qur
former auditors have not audited or reported on any of the financial statements or information included in
this prospectus. Prior to October 26, 1999, we had not consulted with Arthur Andersen LLP on items that
involved our accounting principles or the form of audit opinjon to be issued or our financial statements.
Qur former auditors have furnished us with a letter dated February 25, 2000 and addressed to the SEC
stating that they agree with the above statements,

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a registration statement on Form S-1
under the Securities Act relating to the common stock being sold in this offering. This prospectus
constitutes a part of that registration statement. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set
forth in the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules to the registration statement because
some parts have been omitted in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Commission. For further
informaticn about us and the common stock being sold in this offering, you should refer to the registration
statement and the exhibits and schedules filed as a part of the registration statement, Statements contained
in this prospectus regarding the contents of any agreement, contract or other docement referred to are not
necessarily complete. Reference is made in each instance to the copy of the contract or document filed as
an exhibit to the registration statement. Each statement is qualified by reference to the exhibit. The
registration statement, including related exhibits and schedules, may be inspected without charge at the
Commission’s principal office in Washington, D.C. Copies of all or any part of the registration statement
may be obtained after payment of fees prescribed by the Commission from:

+ the Commission’s Public Reference Room at the Commission’s principal office, 450 Fifth Street,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549; or
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« the Commission’s regional offices in:

» New York, located at 7 World Trade Center, Suite 1300, New York, New York 10048; or
+ Chicago, located at 500 West Madison Street, Suite 1400, Chicago, Illinois 60661.

You may obtain information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the
Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Commission maintains a web site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information regarding registrants, including us, that file electronically
with the Commission. The address of the web site is www.sec.gov.

We intend to furnish holders of our common stock with annuzl reports containing audited financial
statements certified by an independent public accounting firm and quarterly reports containing unaudited
condensed financial information for the first three quarters of each fiscal year. We intend to furnish other
reports as we may determine or as may be required by law.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To CheMatch.com, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of CheMatch.com, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation), as of December 31, 1999, and the related consolidated statements of operations, preferred
stock and stockholders’ deficit and cash flows for the period from June 21, 1999 {inception) through
December 31, 1999, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinjon, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of CheMatch.com, Inc., as of December 31, 1999, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from June 21, 1999 (inception) through
December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Houston, Texas
February 4, 2000



CHEMATCH.COM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

Pro Forma
December 31, December 31,
1999 1999
{Unaudited)
(Note 6)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. ., .. ... ... . iiiiinii i i i e $30,170 $£30,170
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $20 ... ... ... il iiiiiii e, 73 - 13
Other CUITent ASSeLS , . .. i ittt iieiieiiensiacarsiasssanananasans 1,045 1,045
Total CUITENE BS5EES &+ vt e v ce e se s rnannaranasssnrerrneetansonnnns 31,288 31,288
Property and equipment, Net ... . .uvun i nrnennrarr it ta s 1,692 1,692
L0 1 Ut - -0 £ 2,228 2,228
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $272 .......... ... ... .. .. 5,560 5,560
TOtAl BSSEES & v vt aeveesee v ve st nnamnarra e e $40),768 $40,768
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ........coooii il i ¥ 3,106 $ 3,106
Deferred revenue ... ... it 34 34
Total current liabilities . ... ...ttt i e i i rar i cna e rnenans 3,140 3,140
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock:
Series A convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value, 3,742,200 shares
authorized; 2,138,400 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares
issued and outstanding, pro forma ....... ... il 17,488 —
Series B convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value, 3,556,350 shares '
authorized; 2,032,200 shares issued and outstanding, aciual; no shares
issued and outstanding, proforma ...... ... ... ..ot 16,809 —
Series C convertible preferred stock; $.01 par value, 6,130,547 shares
authorized; 3,503,169 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares
issued and outstanding, pro forma ...... ... ... oo i iia 32,654 —_—
Commitments and contingencies )
Stockholders' equity (deficit):
Common stock, $.01 par value, 25,000,000 shares anthorized;
4,304,959 shares issued and outstanding, actual; 11,978,728 shares issued
and outstanding, proforma ........oiii i i i e 43 120
Additional paid-in capital ..., .. i 11,416 78,290
Notes receivable from employees . .....oveviiiivaiinn i ine e {822) (822)
Deferred stock compensation .......ccioiiiiiieairrnnrarrraneannnn (2,130) (2,130)
Accumulated deficit ... i i i i e it i (37,830) (37.830)
Total stockholders” equity (deficit) ...... . ... .. i i, (29,323) 37,628
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) ......... ... ... ... .. $40,768 340,768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHEMATCH.COM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
June 21, 1999 (Inception) through December 31, 1999
(En thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenues:

8 T - 3 108

Bk o o o 74

e = T 182

Costs and Expenses:

TeChnOlOEy COSIS L.ttt ittt it i e e e e e e 2,302

Selling and MarKetnE L. .vu ittt it i i e e e e e 2,381

General and a0mimiStrative . . ...y a it e e 3,536

Stock-based compensation .. .......... it e e 83

Depreciation and amortization . ......viit i i e e e e 431

Total costs A EXPEMSES . .. o\ i\t it ettt et e e i e e 8,743

OPeTatIn g JO8S . L . oo e e e (8,561)
Interest income......... e e e i, 236
2 0 T 3 (8,325
Net loss attributable to common stockholders . ... ... . ittt v $ (37,830)
Net loss per common share, basic and diluted . ............ ... ... ... $ _(1161)
Pro forma net ioss per commor share, basicand diluted . ....... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 3 (1.19)
Shares used to compute net loss per common share:

Basic and diluted .. ..ot e e, 3,258,966

Pro forma basic and diluted .. ... ... i 6,980,833

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHEMATCH.COM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
June 21, 1999 (Inception) through December 31, 1999
{In thousands}

Cash flows from operating activities:

= T $ (8,325)
Adjustments to reconcile net less to net cash used in operating activities —
Depreciation and amortzation. ... ... ou ittt ettt e e 431
Non-cash teChnOlOgY oSS, ..t it r et ettt e 35
Compensation expense related to stock options. . ......................... e 93
Changes in operating assets and liabilities —
Increase in accounts receivable, met ... . .o i i, (88)
Decrease in O1her @888t . . oot ittt i e i e it 187
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................ccoiiiiun... 2,168 -
Decrease in deferred revenue. .. ... L e (55)
Net cash used in operating activities .....ouiivii i it i i ea i caans (5,534)
Cash flows from investing activifies:
Purchase of property and equipment ............. et (1,560)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired. . ... .. e (1.080)
Net cash used in investing activities...........c. i ittt (2,640)
Cash flows from financing activities: _
Proceeds from issuance of convertible preferred stock, net of offering costs .. ............. 37,446
Proceeds from issuance of common Stock . ...t i e 1,006
Exercise of common Stock OpHOnS . . ... .o i i e e e 84
Payment of advances from shareholders. . ... . ... ... . e (125)
Payment of line of credit . ... ... e (67)
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ........ ..o, 38,344
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . ... ... i i i i 30,170
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period. . ... ... .. i i i i —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period .. ....... ... ol $ 30,170
Supplemental schedule of non-cash financing activities:
Non-cash consideration in 4cquisTtOnS. . . ...\t iet ot et ettt e e $ 4227
Notes receivable for stock option exercises ...... e e et ataaaree e, 822
Prepaid goods and services received for the issuance of common stock .. ................. 3,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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CHEMATCH.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization:

CheMatch.com, Inc. (CheMatch), formerly known as PetroChemNet Holdings, Inc., was incorpo-
rated as a Delaware corporation on June 21, 1999. CheMatch is a leading business-to-business Internet-
based marketplace for purchasers and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products.
CheMatch's marketplace is centered around a real-time, interactive trading exchange, where members bid,
offer and negotiate online for the purchase and sale of products 24 hours a day, seven days a week.
Members of CheMateh’s secure, neutral exchange trade products anonymously, utilizing real-time pricing
and other market information provided through the exchange.

On June 21, 1999 PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. merged into CheMatch. CheMatch has
been identified as the accounting acquiror in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 97, which states that the combining company that receives the largest portion of
voting rights in the combined corporation is presumed to be the acquiror for accounting purpeses. These
acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. These financial statements and
accompanying notes present CheMatch’s consolidated financial results from June 21, 1999 (inception),
through December 31, 1999, PetrochemNet, Inc. has been determined to be the Predecessor Entity of
CheMatch.

CheMatch has a limited operating history, which includes substantial losses since its inception.
CheMatch’s future success is dependent upen a number of factors which include, among other things, a
proven business model, critical mass of purchasers and sellers, increased transaction volume, functionality
and reliability of the trading exchange, generation of sufficient revenue, technological innovation, diversity
of products traded on the exchange, management of growth and atiraction and retention of key personnet.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include CheMatch and its wholly owned
subsidiaries; PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. All significant intercompany account balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. '

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires managemeant (o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates are used for, but not
limited to, the allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization, deferred compensation, and
contingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates. ’

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CheMatch considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time
of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

CheMatch has the following financial instruments: cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
accounts payabie. Management believes that the carmying values of these financial instruments approximate
their respective fair value due to their short-term nature.
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CHEMATCH.COM, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Long-Lived Assets

Management reviews its long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and unsed by
CheMatch for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future cash flows from the use of the asset

Prepaid Goods and Services

Prepaid goods and services are expensed as the goods and services are provided over one to five years.

Revenue Recognition

CheMatch generates revenue from its Internet-based trading exchange. Trading revenues consist of
commissions typically paid by each party to a completed transaction. Commissions are based on the
volume of chemicals traded on the exchange and are recognized upon confirmation of a trade.

CheMatch’s subscription revenues are derived from subscription fees for Internet-based information
resources. Revenue from subscription fees is recognized ratably over the term of the subscription, which is
normally one year. The unearned revenue from subscription fees is reflected as deferred revenue in the
accompanying balance sheets. CheMatch pays fees to third parties who provide and maintain the Internet-
based information resources. Certain of the subscription revenues received are commissions from third
parties who provide and maintain the Internet-based information resources. The commissions eamed are
recorded net in the accompanying statement of operations as CheMatch does not bear the risk of loss,

Technology Costs

Technology costs include expenses incurred by CheMatck to maintain and enhance CheMatch’s
Internet-based trading exchange and information resource web sites,

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs included in selling and marketing costs and expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations are charged to expense when incurred. Advertising expenses for the
period from June 21, 1999 (inception) to December 31, 1999 were $1.1 million.

Net Loss Per Common Share

Net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss, adjusted for periodic adjustments to the
carrying amount of redeemable convertible preferred stock, by the weighted average number of shares of
CheMatch’s common stock outstanding, Shares associated with stock options, warrants and convertible
preferred stock are not included because they are antidilutive,

Pro Forma Net Loss Per Common Share {Unaudited)

Pro forma net loss per common share is computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding, including the pro forma effects of the automatic conversion of outstanding convertible
preferred stock into shares of common stock upon the effectiveness of CheMatch’s initial public offering as
if such conversion occurred on the dates of criginal issuance,
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CHEMATCH.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The following table sets forth the computation of the basic and diluted net loss per common share for

the period from June 21, 1999 (inception), through December 31, 1999 (in thousands, except per share
data):

Numerator:
thloss......................‘ ......................................... § (8,325)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock to redemption value ........ (29,505)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders . ... ... i, $ (37,830)
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares . ... ... ... .. i 3,258,966
Weighted average effect of redeemable convertible preferred stock.............. 3,721,867
Shares used to compute pro forma basicand diluted ... ... ... ... ... . ..., 6,980,833
Net loss per common share:
Basic and diluted ... ... . et e e § (l1L61)
Pro forma basic and diluted ... ... ..oeeiiiner et $ LI9)

Segrent Information

CheMatch operates through one segment, an Internet-based trading exchange and information
resource for purchasers and sellers of commodity chemicals, plastics and fuel products, across domestic
and international markets. International revenues represented approximately one percent of revenues for

the period from June 21, 1999 (inception) through December 31, 1999. All domestic operating results and
identifiable assets are in the United States. '

3. Acquisitions:

On June 21, 1999, PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc. merged into CheMatch in a transaction
accounted for using the purchase methed. The purchase price of PetroChemNet, Inc. and CheMatch, Inc.
has been allocated based on the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the
acquisition date, = )

PetroChemNet, Inc.

The purchase price of PetroChemNet, Inc. of $3.2 million consisted of 2,119,440 shares of commen
stock, warrants and options to purchase 397,440 and 1,187,250 shares of common stock, respectively.

The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

Assets acquired .. ... i i, $ 498

Liabilities assamed ... i i i (1,193)

Goodwill. . ... e 3,870
§ 3,175

CheMaich, Inc.
CheMarch, Inc. was acquired through a series of corporate transactions for a net purchase price of

$2 million, which consisted of $983,600 in cash, 643,300 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase
482,571 shares of common stock.
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CHEMATCH.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

ASSETS ACQUITE .« ..ttt i i i . % 97

Liabilities assumed .. ...ovvtiiiiiiniiii i iiii i (24)

GoodWill. . ... e e e 1,962
$2,035

Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over a 1§-year period.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the year ended December 31, 1999,
represents the consolidated results of operations of CheMatch as if the acquisition of PetroChemNet, Inc.
and CheMatch, Inc. had occurred at the beginning of 1999 and does not purport to be indicative of what
would have occurred had the acquisition been made as of that date or the resuits which may occur in the
future (in thousands):

S35 1L S AU $ 373
Costs and expenses .. ... . ... ..ol S 10,113
Operating loss ........ovvvnnn O (9,740)
| 37105 (3 11 Tore) 1 L= 222
Pro forma et Joss . . oo\ ve it i e $(9,518)
Pro forma net loss per share, basic and diluted.................. $(12.89)

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs and
minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and betterments are
capitalized. CheMatch computes depreciation over the estimated useful life of the assets using the
straight-line method. Leaschold improvements are amortized over the lesser of five years or the lease term.

Property and equipment consist of the following as of December 31, 1999 (in thousands):

Estimated
Life
Computer software and equipment................. 3-5 years  $1,549
Furniture and fixtures . .........coviiiiiiineenn., 7 years 209
Leasehold improvements ... ....ireiiiinaieaan, 5 years 23
1,781
Less — Accumulated depreciation and amortization .. (89)
Property and equipment, net .............. $1,692
5. Detail of Other Balance Sheet Accounts:
Other assets consist of the following as of December 31, 1999 (in thousands):
Prepaid goods and Services. . ... .. iire i $ 3,169
L 11 1= o 104
3,273
Less: CUrment POrtiof .. ..o vevesrevnnerennmaanarin.... {1,045)
L 2 11T 1Y - 5 2,228




CHEMATCH.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following as of December 31, 1999 (in
thousands):

Accounts payable ... ... ... i it e § 366
Accrued payroll-related CostS. ..o v i i et e 951
Accrued technology CostS. ... .oe it e 1,457
Accrued other ... s 332

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................ $3,106

6. Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Deficit:
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

In connection with the inception of CheMatch in June 1999, CheMatch issued 2,138,400 Series A
units, at a price of $2.3484 per unit, for net proceeds of $4,977,000. Each Series A unit consists of one
share of Series A convertible preferred stock (Series A) and the right to purchase 0.75 shares of Series A,
Each purchaser of Series A units also received the right to purchase a Series B unit at $2.4673 prior to
September 15, 1999, which was mutually extended to and exercised on September 27, 1999,

The Series A is convertible at the option of the holder into common stock on a one-to-one basis, as
adjusted for certain events. The Series A will automatically cenvert into common stock upon the
effectiveness of a public offering with net proceeds in excess of $25 million for which the offering price per
share is at least two times the original purchase price of the Seres C. The holders of the Series A vote on
an as-converted basis. The holders of Scries A are entitied to participate in dividends declared and paid to
commeon stockholders on an as-converted basis. No dividends have been declared to date.

After June 21, 2004, upon approval of 66 percent of the holders of the Series A, these shares are
redeemable in cash at the greater of the preferred stock fair market value or the original purchase price
per share plus any dividends declared but unpaid (the Redemption Value) in three equal installments
beginning 120 days after notice, and annually thereafter. CheMatch has no right to call or redeem the
Series A shares. S

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of CheMatch, whether voluntary or
involuntary, the holders of Series A are entitled to receive preference over any distribution to the holders
of Common Stock, in the amount of $2.3484 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends (the
Liguidation Preference Payment).

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

In September 1999, CheMatch issued 2,032,200 Series B units, at a price of $2.4673 per unit, for net
proceeds of $4,990,000. Each Series B unit consists of one share of Series B convertible preferred stock
(Series B} and the right to purchase 0.75 shares of Series B.

Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

In November 1999, CheMatch issued 3,503,169 Series C units, at a price of $7.85 per unit, for net
proceeds of $27,479,000. Each Series C unit consists of one share of Series C convertible preferred stock
(Series C) and the right to purchase 0.75 shares of Series C.

The rights, restrictions and preferences of the Series B and Series C are consistent with those for the
Series A, except that the per share price associated with determining the respective Series B and Series C
conversion ratio and the Liguidation Prefercnce Payment is $2.4673 and §7.85, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Generally accepted accounting principles require the periodic accretion of redeemable preferred stock
to its Redemption Value when redemption is outside of the control of the issuer. Since the Redemption
Value of the Series A, Series B and Series C convertible preferred stock exceeds its carrying value as of
December 31, 1999, the carrying value has been accreted to its fair market value as of December 31,
1999, in the accompanying consolidated statement of redeemable stock and stockholders’ deficit.

Pro Forma Information

As discussed above, CheMatch’s convertible preferred stock will convert into common stock upon the
closing of a public offering (as defined). The accompanying balance sheets include unaudited pro forma
stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 1999 which assumes the conversion of outstanding preferred stock
into common stock.

Notes Receivable From Employees

At December 31, 1999, CheMatch held promissory notes receivable from certain employees and
former employees totaling $822,000, representing amounts owed to CheMatch for the exercise of stock
options plus accrued inferest. These notes bear interest at rates ranging from 5.42 to 5.57 percent annually
and are presented in stockholders’ equity. They are secured by the commeon stock issued. Accrued interest
for each note is due and payable annually on June 30 of each year until maturity. The terms of these notes
provide that paid interest is nonrefundable and accrued interest is a recourse obligation. Principal and any
final interest payments are due at the earlier of (a) three years from date of execution, (b) the date the
respective employee should cease employment with CheMatch (or January 26, 2001 for the notes of two
former employees), or (c) upon the sale or transfer of any of the underlying shares of common stock
representing collateral.

Warrants

At December 31, 1999, CheMatch had warrants cutstanding to purchase 482,571 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $1.336 per share. The warrants expire on the earlier of June 21, 2004 or the
date CheMatch consummates a public offering for which the net proceeds exceed $25 million. Also at
December 31, 1999, CheMatch had additional warrants outstanding to purchase 397,440 shares of
commen stock at an exercise price of $3.33 per share. These warrants expire at various dates between 2002
and 2004. The fair value ascribed 1o the common stock warrants was $212,000 in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. At December 31, 1999, CheMatch had warrants outstanding of 1,603,800,
1,524,150 and 2,627,378, to purchase Series A, Series B and Series C, respectively, at exercise prices of
$2.3484, $2.4673 and $7.85 per share, respectively. These Series A, Series B and Series C warrants expire
on the earlier of June 21, 2004 or a public offering for which the net proceeds exceed $25 million. The fair
value ascribed to the Series A, Series B and Series C warrants was $701,000, $856,000 and $5,154,000,
respectively in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Registration Rights

Some of CheMatch’s shareholders are entitled to require registration for the sale of their shares.
CheMatch will bear all registration expenses if these registration rights are exercised, other than
underwriting discounts and selling commissions,

7. Stock Option Plans:

In Qctober 1997, PetroChemNet, Inc. adopted the 1997 Employee, Director and Consultant Stock
Option Plan (the 1997 Plan) which provides for the granting of incentive and nonqualified stock options to

F-12



CHEMATCH.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

employees, directors and consultants. Stock options granted under the 1997 Stock Plan have a term of ten
years from the date of grant, with some vesting immediately, and others vesting over periods ranging from
two to three years. As of December 31, 1999, 1,086,150 options were outstanding under the 1997 Stock
Plan. The 1997 Stock Plan, which was adopted by PetroChemNet, Inc, and its stockholders in

November 1997, was assumed by CheMatch and immediately terminated in connection with the
acquisition of PetroChemNet, Inc. in June 1999 and no additional options may be issued thereuader.

The 1999 Stock Plan, which was adopted by the board of directors in June 1999, provides for the
granting of incentive and nonqualified stock options, stock and stock purchase rights to employees, officers,
directors and consultants. A maximum of 4,500,000 shares are authorized for issuance under the
1999 Stock Plan,

Stock options granted under the 1999 Stock Plan have a term of ten years from date of grant and are
either fully exercisable, subject to repurchase rights, or vest over four years, with 25 percent of the shares
vesting 12 months from date of grant and the remaining shares vesting ratably on a monthly basis
thereafter. In certain circumstances involving a change in control, as defined, or termination of the
employer without cause, the vesting of options is accelerated. Certain of the options granted under the
1999 option plan are subject to repurchase rights, at the exercise price, by CheMatch. The repurchase
rights expire over a four year period.

The following is a summary of CheMatch’s option activity through December 31, 1999:

Weighted
Average

Options Exercise Price
Qutstanding, June 21, 1999 (inceptioR)} ......ovvveiveanaiaenae. 1,187,250 § 1.84
Granted ... i iia i 2,779,320 1.38
S o7 = A Y (713,996) 1.27
Outstanding, December 31, 1999 .. ... oottt 3252574 156

CheMatch records deferred compensation for the difference between the grant price and the deemed
fair value for financial statement presentation purposes related to options. The balance at December 31,
1999, was $2,130,000. In 1999, $93,000 in related expense was recorded. The balance will be amortized to
expense over the remaining vesting periods of the options.

The number and weighted average fair value of options granted in 1999 is as follows:

Weighted
Average

_ Shares Fair Value
Option price greater than fair market value................. ...... 1,824,569 $3.22
Option price less than fair market value.......... ..ot 954,751 0.37
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 1999

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Qutstanding Remtzining Exercisable
Range of as of Contractual Weighted as of Weighted
Exercise December 31, Life Average December 31, Average
Prices 1999 (In Years) Exercise Price 1999 Exercise Price

$ 0.83 606,900 9.4 $0.83 606,500 $0.83

1.34-1.47 2,162,824 10.0 $1.37 1,944,057 $1.37

3.33 479,250 9.0 $3.33 119,850 $3.33

7.85 3,600 10.0 $7.85 — § —

0.83-7.85 3,252,574 9.5 $1.56 2,670,807 $1.33

The fair values of each stock option grant are estimated using the minimum value method with the
following weighted average assumptions for 1999: expected life of five years, no expected dividends and a
risk-free interest rate of six percent.

Had the compensation cost for the option plans been determined pursuant to the alternative method
under SFAS No. 123, CheMatch’s net loss for the perod ended December 31, 1999, would have been
increased to the following pro forma amounts (in thousands except per share data):

Net loss:
Asreported ... . $ (8,325)
Proforma....... ..o i (11,378)
Net loss per common share, basic and diluted:
Asreported ... $ (1L61)
Proforma...... ... . (12.54)

8. Income Taxes:

Deferred income taxes are recorded using the Liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under
this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that
will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are evaluated for
realization based on a more-likely-than-not criteria in determining if a valuation allowance should be
provided.

CheMatch has had net operating losses since June 21, 1999 (inception), accordingly, there is no
provision for income taxes for the period from inception, through December 31, 1999.

At December 31, 1999, CheMatch has a net operating loss carryforward of approximately $6.5 million
which begins to expire in 2020. The net operating loss for federal income tax purposes is subject to annual
limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. A valuation allowance has been established to
fully offset any net deferred tax asset after considering deferred tax liabilities.
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The compoenents of CheMatch’s deferred tax assets as of December 31, 1999, are as follows
(in thousands):

Federal net operating loss carryforwards . .. .......oovinuren. .. $ 2,225

Depreciation and amortization . ......oovi i, 124

Accruals not currently deductible ._................. ... ... 1,033

3,382

Less — Valuation allowance .. ..ovovin oot e i e i 3,382)
Net deferred tax assets .......oeeiiiiinnnvennnn.n, $ —

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to CheMatch’s effective income tax rate for
the peried from June 21, 1999 (inception), through December 31, 1999, is as follows (in thousands):

US. tax at statulory Tate . ..ottt e e e e (2,831)
1 11 130
Adjustment to-deferred tax vahration allowance ................... 2,701

9. Employee Retirement Savings Plan:

CheMatch has an employee retirement savings plan (the Plan) which qualifies under Section 401 (k)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan is designed to provide eligible employees with an opportunity to
make regular voluntary contributions into a long-term investment and savings program. Employees are
eligible to participate in the Plan after three months of employment. Employer matching contributions are
made solely at CheMatch’s discretion. CheMatch contributed approximately $31,000 to the Plan during

the period from June 21, 1999 (incepticn), to December 31, 1999, Three CheMatch officers are Plan
trustees.

10. Alliances:

Pursuant to an Alliance Agreement dated as of June 21, 1999 between CheMatch and DeWitt &
Company, Incorporated (DeWitt), DeWitt will provide chemical industry trading analytics for the trading
exchange, and CheMatch has granted to DeWitt certain preferential rights for future products and services
offered by DeWitt. CheMatch has also agreed to share certain development and other costs, and to share
fees generated from the sale of certain of DeWitt’s products and services offered on the trading exchange.
CheMatch has the right to terminate the Alliance Agreement at any time upon the payment to DeWitt of
$500,000. DeWitt may terminate the Alliance Agreement upon one year's prior notice and the payment of
$60,000. During the year ended December 31, 1999, CheMatch paid DeWitt approximately $70,836 for
services rendered and for reimbursement of various expenses,

In September 1999, CheMatch entered into a strategic alliance and subsequently issued 191,080
shares of common stock in exchange for $1.0 million to Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC). CSC will
be CheMatch’s preferred information techrology systems integrator, and has agreed not to compete with
CheMatch for one year after terminaticn of the strategic alliance. CSC will market CheMatch’s services to
agreed upon customers in exchange for commissions equal to 20 percent of the cash realized by CheMatch
from sales of its services to those customers. The related commission expense will be recognized by
CheMatch upon completion of the related trade.

In November 1999, CheMatch entered into a strategic alliance with E.I. duPont de Nemours and
Company (duPont). The strategic alliance included the sale of $7.0 million of Series C convertible
preferred stock, the sale of 636,943 shares of common stock in exchange for $6,369 in cash. DuPont also
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agreed to provide goods and services valued by the Company at approximately $3.3 million. The future
goods and services include use of the CheMatch platform for trading, reasonable efforts to trade an
increasing amount of spot purchases on the exchange, assistance in the design of the CheMatch platform,
one full time employee for one year and a $2 million credit towards the purchase of the partner’s products
and services over a three year period. These future goods and services have been recorded at the fair value
of the commeon stock in the accompanying balance sheet as prepaids and other current assets. Additionally,
the alliance provides that for each agreed upon customer brought to CheMatch by duPont, duPont can
earn commissions through December 31, 2000 up to an aggregate maximum of $2 million payable in
shares of common stock valued at the then fair market value. The related commission expense will be

recognized when eamed by duPent. As of December 31, 1999, no commissions had beenr earned under this
agreement.

11. Significant Customers:

For the period from June 21, 1999 (inception), through December 31, 1998, one customer accounted
for approximately 10 percent of CheMatch’s revenue.

12. Commitments and Contingencies:

Lease Commitments

CheMatch has noncancelable operating leases expiring in 2000, 2002 and 2003, Minimum future Jease
payments as of December 31, 1999 on these leases are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31:

2000 L i e e $ 407
7)) 292
200 e e 260
2003 o i et 82

31,041

Rental expense was approximately $110,000 for the period ended December 31, 1999,
Litigation '

At certain times, CheMatch is involved in legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
CheMatch currently is not engaged in any legal proceedings that are expected to have a material adverse
effect on CheMatch’s results of operations or financial position.

Management Incentive Agreement

CheMatch executed a letter agreement on June 21, 1999, as amended on October 26, 1999, which
obligates CheMatch to make an incentive payment to CheMatch’s management and former employees in
the event of a fundamental change. The agreement provides that in the case of a public offering, the
portion of the net proceeds payable to the management team and former employees will be two percent of
the average daily closing price of CheMatch for the 90 day period immediately following the
consummation of a public offering, multiplied by the number of shares of common stock outstanding on a
fully diluted basis on the 90th day immediately following the consummation of a public offering. The
maximum amount payable under the agreement is $15 million. The incentive payment will be recorded as
compensation expense upon the closing of the initial public offering.
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Consultant Agreements

In January 2000, the Company eatered into agreements with two former employees. The agreements
changed the employees status to consultants, accelerated vesting of their options, extended term of the
options to June 20, 2009 and provided for approximately $671,000 to be paid over 15 months commencing
in February 2000. The compensation expense associated with the accelerated vesting of the options and the
cash payment was recorded in January 2000.

13. Events Subsequent to the date of the Report of Independent Public Accountants {unaudited):
Stock Options

In February 2000, CheMatch granted 840,000 options to certain employees and former executives
pursuant to the Management Incentive Agreement as amended on February 8, 2000. The options, vest
Immediately, expire or February 8, 2005 and have an exercise price of $27.28. One-half of these options
will become exercisable on February 8, 2001, and the remaining options will become exercisable on
February 8, 2002. The options were issued under the terms and conditions of the 1999 Stock Plan with the

exception that the options will not terminate if the employment or other relationship with CheMatch
terminates.

Strategic Alliances

In February, 2000, CheMatch sold 204,291 shares of common stock to Bayer AG for $2 million in
cash. Bayer has agreed to use the trading exchange as its preferred platform for e-commerce trading of the
products offered on CheMatch’s trading exchange through December 31, 2001. In connection with this
agreement, CheMatch agreed to provide a $2 million credit to Bayer’s trading account against which any
commissions generated by Bayer as a result of trades completed on the exchange will be debited.

In February 2000, CheMatch sold 306,435 shares of common stock to General Electric Company for
33,064 in cash and a promissory note in aggregate principal amount of approximately $2 million in
conjunction with entering into a strategic alliance, pursuant to which General Electric agreed to provide
future services with a value estimated by the Company of approximately $1 million. The future services
will be recorded at the fair value of the common stock. If the parties agree that the value of the future
services is in excess of $1 million, CheMatch will either pay the excess, up to 2 maximem amount equal
to the outstanding amount of the promissory note, in cash to General Electric or forgive a comparable
amount of the promissory note. The promissory note; which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per
year, is payable in eight consecutive quarterly installments, commencing April 1, 2000, General Electric
has agreed to use the trading exchange on a preferred, good faith basis for its e-commerce purchasing,
trading or auctioning of any bulk commodity petrochemicals offered on the exchange through
December 31, 2001. In addition, General Electric has agreed to use reasonable business efforts to assist
CheMatch in developing viable e-commerce trading activity in specified contract-dominated markets where
General Electric is a significant buyer. General Electric has also agreed to promote the trading exchange
to a specified number of agreed upon potential members of our trading exchange. CheMatch agreed to
negotiate in good faith with General Electric regarding its ability to act as a supplier of credit insurance to
be used by CheMatch in the future and have provided General Electric the right to match any third party
offers relating to comparable services.

In February 2000, CheMatch sold 204,291 shares of our common stock to Muchlstein Holding
Corporation for approximately 31 million in cash and a promissory note in aggregate principal amount of
approximately $1 million. The promissory note, which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per year,
is payable in eight consecutive quarterly instaillments, commencing Aprif [, 2000. Muehlstein has agreed to
use good faith efforts to use the trading exchange on an exclusive basis through December 31, 2001 for
any chemicals and plastics that it buys, sells, trades, auctions or otherwise transfers using e-commerce to
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the extent those products are traded on the exchange. In connection with the agreement, CheMatch
agreed to credit Muchlstein’s trading account on a dolfar-for-dollar basis in the amount of payments made
under the promissory note executed by Muehlstein in connection with its purchase of common stock
against which any commissions generated by Muehlstein will be debited.

In February 2000, CheMatch entered into an agreement with Stolt-Nielsen Transportation Group Ltd.
affiliate, Optimum Logistics Ltd., commonly known as ChemLink.com, an Internet-based logistics
operating system. CheMatch intends to integrate the trading exchange with the ChemLink system to
permit members to procure transportation and other logistic services for bulk chemicals from a variety of
service providers, as well as manage and monitor shipments through all phases of the supply chain. The
services that CheMatch expects to be offered through the ChemLink system include firm freight fixtures
and rate indications for liquid chemical products, shipping and customs brokering, freight forwarding, cargo
inspection and surveying, terminaling and storage and inventory management and tracking services and
related documentation. The alliance has a term of three years, which may be extended if agreed upon
criteria are met. CheMatch and ChemLink have agreed to pay each other fees equal to 20 percent of
commission revenue earned by either CheMatch or ChemLink from customers of the other company up to
$5 million per year, The parties have also agreed to assist each other in establishing commercial
relationships with certain target companies in exchange for 20 percent of the gross revenues earned and
received by the other party. ChemLink has agreed to offer CheMatch the option to invest at least

$1 million in a private offering of securities of Optimum involving an aggregate amount of at least
$S million.

In February 2000, CheMatch sold 61,288 shares of our common stock to TownsendTamnell, Inc. for
$612 in cash and a promissory note in aggregate principal amount of approximately $599,297. The
promissory note, which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per year, is payable in twelve consecutive
monthly installments, commencing February I, 2000. CheMatch also entered into a consulting agreement
with TownsendTarnell. During the first six months of the consulting agreement, Townsend Tarnell’s
personnel are required to use their best reasonable efforts to promote the use of the trading exchange by
potential buyers of thermoplastic resins in North America and Europe. Additionally, TownsendTarnell will
provide CheMatch with various credit services. Under the consulting agreement, CheMatch agreed to pay
TownsendTarmell $70,000 per month for a nine consecutive months, commencing February 1, 2000. The
consulting agreement is cancelable by mutual consent or upon six months notice.

Additionally, TownsendTarnell has agreed to provide CheMatch with a business plan relating to the
creation and development of TownsendTarnell.com. Assuming the business plan is acceptable CheMatch
has agreed to extend TownsendTamell a $500,000 line of credit. TownsendTarnell has offered CheMatch
an option to invest $1 million in any private offering of securities relating to TownsendTarnell.com
involving an aggregate amount of at feast $5 million.

In February 2000, CheMatch sold 153,218 shares of common stock to William Heinemann, Inc., for
$1.5 million. CheMatch agreed to purchase information content, advertising and other promotional
material and services from William Heinemann or a designee of William Heinemann in amounts totaling
at least $500,000 between January 1, 2000 and January 1, 2002.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To PetroChemNet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of PetroChemNet, Inc. (a Delaware corporation),
as of December 31, 1997 and 1998 and June 20, 1999, and the related statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1998, and for the
period from January 1, 1999 to June 20, 1999. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinjon.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of PetroChemNet, Inc., as of December 31, 1997 and 1998, and June 20, 1999, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1998, and for the

period from January 1, 1999, to June 20, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. .

Houston, Texas
February 4, 2000
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

June 20,

1997 1998 1999
ASSETS
Current assets:
07 T 1 $ 210 3 2 £ 49
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1, $5 and $20,
respectively . ... ... e 149 56 17
Prepaids and other current assets ............ i i, 59 60 40
Total curment assets. . ... . .e vt it it i ra i i 418 118 1606
Property and equipment, Bet ... ... i e, 194 153 138
L0 T i T 206 106 56
Deferred offering costs ... o — — 198
Total assets ... i e e e $ 818 3 37 $ 493
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Line of credit. . ... ..o i i e e e 3 67 3 67 5 &7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...... ... ... ... oL, 382 568 825
Deferred revenue. . . .. ...ttt it i 104 89 80
Payable to shareholders and employee . ........................ 127 85 221
Total current labilities . ... ... .. ... ... .. . 680 809 1,193
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Common stock, no par value, 20,000 shares suthorized; 5,533,
5,935 and 7,065 shares issued and outstanding, respectively ..... 1,388 3,367 4,007
Accumulated deficit ......... e e, (1,250} (3,799) (4,702)
Total stockholders” equity (deficit) ...............oo L 138 {432) (695)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) .............. $ 818 § 3N § 498

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands)

Year Ended
December 31 J““‘::ﬁjéhlm
1997 1998 June 20, 1999
Revenues: :
Web site services. . . ... ..t $ 775 % sa42 $ 56
SUBSCHPHOMS .+ .0ttt e 66 156 55
Total revenues ...............oouinnuninnne . 841 698 111
Costs and Expenses:
Technology costs ... ..o i 801 631 149
Selling and marketing .............. .. ... .. o i 222 176 70
General and administrative. . .............. .. iiuno . 246 688 657
Stock-based compensation . ......... ... 239 1,577 50
Depreciation and amortization............................ .. 144 161 82
Total costs and expenses. . .......... .o, 1,752 3,233 1,008
Operating loss ,.......... e e e e it (O11) (2,533 (897)
IMterest eXpense . .o oo it ittt (16) (14) (6)
Nt 0SS oo 3(927) $(2,549) $ (903)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Accumulated
Shares Amount Deeficit Total
Balance, December 31, 1996 .. ... ... ... ..., 5000 § 451 $ (323 § 128
Capital contributions. .. ......ovvvirievnnn e, _— 165 — 165
Issuance of common stock..........cooueeiunnnnn. 533 533 — 533
Compensation expense related to stock options......... — 239 — 239
Net Joss .o e e — — (927) (927
Balance, December 31, 1997 .. ..ot 5,533 1,388 (1,250) 138
Issuance of common stock .. ........................ 402 402 — 402
Compensation expense related to stock options......... — 1,577 — 1,577
Net 1088 i e e — — (2,549 (2,549)
Balance, December 31, 1998 .. ........ ... ... il 5,935 3,367 (3,799) (432)
Issuance of common stock ... ..o oo, 1,130 410 — 410
Stock options exercised .......... ... ... i, 180 — 180
Compensation expense related to stock options......... — 50 — 50
| = A L — — (903) {903)
Balance, June 20, 1999 . . ... v e 7,065 § 4,007 $(4,702) §  (695)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Decertber 1 Ja“';ﬁg;éh'm
1997 1998 June 20, 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net 1085 oot e e $(927) $(2,549) $(503)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities —
Depreciation and amortization............................. 144 161 82
Stock-based compensation expense. . ... ..o i 239 1,577 50
Non-cash consulting expense. ...........cooeviiiinvn... — - 150
Changes in operating assets and liabilities —
Decrease in accounts receivable ..................... el 67 93 39
(Increase) decrease in prepaids and other................. (59) (1) 20
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .. ... ... 240 186 59
Increase {decrease) in deferred revenue .................. 104 (15) (9)
Net cash used in operating activities ................... (192) (548) (512)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment................... .. ..... (139) (20) (18)
Purchase of customer list .. ... ... ... . oo (300) — -—
Security deposit paid. .. ... ... e e (1) — —
Net cash used in investing activities .................... (440) (20) (18)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from line of credit. .. ... ... ... ...l 67 —_ —
Proceeds from shareholder foans ............... ... .. ... ..., 17 8 2
Payments of shareholder loans............................... — (50) (15)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . ............. . ...... 533 402 410
Exercise of common stock options ........................... — — 180
Capital contributions from shareholders .. ................. ... 165 — —
Net cash provided by financing activities................ 782 360 577
Net increase (decrease) in cash ........ U e 150 (208) 47
Cash at beginning of period ... ... .o 60 210 2
Cashatendof period . ... ... i e $ 210 $ 2 $ 45
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatibn:
Cash paid forinterest . .. .. ... ... ... it i $§ 16 $ 7 $ 6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization:

PetroChemNet, Inc. (PetroChemNet), was originally incorporated as a Connecticut corporation in
March 1996 and commenced operations in January 1997. In June 1998, PettoChemNet became a
Delaware corporation. PetroChemNet provides Internet-based information resources in the chemical
industry. In 1997, PetroChemNet merged with T3 Technologies, Inc. {13). PetroChemNet and T3 were
entities under common control. Accordingly, the merger has been recorded in a manner similar to a
pooling of interests accounting. '

On June 21, 1999, PetroChemNet merged into CheMatch.com, Inc. (CheMatch) in exchange for the
issuance of 2,119,440 shares of CheMatch commen stock. In conjunction with this transaction, CheMatch,
Inc. (a Texas corporation), was also acquired by CheMatch.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates are uvsed for, but not
limited to, the allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization, deferred compensation and
contingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

PetroChemNet has the following financial instruments; cash, accounts receivable and accounts
payable. Management believes that the carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their
respective fair value due to their short-term nature.

Revenue Recognition

PetroChemNet’s Web site services revenues are derived from projects in which PetroChemNet
designs, develops and implements Web site applications. In addition, PetroChemNet provides ongoing
Web site maintenance and administrative services for its customers. Revenue from Web site services is
recognized when all of the following have occurred: a contract has been entered into with a customer,
services have been rendered, the fee amount has been determined and collectibility is reasonably assured.
PetroChemNet suspended its web site service activities in [998.

PetroChemNet’s subscription revenues are derived from fees for access to Internet-based information
resources. Revenue from subscription fees is recognized ratably over the term of the subscription, which is
normally one year. The unearned revenue from subscription fees is reflected as deferred revenue in the
accompanying balance sheets. PetroChemNet pays fees to third parties who provide and maintain the
Intenet-based information resources. Certain of the subscription revenues received are commissions from
third parties who provide and maintain the Internet-based information resources. The commissions earned
are recorded net in the accompanying statement of operations as CheMatch does not bear the risk of loss.

Technology Cost

Technology costs mnclude expenses incurred by PetroChemINet to maintain and enhance
PetraChemNet’s Internet-based information resource web site.
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

3. Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs and
minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and betterments are
capitalized. PetroChemNet computes depreciation and amortization over the estimated useful life of the
assets utilizing a straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of five years
or the lease term. Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

Estimated December 31, June 20,

Life 1997 1998 1999

Computer software and equipment ........... 3-5 years $230 $ 238 $ 2356
Fumiture and fixtures ...................... 7 years 18 20 20
Leasehold improvements.................... 5 years 15 20 20
263 278 296

Less — Accumulated depreciation and

amortization . .. ..., e e : (69 (125) (158)
Property and equipment, net......... 3194 $ 153 $ 138

4. Detail of Other Balance Sheet Accounts:

PetroChemNet purchased a customer list on January 6, 1997, at a cost of $300,000, which is being
amortized over three years (in thousands):

December 31, June 20,
1997 1998 1999
Customer list. ... .. i e $ 300 $ 300 $ 300
Less — Accumulated amortization . .......voviueinnnnennn. {100) {200} _(250)
Intangible assets, net ... $ 200 $ 100 $ 50
Other assets. . ...t [T 6 6 __ 6

Other assets. .. .......... e, e, $ 206 $ 106 $ 356

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, June 20,

1997 1998 1999
Accounts payable ... ... . . $ 364 $ 524 $ 766
Otheraceruals. ........ ittt i i 18 44 59
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ........... $ 382 $ 568 3 825

5. Line of Credit:

PetroChemMNet obtained a line of credit in May 1997 under which it could bomow up to $100,000 at
an interest rate of prime plus 2 percent. The line of credit terminated in August 1997, however, the
outstanding balance of 567,000 was not repaid. PetroChemNet was curreat on all interest payments. All
assets of PetroChemNet are collateral for the loan. In conjunction with the merger of PetroChemNet into
CheMatch, the line of credit was repaid in July 19%9.
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continucd)

6. Payable to Stockholders:

As of December 31, 1997 and 1998, and June 20, 1999, PetroChemNet had an outstanding balance of
$127,000, $85,000 and $72,000, respectively, due to the chief executive officer and president who are also
stockholders. The notes accrue interest at 6 percent and are payable on demand. In conjunction with the
merger of PetroChemNet into CheMatch in June 1999, the notes payable were repaid. Also, at
December 31, 1999, PetroChemNet owed $149,000 to a shareholder pursuant to a consulting agrecment.

7. Stockholders’ Equity:

PetroChemNet sold 1,325 shares of common stock with detachable warrants to various investors
during 1997, 1998 and 1999. The warrants have an exercise price of $1,000 and an exercise period ranging
from four te five years. The values of these warrants are included in common stock on the accompanying

balance sheets. Each warrant was converted into 300 warrants to purchase shares of CheMatch common
stock on June 21, 1999,

In connection with the purchase of T3, one of the stockholders of PetroChemNet granted an option to
purchase an aggregate of up to 250 shares of his common stock of PetroChemNet to two T3 shareholders
at a price equal to the greater of (a) $2,000 per share or (b} 50 percent of the price per share of common
stock in a public offering. The option expires on March 13, 2007. This option was converted into an option
to purchase 75,000 shares of CheMatch common stock on June 21, 1999,

8. Stock Option Plan:

On October 27, 1997, the board of directors approved the adoption of the 1997 Employee, Director
and Consultant Stock Plan (the Stock Plan) which provides for the granting of incentive or nongualified
stock options to employees, directors and consultants to purchase up to 2,000 shares of common stock, In
November 1998, the number of shares issuable under the Plan was increased to 6,000 by approval of the
board of directors. Stock options granted under the Plan have a term of ten yeass from date of grant, with
some vesting immediately, and other vesting over periods ranging from two to three years. Each option was
converted into 300 options to purchase shares of CheMatch common stock on June 21, 1999,

The following is a summary of PetroChemNet's option activity through June 20, 1999:

Weighted
Average
- Exetcise

Options Price

Outstanding, December 31, 1996. ... . ...t i — $ —
L 7 =111 = 748 694
Qutstanding, December 31, 1997 ... ittt ittt ieeaanans 748 694
Granted . .. e e e 3,226 511
Forfeited ..o e e e e e (220) 1,000
Quistanding, December 31, 1998 . ... .. .. i 3,754 571
Granted . L Lot i e e e 1,511 265
Forfeited .. ..o {587) 263
EXeICISea . . o {720} 250
Outstanding, June 20, 1999 ... ... e 3,958 553

PetroChemNet records compensation expense for the difference between the grant price and the
deemed fair value for financial statement presentation purposes related to options. During 1997, 1998 and
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PETROCHEMNET, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1999, PetroChemNct recorded $239,000, $1,577,000, and $50,000, respectively, for compensation expense
in the accompanying statements of operations.

The fair values of each stock option grant were estimated using the minimum value method with the
following weighted average assumptions for 1997 and 1998: expected life of four years, no expected
dividends and a risk-free interest rate of six percent. The following weighted average assumptions were
used for 1999; expected life of five years, no expected dividends and a risk-free interest rate of
5.23 percent.

The number and weighted average fair value of options granted in 1997, 1998 and 1999 is as follows:

1997 1998 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares  Fair Value
Option price equals fair market valuve ......... .. 443 3213 1,123 3213 — 3—
Option price greater than fair market value ...... — — — — 273 —
Option price less than fair market value ......... 305 803 2103 803 1,238 139

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at June 20, 1999:

Options Outstanding QOptions Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Outstanding Remaining Exercisable
Range of as of Contractuzi Weighted as of Weighted
Exercise June 20, Life Average June 20 Average
Prices 1999 {In Years) Exercise Price 1999 Exercise Price

$ 250 2,360 9.8 $ 250 2,360 $ 250

100 1,598 9.6 51,000 517 $1,000

250-1,000 3,958 9.8 $ 548 2,877 $ 281

Had the compensation cost for this plan been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” PetroChemNet’s net loss would have increased to the
following pro forma amounts (in thousands, except per share data):

December 31 June 20,
1997 1998 1999
MNet loss:
AsTeported . ... i i e $(927) $(2,549) $ (903)
Proforma ......... e e e e, (938)  (2,600) (1,025}

9. Income Taxes:

PetroChemNet records taxes under the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting
and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in
effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

At June 20, 1959, PetroChemNet had a net operating loss carryforward of approximately $1,100,000
which begins expiring in 2013. The net operating loss for federal income tax purposes is subject to annual
limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. A valuation allowance has been recognized to
fully offset the deferred tax assets after considering deferred tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The components of PetroChemNet's deferred tax assets are as follows (in thousands):
December 31,

June 21,
1997 1998 1999
Federal net operating loss carryforwards ................... $ 122 $ 373 $ 3718
Accruals not currently deductible . ... ..., ... ... ... — — 189
Depreciation and amortization ................c.. ceen.... (6) {43) 52
116 330 619
Less — Valvation allowance .........cocoiiiiiiiinnnnn.. {116) (330) (619)
Net deferred tax assets ........... ... ..o ..., $§ — $ — 3 —

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to PetroChemNet's effective tax rate for the
years ended December 31, 1997 and 1998, and the period from January 1, 1999, to June 20, 1999, is as
follows (in thousands):

1957 1998 1999
US,. statutory rate . .....ou it iy, $(319) $(867) $(307)
Nondeductible expepse . ... ... ... i i, g1 336 18
Other . e 118 117 —
Adjustment te deferred tax valuation allowance................ 116 214 289
§ — § — $ —

10. Commitments and Contingencics:

Lease Agreement

PetroChemNet has a noncancelable operating lease, expiring in 2002, Minimum future lease
payments on this lease are as follows (in thousands):

Period ending December 31:

[0S e e 3 42
2000, .00l e e i 86
7 80
2002 . e 63

$281

Rental expense was approximately $33,000, $78,000 and $40,000 for the years ended December 31,
1997 and 1998, and the period from January 1, 1999, to June 20, 1999, respectively.

Litigation

At certain times, PetroChemNet is involved in legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
PetroChemNet currently is not engaged in any legal proceedings that are expected to have a material
adverse effect on PetroChemNet's results of operations or financial position.

11. Significant Customers

During 1997, 1998 and the period from January 1, 1999 through June 20, 1999 three, four and one
customers in the aggregate represented 86 percent, 86 percent and 32 percent of PetroChemNet’s total
revenues, respectively.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To CheMatch, Inc.;

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of CheMatch, Inc. (a Texas corporation in the
development stage), as of December 31, 1997 and 1998, and the related statements of operations,
shareholders’ deficit and cash flows for the period from March 10, 1997 (inception) through December 31,
1997, and for the year ended December 31, 1998. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plar and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and sigaificant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of CheMatch, Inc., as of December 31, 1997 and 1998, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the period from March 10, 1997 (inception), through December 31, 1997, and for
the year ended December 31, 1998, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

Housten, Texas
February 4, 2000
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CHEMATCH, INC.

(A development stage company)

BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Current liabilities:
Advances fromrelated party .. ..o i
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities . . ..., ... . ... L.
Deferred revenite ... ... ... ot e

Total current liabilities. . . ... ... o iiii s
Commitments and contingencies '
Shareholders’ deficit:
Commor stock, $0.01 par, 10,000 shares authorized; 3,750 shares
issued and outstanding. .. ... ... i e
Additional paid-in capital ............ ... i
Deficit accumulated in development stage ..............ovvunnen.

Total shareholders’ deficit .. ..o iii e e e ee e

December 31,

1997

$ 203
11

214

3

(85)
(82)

$ 132

1998

3
(194)
(191}

$ 144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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March 31, 1999
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3270
29
28

327

3

(223)
220)

$ 107



Revenues: ....................

Costs and Expenses:
Technology costs ............
General and administrative. . ..
Depreciationi . oo ovvvvvnnnnnns

Total costs and expenses

Operating loss.......oooivunan
Interest eXpense . .....ovvueunnn

Loss before income taxes .......
Benefit of income taxes.........

Netloss. ..o vneeiiiiennaenns

CHEMATCH, INC.

{A development stage company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In thousands)

March 10, 1997 Three
I tion), March 10, 1997
¢ ';l"l?:ergl.:gl't:} Year Ended Months Ended ?;:ception]
December 31, December 31, _ March 31, Through
1997 1998 1998 1999 March 31, 199%
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
............. $ — § 84 313 $ 33 3117
............. | 30 7 2 33
............. 107 104 28 45 256
............. 2 41 10 11 54
............. 110 175 45 58 343
............. (110) o1y  (32) (29) (226)
............. (5) (18) (4) (4) 2N
............. (115) (108)  (36) (29 (253)
............. 30 — — — 30
............. $ (85)  $(109) $(36) $(29)  $(213)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these firancial statements.
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CHEMATCH, INC.

(A development stage company)

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® DEFICIT
(In thousands, except share data)

N Deficit
Common S AfSHl Al
Shares  Amount Capital Stage Total
Issuance of common stock at inception, March
1997 ($1.00 pershare) ........oooviiini... 4750 § — $a $ — $ 4
Repurchase of common stock, August 1997
($1.00 pershare) ..........c.iinLL, (1L,ooo) — () — (1)
Netloss .. oot — — = (85) (85)
Balance, December 31, 1997 ................... 3,750 — 3 (85) (82)
Netloss .....ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiii i — — = (109} (109)
Balance, December 31, 1998................... 3,750 — 3 (194) (191)
Net loss (unandited) ....................... — — i (29) (2%)
Balance, March 31, 1999 (unaudited)........... 3750 % — $3 $(223) $(220)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHEMATCH, INC.

(A development stage company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

March 10, 1997 Three
{Inception), March 10, 1997
Through Year Ended  Months Ended (Inception),
December 31,  December 31, . March31, Through
1997 1998 1998 1999  March 31, 1999
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Cash fows from operating activities:
Netoss ..ot aeaaanes $ (85) $(109)  3(36) $(29) $(223)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
in operating activities —

Depreciation. ......coovvuiinieiiiivinnnn.. 2 41 10 I1 54
Changes in operating assets and liabilities —
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . . —_ {19) (13) (3 (13)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued Liabilities ..................... 11 14 (2) 4 29
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue .. .. — 49 — {21) 28
WNet cash used in operating activities ... .. {(72) (24) (41) {29) {125)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment........... (133) (15) (8) — {148)
Net cash used in investing
BCHVItIES .. ...t (133) (15) (8) — (148)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Advances from related party ........... ... 203 I11 50 23 337
Payments of advances from related party........ — (33) — {14) (67)
Issuance of common stock.................... — — - 4
Repurchase of common stock ................. (I} — — — (n
Net cash provided by financing activities . . 206 58 50 9 273
Net increase (decrease) incash................. 1 19 1 (20) —
Cash at beginning of period..................... —_— 1 1 20 —
Cash atendof period .............. N $ 1 $ 20 32 $ — 5 —
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: )
Cash paid for interest . ....... e e $ — & 9 $ — $ — $ 9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHEMATCH, INC.

(A development stage company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization:

CheMatch, Inc., was incorporated as a Texas corporation on March 10, 1997. The accompanying
financial statements and related notes reflect the historical results of operations and financial position of
CheMatch, Inc., until June 21, 1999, a subsidiary of DeWitt & Company, Inc. (DeWitt), a consulting
firm serving the petrochemical industry. CheMatch, Inc. operates an Internet-based trading exchange for
the purchase and sale of bulk commodity chemicals which became operational in Febmary 1998.

CheMatch, Inc. was a development stage company that devoted substantially all of its efferts in
developing an Internet-based trading exchange and building a customer base and had not generated
significant revenues from operations prior to 1999.

CheMatch, Inc. has experienced negative cash flows from operations and has incurred net losses since
inception. CheMatch, Inc.’s operations have been funded to date primarily through advances from DeWitt.
In 1999, CheMatch, Inc. completed the transition from a development stage company to an operating
company. On June 21, 1999, CheMatch, Inc., was acquired by CheMatch.com, Inc. (CheMatch).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying balance sheet as of March 31, 1999, the statements of operations and cash flows
for the three months ended March 31, 1998 and 1999, and the statements of shareholders’™ deficit for the
three months ended March 31, 1999, are unaudited. In the opinion of management, these unaudited
financial statements include all adjustments of a normal and recurring nature and necessary for a fair
presentation of results for the interim periods. Results for the three months ended March 31, 1999, are not
necessarily indicative of expected future results.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with general accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

CheMatch, Inc. has the following financial instruments: cash, accounts receivable and accounts
payable. Management believes that the carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their
respective fair value due to their short-term nature.

Revenue Recognition

CheMatch, Inc. generates revenue from its Internet-based trading exchange. Trading revenues
typically consist of commissions paid by each party to a completed transaction. Commissions are based on
the volume of chemicals traded on the exchange and are recognized upon confirmation of a trade. Prior to
1999, CheMatch charged sign-on fees for new members. In 1999, CheMatch suspended sign-on fees. Sign-
on fees were recognized ratably over the initial term of the contract.

CheMatch, Inc. records deferred revenue when amounts are collected under terms of the contract in
advance of satisfying revenue recognition criteria. The amounts deferred as of each balance sheet date are
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CHEMATCH, INC.

(A development stage company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

expected to be recognized as revenue within 12 months of the respective balance sheet dates and,
accordingly, are classified as current liabilities.

Technology Costs

Technology costs include expenses incurred by CheMatch to maintain and erhance CheMatch’s
Internet-based trading exchange.

3. Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs and
minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and betterments are
capitalized. CheMatch, Inc. computes depreciation over the estimated useful life of the assets using the
straight-line method. Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

Estimated December 31,
Life 1997 1998
Computer software and equipment ...............ooviein.n, 3-5years  $132 $147
Furniture and fIRIUIES « . o oot i ettt i i eeieaererarannnanns 7 years 1 1
133 148
Less — Accumulated depreciation ............c..o i (2) (43)
Property and equipment, net ..........oovvviiinnnn. $131 3105

4. Advances from Related Party:

During 1997 and 1998, CheMatch, Inc. received cash advances totaling $203,000 and $111,000,
respectively, from DeWitt primarily to fund operations of CheMatch. The advances accrue interest at
7 percent per annum. In 1998, CheMatch, Inc. made payments totaling $53,000 to DeWitt on the
outstanding balance of the advances. The advances were payable on demand and are classified as current.
At December 31, 1997 and 1998, accrued interest of $5,000 and $22,000, respectively, is included in
accrued liabilities. ) . -

5. Shareholders’ Equity:

In August 1997, CheMatch, Inc. entered into an agreement with a shareholder (Shareholder
Agreement) to repurchase and retire 1,000 shares of common stock for $1,000 cash. The Sharcholder
Agreement also granted an option to the shareholder to purchase 20 percent of CheMatch, Inc’s common
stock on or before December 31, 2002, If the option was not exercised or terminated by the shareholder by
December 31, 2002, then the shareholder was entitled to receive the option payment amount determined
as of December 31, 2002. In accordance with the Shareholder Agreement, the shareholder also was
entitled to cash payments based on the achievement by CheMatch, Inc. of certain revenue targets each
fiscal year for a four-year period ending November 30, 2002. In conjunction with the acquisition by
CheMatch, the Shareholder Agreement was terminated by issuance of 64,350 shares of CheMatch
common stock, and a cash payment of $70,000, all of whick was included in the purchase price of
CheMatch, Inc.

6. Income Taxes:

Deferred income taxes are recorded using the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under
this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial
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CHEMATCH, INC.

(A development stage company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and arc measured using the enacted tax rates and Jaws that
will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are evaluated for
realization based onr a more-likely-than-not criteria in determining if a valuation allowance should be
provided.

During these periods, CheMatch, Inc. was a wholly owned subsidiary of DeWitt, CheMatch Inc. files
its tax return as a member of the DeWitt consolidated group. CheMatch, Inc. has incurred net operating
losses since inception that were funded by DeWitt. Therefore, the tax benefits generated in 1997 were
utilized by DeWitt.

Management has established a full valuation allowance against the net deferred tax assets at
December 31, 1997 and 1998, since realization of these assets in the future periods is uncertain.

The components of CheMatch, Inc.’s deferred tax assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
1997 1998
Federal net operating loss carryforwards .......... .. ... ... . oo 3 8 $ 21
Accruals not currently deductible . .. ... .. o L 2 27
Depreciation and amortization .............. et (1) (2)
g 46
Less — Valuation allowance .......oiiitiiii it iiiiiaaiaannnns, &) (46)

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to CheMatch, Inc.’s effective income tax rate
for the period from Marck 10, 1997 (inception), through December 31, 1997, and for the year ended
December 31, 1998, is as follows (in thousands}:

March 10, 1997
(Iaception)
through
Diecember 31, December 31,
1997 1998
US. statutory rate ... oottt it e e r e vinaeess $(3%) 3371
Adjustment to deferred tax vaivation allowance............ . 9 37
$(30) N

ll

7. Commitments and Contingencies:
Litigation

At certain times CheMatch, Inc. is involved in legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
CheMatch, Inc. currently is not engaged in any legal proceedings that are expected to have a material
adverse effect on CheMatch, Inc.’s results of operations or financial position.

8. Significant Customers:

For the year ended December 31, 1998, CheMatch, Inc.’s three leading customers accounted for
13 percent, 12 percent and 11 percent of CheMatch, Inc.’s revenues, respectively,
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, 2000

CheMatch.com, Inc.

Shares of Common Stock

PROSPECTUS

Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Deutsche Baric Alex. Brown
Salomon Smith Barney
SG Cowen

DL]Jdirect Inc.

We have not authorized any dealer, salesperson or other person to give you written information other
than this prospectus or to make representations as to matters not stated in this prospectus. You must
not rely on unauthorized information. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities or our
solicitation of your offer to buy the securities in any jurisdiction where that would not be permitted or
legal. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sales made hereunder after the date of this
prospectus shall create an implication that the information contained herein or the affairs of
CheMatch.com, Inc. have not changed since the date hereof.

Until , 2000 (25 days after the date of this prospectus), all dealers that effect transactions in
these shares of common stock, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver
a prospectus. This is in addition to the dealers’ obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as
underwriters and with respect t¢ their unsold alletments or subseriptions,




PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution

The following table sets forth the costs and expenses, other than underwriting discounts and
commissions, payable in connection with the sale of common stock being registered. All amounts are
estimates except the SEC registration fee and the NASD filing fees.

SEC Registration fee . ... u .ttt ittt ittt it et et ettt $13,306
N I 2 $ 5,540
Nasdag National Market initial listing fee. . ...t i iiinnn., $95,000

Printing and engraving ... ....uotuiirnineitnraeranetiea it innaaiaaaaaanans *
Legal fees and expenses of the Company . .........ociviiiii ittt iiiiranennn.. *
Accounting fees and eXpenSes . ...ttt i i i e i e e e *
Transfer agent fees . ..ottt i i i et ta i *
*
*

Miscellaneous expenses
Total . e e

......................................................

* To be provided by amendment.

Item 14. Indemnification of Dircctors and Officers.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL”) provides that a corporation may
indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending
or completed action, suit or proceeding whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than
an action by or in the right of the corporation by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actuzlly and
reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and
in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and,
with respect te any criminal action or proceeding, bad no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was
unlawful. Section 145 further provides that a corperation similarly may indemnify any such person serving
in any such capacity who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending
or completed action or suit by.or in the gkt of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by
reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was
serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually
and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if he acted in
good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed tc be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
corporation and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claiim, issue or matter as to
which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent
that the Delaware Court of Chancery or such other court in which such action or suit was brought shall
determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of Hability but in view of all of the circumstances
of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the
Delaware Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper.

CheMatch’s certificate of incorporation provides that indemnification shall be to the fullest extent
permitted by the DGCL for all current or former directors or officers of CheMatch,

As permitted by the DGCL, the certificate of incorporation provides that directors of CheMatch shall
have no personal liability to CheMatch or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director, except (1) for any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to CheMaich or its
stockholders, (2) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which invelve intentional miscenduct or
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knowing violation of law, (3} under Section 174 of the DGCL or (4) for any transaction from which g
director derived an improper personal benefit.

ITEM 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.

CheMatch has not sold any securities, registered or otherwise, within the past threc years, except as
set forth below.

* On June 21, 1999, we sold 2,138,400 shares of Seres A Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants
to purchase 1,603,800 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock for approximately $5 milfion
to the Battery Ventures Entities,

+ On November 24, 1999, we sold 636,943 shares of common stock for $6,369 1o E.I. duPont
de Nemours and Company in conjunction with our entering into a strategic alliance, Additionaliy,
duPont purchased 891,716 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase
668,787 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock for approximately $7 million.

approximately $20.5 million to the DLJ Entities, the Battery Ventures Entities, Marquette Venture
Partners III, L.P., Stolt-Nielsen Transportation Group Ltd., Millennium Holdings Inc., Don
Churchman, Chris Davis, Roger Leedy, Larry McAfee, Carl McCutcheon, Jim Rahe, John
Skerman and Gerry Elias.

* On February S, 2000, we sold 204,291 shares of our commeon stock to Muehlistein Helding
Corporation for approximately $1 million and a Promissory note in aggregate principal amount of
approximately $1 million. The promissory note, which bears interest at the rate of eight percent per
year, is payable i eight consecutive quarterly installments, commencing April [, 2000.

* On February 11, 2000, we sold 153,218 shares of our common stock to William Heinemann, Inc,, a
Subsidiary of Reed Elsevier plc, for_approximatcly $1.5 million.

public offering. In all of such transactions, the recipients of securities represented their intention to acquire
the securities for investment purposes only and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any
distribution thereof, and appropriate legends were affixed to the securities jssued.
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ITEM 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Sehedules
{a) Exhibits

Exhibit
: Number Desceription
: 1.1** — Form of Underwriting Agreement
I 2.1* — Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated June 21, 1999, by and among
< CheMatch, PetroChemNet, Inc., PCN Merger Sub, Inc. and Earl Armstrong,
Teresa Acosta, William Barry and Fred Cook
3.1%* — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
’ 324 — Amended and Restated Bylaws
4.1%* — Form of Common Stock Certificate
5.1%* — Opinion of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P.
0.1 — 1997 Employee, Director and Consultant Stock Option Plan
10.2* — 1999 Stock Plan
10.3* — Amended and Restated Management Incentive Agreement, dated as of
February 8, 2000, by and among CheMatch and Carl McCutcheon, Lawrance
McAfee, John Bohn and Karen Morgan.
10.4* — Employment Agreement, datéed June 21, 1999, by and between CheMatch and
Carl McCutcheon
10.5*% — Letter of Employment, dated September 7, 1999, by and between CheMatch and
; Lawrance McAfee
! 10.6% — Employment Agreement, dated June 1, 1999, by and between CheMatch and
i Fred Cook
' 10.7* - Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 1999, by and between CheMatch and
John Bokn
10.8* — Consultant and Release Agreement, dated January 26, 2000, by and between
CheMatch and John Bohn
10.9%* — Employment Agreement, dated May I, 1999, by and between CheMatch and
Karen Morgan
10.10* — Consultant and Release Agreement, dated January 26, 2000, by and between
CheMatch and Karen Mergan
10.11** — Form of Indemnification Agreement
10.12* — Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
November 24, 1999 ’
10.13* — Alliance Agreement, dated June 21, 1999 between the CheMatch and DeWitt &
_ Company, Incorporated
10.14* — Letter Agreement relating to a strategic alliance, dated September 30, 1999, by
and between CheMatch and Computer Sciences Corporation
10.15% — Letter Agreement relating to a strategic alliance, dated November 11, 1999, by
and between CheMatch and E.I. duPont de Nemours and Company
10.16* — Letter Agreement relating to a strategic alliance, dated January 19, 2000, by and
between CheMatch and Bayer AG
10.17* — Letter Agreement relating to a strategic alliance, dated January 22, 2000, by and
between CheMatch and Muehlstein Holding Corporation
10.18* — Master Qutsourced Services Agreement, dated January 27, 2000, by and between
CheMatch and eCredit.com, Inc.
10.19* ~— Letter Agreement relating to a strategic alliance, dated February 2, 2000, by and
between CheMateh and William Heinemann, Inc.
10.20* — Strategic Alliance Agreement, dated February 7, 2000, by and between

CheMatch and Optimum Logistics Ltd.
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Exhibit

MNumber Desecription

10.21* — Letter Agrecment relating to a strategic alliance, dated February 11, 2000, by
and between CheMatch and General Electric Company

10.22* — Letter Agreement relating to a strategic alliance, dated February 11, 2000, by
and between CheMatch and Townsend Tarnell, Inc.

16.1* — Letter regarding change in certifying accountant

21.1% ~ Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1* — Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants

23.2%* — Consent of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P. (included in Exhibit 5.1).

24.1 — Power of Attorney (included on the signature page of this registration statement)

27.1% — Financial Data Schedule

* Filed herewith.

** To be filed by amendment,

(&) Financial Statement Schedule

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is
contained in the Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

ITEM 7. Undertakings
The Registrant hereby undertakes:

(a) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be
permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the provisions
described in Item 14, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the
Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the
Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such
liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer
or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is
asserted by such director; officer or controlling person in cornection with the securities being
registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by
controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such
indemnificatior. by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final
adjudication of such issue.

{b) To provide to the underwriter(s) at the closing specified in the underwriting agreements,
certificates in such denominations and registered in such names as required by the underwriter(s) to
permit prempt delivery to each purchaser.

{c} For purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information
omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this Registration Statement in reliance upon
Rule 430A and contained in the form of prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to
Rule 424(b) (1) or (4) or 497(h} under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this
Registration Statement as of the time it was declared effective,

(d) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-
cffective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered thercin, and the offering of such securities at that time
shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursnant to the requircments of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant has duly
caused this registration statcment to be signed on its bebalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,
in the City of Houston, State of Texas, on March 1, 2000.

CheMatch.com, Inc.

By: _ /s/ CARL D. MCCUTCHEON

Carl D. McCutcheon
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned directors and officers of CheMatch.com, Inc. (“CheMatch”) do hereby constitute
and appoint Lawrance W. McAfee, Paul E. Pryzant and Scott C. Shelton, and each of them, with full
power of substitution, our true and lawful attoreys-in-fact and agents to do any and all acts and things in
our name and behalf in our capacities as directors and officers, and to execute any and all instruments for
us and in our names in the capacities indicated below which such person may deem necessary or advisable
to enable CheMatch to comply with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the *Act™) and any rules,
regulations and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, in connection with this
Registration Statement, including specifically, but not limited to, power and authority to sign for us, or any
of us, in the capacities indicated below and any and all amendments (including pre-effective and post-
effective amendments or any other registration statement filed pursuant o the provision of Rule 462(b)
under the Act) hereto; and we do hereby ratify and confirm all that such person or persons shall do or
cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement
has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signatare : : : Title Date
/s/ CARL D, MCCUTCHEON ‘Chairman, President and Chief March 1, 2000
Carl D. McCutcheon * Executive Officer (Principal

Executive Officer)

/si LAWRANCE W. MCAFEE Executive Vice President, Chief March 1, 2000
Lawrance W. McAfee Financial Officer, Secretary
and Director (Principal
Financial Officer)

/s/ SCOTT R. CREASMAN Vice President — Controller March 1, 2000
Scott R. Creasman (Principal Accounting
Officer)
/s/ EARL H. ARMSTRONG Director March 1, 2000
Earl H. Armstrong
/s BOB G. GOWER Director March 1, 200G
Bob G. Gower



Signature

/s{ JANET A. HICKEY

Janet A. Hickey

/s/ JAMES SAVIANG

James Saviano

fs/ R. DAVID TABORS

R. David Tahors
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Director

Director

Director

Title

Date

March 1, 2000

March 1, 2000

March 1, 2000



